
Larry Cretul
Speaker

Governmental Affairs- Policy
Committee

Wednesday, March 24, 2010
8:00 AM -10:30 AM

306 House Office Building

Robert C. "Rob" Schenck
Chair



Committee Meeting Notice
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

Start Date and Time:

End Date and Time:

Location:
Duration:

Wednesday, March 24, 2010 08:00 am

Wednesday, March 24, 2010 10:30 am

306 HOB
2.50 hrs

Consideration of the following biJI(s) with proposed committee substitute(s):

PCS for HB 219 -- Immigration

Consideration of the following biJI(s):

HB 405 Public Meetings by Kiar
HB 625 Voter Information Cards by Gibson
HB 1075 Recertification of Minority Business Enterprises by Braynon
HB 1179 Electronic Documents Recorded in the Official Records by Grimsley
HB 1401 Export of Goods, Commodities, & Things of Value to Foreign Countries by Rivera
HB 1511 Effective Public Notices by Governmental Entities by Workman
HB 1565 Rulemaking by Dorworth
HB 1603 Florida State Employees' Charitable Campaign by Cruz

Consideration of the following proposed committee bill(s):

PCB GAP 10-19 -- OGSR Voluntary Prekindergarten
PCB GAP 10-20 -- OGSR H. Lee Moffitt Cancer Center and Research Institute
PCB GAP 10-29 -- Professional Sports Franchises

Any of the above referenced bills that are not heard at this meeting will be carried over to the meeting on
Thursday, March 25, 2010.

NOTICE FINALIZED on 03/22/201016:19 by Ellinor.Martha

03/22/2010 4:19:42PM Leagis ® Page 1 of 1





BILL#:
SPONSOR(S):
TIED BILLS:

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

PCS for HB 219 Immigration
Governm~ntal Affairs Policy Committee

IDEN.lSIM. BILLS:

ACTION

Orig. Comm.:

REFERENCE

Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee

ANALYST lTAFF DIRE

Haug~ Williamso-------- ~
1) _

2) _

3) _

4) _

5) _

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The federal Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 made it illegal for any U.S. employer to knowingly:
• Hire, recruit or refer for a fee an alien knowing he or she is unauthorized to work;
• Continue to employ an alien knowing he or she has become unauthorized; or
• Hire, recruit or refer for a fee any person (citizen or alien) without following the record keeping

requirements of the Act.

This law established a procedure that employers must follow to verify that employees are authorized to work in
the United States. The procedure requires employees to present documents that establish both the worker's
identity and eligibility to work, and requires employers to complete an "1-9" form for each new employee hired.
This procedure is required of all employers, regardless of size.

The bill prohibits public employers from entering into contracts for the physical performance of services unless
the contractor registers with and participates in a federal work authorization program. Contractors who receive
such contract awards are prohibited from executing a contract, purchase order, or subcontract in connection
with the award unless the contractor and all subcontractors register with and participate in a federal work
authorization program. The bill requires specified contractors and subcontractors to certify in writing that they
have registered with and participate in a federal work authorization program. Compliance with this requirement
is phased in between JUly 1,2011 and July 1,2013, based upon the number of employees employed by a
specified contractor or subcontractor.

The bill also requires the Department of the Lottery to verify that the winner of a prize from specified lottery
games is a citizen of or legally present in the United States. The Department of the Lottery may have
increased personnel costs to train Lottery prize payment staff on citizenship and immigration requirements and
to administer the bill.

The bill creates a fiscal impact on the Department of Management Services and the Department of
Transportation associated with the promulgation of rules and the administration of those rules to ensure
contractors and subcontractors participate in a federal work authorization program. The Department of the
Lottery may incur increased personnel costs to train Lottery prize payment staff on citizenship and immigration
requirements purposes of administering the bill.

Private contractors and subcontractors not presently in compliance with the federal work authorization program
may have to expend funds to come into compliance.

The bill has an effective date of July 1, 2010.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: pcs0219.GAP.doc
DATE: 311812010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote pUblic safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

The Federal Work Authorization Program

Background
The federal Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA) made it illegal for any U.S. employer to
knowingly:

• Hire, recruit or refer for a fee an alien knowing he or she is unauthorized to work;
• Continue to employ an alien knowing he or she has become unauthorized; or
• Hire, recruit or refer for a fee any person (citizen or alien) without following the record keeping

requirements of the Act. 1

The law established a procedure that employers must follow to verify that employees are authorized to
work in the United States. The procedure requires employees to present documents that establish both
the worker's identity and eligibility to work, and requires employers to complete an "1-9" form for each
new employee hired. This procedure is required of all employers, regardless of size.

The United States Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS - formerly the INS and now part of the
Department of Homeland Security) enforces IRCA. However, because the IRCA only required that
employees produce paper documents verifying their identity or eligibility and because such documents
are easily falsified, enforcement has been problematic.

In 1996, IRCA was amended by the Illegal Immigration Reform and Immigrant Responsibility Act
(IIRIRA). In an attempt to address some of the problems related to employment eligibility verification,
the IIRIRA created three pilot programs to test electronic employment eligibility verification systems. Of
these three programs, the Basic Pilot program, an Internet-based system operated by USCIS in
partnership with the Social Security Administration (SSA), was chosen for nationwide implementation.
Now known as the Employment Eligibility Verification Program (EEV), the Basic Pilot program provides
an automated link to federal databases to help employers determine employment eligibility of new hires
and the validity of their social security numbers. The EEV is free to employers and is available in all 50
states.

1 P.L. 99-603, 100 Stat. 3359. IRCA amended the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA) (codified as amended at 8 U.s.c. 1101).

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcs0219.GAP.doc
3/18/2010

PAGE: 2



Effect of the Bill
The bill prohibits public employers from entering into contracts for the physical performance of services
unless the contractor registers and participates in a federal work authorization program.

The Florida Security and Immigration Compliance Act
The Florida Security and Immigration Compliance Act is created in s. 287.0575, F.S., to require
compliance with federal work authorization programs. Contractors who receive a contract award under
s. 287.057, F.S} for such services are prohibited from executing a contract, purchase order, or
subcontract in connection with the award unless the contractor and all subcontractors register and
participate in a federal work authorization program. Contractors must ensure that subcontractors who
provide services for the contractor register with and participate in the federal work authorization
program. The bill requires contractors and subcontractors to certify in writing that they have registered
with and participate in a federal work authorization program over a phased in schedule between July 1,
2011 and July 1, 2013.3 The bill also requires the Department of Management Services to adopt rules
and prescribe forms necessary to administer this bill.

Deparlment of Transporlauon
The bill creates similar requirements in s. 337.163, F.S. Starting JUly 1, 2011, the Department of
Transportation (DOT) is prohibited from entering into contracts for the physical performance of services
unless the contractor registers with and participates in a federal work authorization program. The bill
prohibits contractors who receive a contract award under ch. 337, F.S.,4 from executing a contract,
purchase order, or subcontract in connection with the award unless the contractor and all
subcontractors register with and participate in a federal work authorization program. Contractors also
must ensure that subcontractors who provide services for the contractor register with and participate in
the federal work authorization program. The bill requires contractors and subcontractors to certify in
writing that they have registered with and participate in a federal work authorization program. It also
requires the Secretary of DOT to prescribe forms and adopt rules deemed necessary to effectuate the
process.

Definiuons
The bill defines the following terms:

• Federal Work Authorizauon Program - Any program operated by the United States Department
of Homeland Security that provides electronic verification of work authorization issued by the
United States Bureau of Citizenship and Immigration Services or any equivalent federal work
authorization program operated by the United States Department of Homeland Security that
provides for the verification of information regarding newly hired employees under the
Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, Pub. L. No. 99-603.

• Public Employer - Any department, agency, or instrumentality of the state or a political
subdivision of the state.

• Subcontractor - Any entity providing services for a contractor, whether as a subcontractor,
contract employee, staffing agency, or other entity, regardless of the level of subcontracting
duties, if the services provided are related to the contractor's contract with an agency.

The Florida Lottery

Background
Under current law, the Department of the Lottery is not required to limit the sale of lottery tickets or the
payment of lottery prizes based upon citizenship or immigration status.5

2 Section 287.057, F.S., relates to the procedures state agencies use to procure contracts for the purchase of commodities or
contractual services.
3 Employers with 500 or more employees must comply by July 1, 2011, employers with 100 or more employees by July 1, 2012 and
all other employers by July 1,2013.
4 Chapter 337, F.S., relates to contracting by the Department of Transportation.
5 Sections 24.1055 and 24.115, F.S. According to the Department on the Lottery's website (http://www.flalottery.com/inet/games
HowToClaimMain.do) to claim a prize of $600 or more, the player must complete a Florida Lottery Winner Claim Form and present
STORAGE NAME: pcs0219.GAP.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 3/18/2010



Effect of the Bill
The bill requires the Department of the Lottery to verify that the winner of a prize from specified lottery
games is citizen of or legally present in the United States.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1: Amends s. 24.115, F.S., providing that the Department ofthe Lottery may not pay specified
prizes until the department verifies the winner is a citizen of or legally presentin the United States.

Section 2: Creates s. 287.0575, F.S., providing definitions; requiring compliance with federal work
authorization programs; prohibiting an agency from entering into a contract for the performance of
services with contractors who are not registered and participating in a federal work authorization
program by specified dates; providing for enforcement; requiring the Department of Management
Services to prescribe forms and adopt rules.

Section 3: Creates s. 337.163, F.S., providing definitions; prohibiting the Department of Transportation
from entering into a contract for the performance of services with contractors who are not registered
and participating in a federal work authorization program by specified dates; providing for enforcement;
requiring the department to prescribe forms and adopt rules.

Section 4: Providing an effective date of July 1, 2010.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

The bill creates a fiscal impact on the Department of Management Services and the Department of
Transportation associated with the promulgation of rules. These departments also will incur costs
associated with the administration of those rules in order to ensure contractors and subcontractors
participate in a federal work authorization program.

The Department of the Lottery may incur increased personnel costs to train Lottery prize payment
staff on citizenship and immigration requirements purposes of administering the bill.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

one form of the following identification that is current or was issued within the past five years and bares a serial number or other
identifying number:

• An identification card or driver's license issued by a public agency authorized to issue driver's licenses in Florida, a state
other than Florida, a territory of the U.S., Canada, or Mexico.

• A passport issued by the U.S. Department of State.
• A passport issued by a foreign government.
• An identification card issued by any branch of the U.S. armed forces.
• An identification card issued by the U.S. Bureau of Citizenship and Immigration Services.

The Florida Lottery Winner Claim Form (http://www.flalottery.com/inet/downloads/englishclaim.pdf) has somewhat different
identification requirements most notably the identification card or driver's license can be from any country and a sixth category is
added: "Other proof of identity authorized for use by notaries public in Chapter 117, Florida Statutes."
STORAGE NAME: pcs0219.GAP.doc PAGE: 4
DATE: 3/18/2010



2. Expenditures:

None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

Private contractors and subcontractors not presently in compliance with the federal work authorization
program may have to expend funds to come into compliance.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

None.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

The bill does not appear to: require cities or counties to spend funds or take an action requiring the
expenditure of funds; reduce the authority that cities or counties have to raise revenues in the
aggregate; or reduce the percentage of a shared state tax or premium sales tax received by cities or
counties.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

The bill requires the Department of Management Services and the Department of Transportation to
adopt rules to .effectuate contractor and subcontractor compliance with the provisions of this bill.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

The Department of the Lottery provided the following comments:
• The Lottery's current prize claim procedures require the claimant to state under oath whether

they are a U.S. citizen. The primary purpose of this requirement is to ensure that federal
income taxes are withheld at the proper rate-25% for citizens and higher rates for non-citizens.
Those claiming to be citizens, as well as certain legal aliens, are required to furnish a Social
Security number. We follow the procedures deemed acceptable by the Internal Revenue
Service for federal tax purposes.

• Unscrupulous individuals already engage in unlawful scams, victimizing the elderly, in particular,
in which they represent themselves as "illegal aliens" and, therefore, unable to redeem their
allegedly winning lottery ticket. The victim is then convinced to withdraw enough money from
their bank to pay a "discounted" value for the ticket, which in reality is not a winning ticket at all.
By the time the victim learns the ticket is worthless, the perpetrator has vanished with the
victim's money. HB 421, by prohibiting lottery claims by illegal aliens, could add a note of
authenticity to these scams, making them even more prevalent.

• There are a variety of avenues by which a person can legally be in the United States, such as
tourists with passports, students with visas, workers with work permits, legal residents, etc., and
each avenue would have guidelines, such as the length of time a tourist may stay in the United
States on a passport, and questions, such as whether the person had overstayed the
permissible length of time. The documentation required to prove legal presence in the United
States would not necessarily be the same for each person, and Lottery employees would be
required to exercise individual judgment in determining whether documents presented were
satisfactory. Therefore, this provision would require Lottery staff to become extensively trained
in immigration policy.

STORAGE NAME: pcs0219.GAP.doc PAGE: 5
DATE: 3/18/2010



• The current language does not make it unlawful for a person not legally in the United States to
purchase a lottery ticket. Case law holds that the purchase of a lottery ticket establishes a
contract between the ticket purchaser and the lottery issuing the ticket. If the purchase of a
ticket is not made illegal, a question arises as to whether or not the Lottery is in breach of
contract.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not appli~able.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcs0219.GAP.doc
3/18/2010

PAGE: 6



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

A bill to be entitled

An act relating to immigration; amending s. 24.115, F.S.;

requiring the Department of the Lottery to verify the

citizenship or legal presence in the United States of

certain prize winners; creating s. 287.0575, F.S.;

providing definitions; prohibiting agencies from entering

into a contract for contractual services with contractors

not registered and participating in a federal work

authorization program by a specified date; providing

procedures and requirements with respect to the

registration of contractors and subcontractors; providing

for enforcement; providing a schedule for phased

compliance; requiring the Department of Management

Services to adopt rules; creating s. 337.163, F.S.;

providing definitions; prohibiting the Department of

Transportation from entering into a contract for

contractual services with contractors not registered and

participating in a federal work authorization program by a

specified date; providing procedures and requirements with

respect to the registration of contractors and

subcontractors; providing for enforcement; providing a

schedule for phased compliance; requiring the department

to adopt rules; providing an effective date.

25 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

26

27 Section 1. Paragraph (h) is added to subsection (1) of

28 section 24.115, Florida Statutes, to read:

Page 1of5
PCS for HB 219.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

29

30

24.115 Payment of prizes.-

(1) The department shall promulgate rules to establish a

31 system of verifying the validity of tickets claimed to win

32 prizes and to effect payment of such prizes; however:

33 (h) The department may not pay any prize, excluding prizes

34 for which payment by retailers has been authorized under

35 paragraph (e), until the department has verified that the winner

36 of that prize is a citizen of the United States or legally

37 present in the United States.

38 Section 2. Section 287.0575, Florida Statutes, is created

39 to read:

40 287.0575 Compliance with federal work authorization

41 programs.-

42

43

(1) As used in this section, the term:

(a) "Federal work authorization program" means any program

44 operated by the United States Department of Homeland Security

45 that provides electronic verification of work authorization

46 issued by the United States Citizenship and Immigration Services

47 or any equivalent federal work authorization program operated by

48 the United States Department of Homeland Security that provides

49 for the verification of information regarding newly hired

50 employees under the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986,

51 Pub. L. No. 99-603.

52 (b) "Subcontractor" means a person who enters into a

53 contract with a contractor for the performance of any part of

54 such contractor's contract.

55 (2) An agency may not enter into a contract under s.

56 287.057 for contractual services unless the contractor registers

Page 2of 5
PCS for HB 219.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

57 and participates in a federal work authorization program.

58 (3) A contractor who receives a contract award under s.

59 287.057 for contractual services may not execute a contract,

60 purchase order, or subcontract in connection with the award

61 unless the contractor and all subcontractors providing services

62 for the contractor register and participate in a federal work

63 authorization program. The contractor shall certify in writing

64 to the agency that it is in compliance with this subsection.

65 (4) A contractor shall ensure that each subcontractor

66 providing services for the contractor registers and participates

67 in a federal work authorization program. Each subcontractor

68 shall certify in writing to the contractor that it is in

69 compliance with this subsection.

70

71

(5) Subsections (2), (3), and (4) shall apply as follows:

(a) On or after July 1, 2011, with respect to contractors

72 or subcontractors employing 500 or more employees.

73 (b) On or after July 1, 2012, with respect to contractors

74 or subcontractors employing 100 or more employees.

75 (c) On or after July 1, 2013, with respect to all

76 contractors or subcontractors.

77 (6) This section shall be enforced without regard to race,

78 religion, gender, ethnicity, or national origin.

79 (7) The department shall adopt rules deemed necessary to

80 administer this section, including prescribing forms.

81 Section 3. Section 337.163, Florida Statutes, is created

82 to read:

83 337.163 Compliance with federal work authorization

84 program.-

Page 3of 5
PCS for HB 219.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE a F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

85

86

(1) As used in this section, the term:

(a) "Federal work authorization program" means any program

87 operated by the United States Department of Homeland Security

88 that provides electronic verification of work authorization

89 issued by the United States Citizenship and Immigration Services

90 or any equivalent federal work authorization program operated by

91 the United States Department of Homeland Security that provides

92 for the verification of information regarding newly hired

93 employees under the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986,

94 Pub. L. No. 99-603.

95 (b) "Subcontractor" means a person who enters into a

96 contract with a contractor for the performance of any part of

97 such contractor's contract.

98 (2) The department may not enter into a contract under

99 this chapter for contractual services unless the contractor

100 registers and participates in a federal work authorization

101 program.

102 (3) A contractor who receives a contract award under this

103 chapter for contractual services may not execute a contract,

104 purchase order, or subcontract in connection with the award

105 unless the contractor and all subcontractors providing services

106 for the contractor register and participate in a federal work

107 authorization program. The contractor shall certify in writing

108 to the department that it is in compliance with this subsection.

109 (4) A contractor shall ensure that each subcontractor

110 providing services for the contractor reg~sters and participates

111 in a federal work authorization program. Each subcontractor

112 shall certify in writing to the contractor that it is in

Page 4of 5
pes for HB 219.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

·v



FLORIDA H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

113

114

115

BILL ORIGINAL YEAR

compliance with this subsection.

(5 ) Subsections (2) , (3) , and ( 4) shall apply as follows:

(a) On or after July 1, 2011, with respect to contractors

116 or subcontractors employing 500 or more employees.

117 (b) On or after July 1, 2012, with respect to contractors

118 or subcontractors employing 100 or more employees.

119 (c) On or after July 1, 2013, with respect to all

120 contractors or subcontractors.

121 (6) This section shall be enforced without regard to race,

122 religion, gender, ethnicity, or national origin.

123 (7) The department shall adopt rules deemed necessary to

124 administer this section, including prescribing forms.

125 Section 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 2010.

Page 5of 5
PCS for HB 219.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v





ANALYST

Williamso

ACTIONREFERENCE

1) Govemmental Affairs Policy Committee

2) Civil Justice & Courts Policy Committee

3) Economic Development & Community Affairs Policy
Council

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

BILL #: H8 405 Public Meetings
SPONSOR(S): Kiar
TIED BILLS: IDEN./SIM. BILLS: S8 138

4) _

5) _

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

In the absence of a legislative exemption, discussions between a public board and its attorney are subject to
open meetings requirements.

Current law provides a public meeting exemption for certain discussions by a public board or commission and
the chief administrative or executive officer of the governmental entity. Such board or commission and the
chief administrative or executive officer may meet in private with the entity's attorney to discuss pending
litigation to which the entity is presently a party before a court or administrative agency, provided certain
conditions are met. Only the entity, the entity's attorney, the chief administrative officer of the entity, and the
court reporter are authorized to attend a closed attorney-client session. Other staff members or consultants
are not allowed to be present.

The bill amends the public meeting exemption to allow the risk manager and division heads of a governmental
entity to attend the closed meeting if such manager or division head is identified by the chief administrative or
executive officer as being involved in pending litigation. It requires a person attending the closed attorney
client session to agree not to disclose any part of the discussion that took place during such session until
conclusion of the litigation, unless ordered by a court. The bill also prohibits a person who is an adverse party
of the litigation from attending the closed attorney-client session. That means a staff person or member of the
board or commission who currently is legally authorized to attend a closed attorney-client session may be
prohibited from attending future closed sessions if such person or member is an adverse party to the litigation
being discussed.

The new prohibitions created by the bill related to attendance at closed attorney-client sessions appear to
serve as an expansion of the current public meeting exemption. As such, it appears the bill requires a public
necessity statement and a two-thirds vote for final passage as mandated by the State Constitution. In addition,
bills creating or expanding a public record or public meeting exemption typically provide for future review and
repeal of the exemption pursuant to the Open Government Sunset Review Act. This bill does not provide such
provision.

Finally, the bill reorganizes the exemption and provides editorial changes.

Tl:le bill does not appear to create a fiscal impact on state or local governments.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h0405.GAP.doc
DATE: 3/21/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Background

Open Meetings Laws
Article I, s. 24(b) of the State Constitution sets forth the state's public policy regarding access to
government meetings. The section requires that all meetings of the executive branch and local
government be open and noticed to the public. The Legislature may, however, provide by general law
for the exemption of meetings from the requirements of Article I, s. 24(b) of the State Constitution. The
general law must state with specificity the public necessity justifying the exemption (public necessity
statement) and must be no broader than necessary to accomplish its stated purpose. In addition, the
State Constitution requires enactment of the exemption by a two-thirds vote of the members present
and voting.1

Public policy regarding access to public meetings is addressed further in the Florida Statutes. Section
286.011, F.S., requires that all state, county, or municipal meetings be open and noticed to the public.
Furthermore, the Open Government Sunset Review Ace provides that a public meeting exemption may
be created or maintained only if it serves an identifiable public purpose. In addition, it may be no
broader than is necessary to meet one of the following purposes:

• Allows the state or its political subdivisions to effectively and efficiently administer a
governmental program, which administration would be significantly impaired without the
exemption.

• Protects sensitive personal information that, if released, would be defamatory or would
jeopardize an individual's safety; however, only the identity of an individual may be exempted
under this provision.

• Protects trade or business secrets.

Attorney-Client Meetings
In the absence of a legislative exemption, discussions between a public board and its attorney are
subject to s. 286.011, F.S.3

1 Section 24(c), Art. I ofthe State Constitution.
2 Section 119.15, F.s.
3 Neu v. Miami Herald Publishing Company, 462 So. 2d 821 (Fla. 1985) (s. 90.502, F.S., which provides for the confidentiality of
attorney-client communications under the Florida Evidence Code, does not create an exemption for attorney-client communications at
public meetings; application of the Sunshine Law to the discussions ofa public commission with its attorney does not usurp the
constitutional authority ofthe Supreme Court to regulate the practice of law, nor is it at odds with Florida Bar rules providing for
STORAGE NAME: h0405.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 3/21/2010



Current law provides a public meeting exemption for certain discussions by any board or commission of
any state agency or authority or any agency or authority of any county, municipal corporation, or
political subdivision, and the chief administrative or executive officer of the governmental entity. Such
board or commission and the chief administrative or executive officer may meet in private with the
entity's attorney to discuss pending litigation to which the entity is presently a party before a court or
administrative agency, provided that the following conditions are met:

• The attorney must advise the entity at a public meeting that he or she desires advice concerning
the litigation.

• The subject matter of the meeting must be confined to settlement negotiations or strategy
sessions related to litigation expenditures.

• The entire closed session must be recorded by a certified court reporter, including the times of
commencement and termination of the session, all discussion and proceedings, the names of
all persons present at any time, and the names of all persons speaking.4

• The entity must give reasonable public notice of the time and date of the attorney-client session
and the names of persons who will be attending the session. The session must commence at
an open meeting at which the persons chairing the meeting must announce the commencement
and estimated length of the attorney-client session and the names of the persons attending.5

• The transcript must be made part of the public record upon conclusion of the litigation.6

Only the entity, the entity's attorney, the chief administrative officer of the entity, and the court reporter
are authorized to attend a closed attorney-client session. Other staff members or consultants are not
allowed to be presene However, because the entity's attorney is permitted to attend the closed
session, if the entity hires outside counsel to represent it in pending litigation, both the entity's attorney
and the litigation attorney may attend a closed session.8

Finally, qualified interpreters for the deaf are treated by the Americans with Disabilities Act as auxiliary
aids in the nature of hearing aids and other assistive devices and may attend litigation strategy
meetings of a board or commission to interpret for a deaf board member without violating section
286.011 (8), F.S.

Effect of Bill

The bill amends the public meeting exemption to allow the risk manager and division heads of a
governmental entity to attend the closed meeting if such manager or division head is identified by the
chief administrative or executive officer as being involved in pending litigation.

The bill requires a person attending the closed attorney-client session to agree not to disclose any part
of the discussion that took place during such session until conclusion of the litigation, unless ordered by
a court. This new requirement could be considered an expansion of the current public meeting
exemption as persons would not be allowed to attend who were previously authorized if they do not
agree to the prohibition on disclosure of information discussed during the closed session.

attorney-client confidentiality). Cf, s. 90.502(6), F.S., stating that a discussion or activity that is not a meeting for purposes of s.
286.011, F.S., shall not be construed to waive the attorney-client privilege. Andsee, Florida Parole and Probation Commission v.
Thomas, 364 So. 2d 480 (Fla. 1st DCA 1978), stating that all decisions taken by legal counsel to a public board need not be made or
approved by the board; thus, the decision to appeal made by legal counsel after private discussions with the individual members ofthe
board did not violate s. 286.011, F.S.
4 The court reporter's notes must be fully transcribed and filed with the entity's clerk within a reasonable time after the meeting.
5 At the conclusion ofthe attorney-client session, the meeting must be reopened and the person chairing the meeting must announce
the termination ofthe session.
6 Section 286.011(8), F.S. .
7 School Board ofDuval County v. Florida Publishing Company, 670 So. 2d at 101. Andsee, Zorc v. City ofVero Beach, 722 So. 2d
891,898 (Fla. 4th DCA 1998), review denied, 735 So. 2d 1284 (Fla. 1999) (city charter provision requiring that city clerk attend all
council meetings does not authorize clerk to attend closed attorney-client session; municipality may not authorize what the Legislature
has expressly forbidden); and Attorney General Opinion 01-10 (clerk ofcourt not authorized to attend).
8 Attorney General Opinion 98-06. Andsee, Zorc v. City ofVero Beach, 722 So. 2d at 898 (attendance of Special Counsel
authorized).
STORAGE NAME: h0405.GAP.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 3/21/2010



The bill further expands the current public meeting exemption by prohibiting a person who is an
adverse party of the litigation from attending the closed attorney-client session. That means a staff
person or member of the board or commission who currently is legally authorized to attend a closed
attorney-client session, may be prohibited from attending future closed sessions if such person or
member is an adverse party to the litigation being discussed.

The new prohibitions created by the bill related to attendance at closed attorney-client sessions appear
to serve as an expansion of the current public meeting exemption. As such, it appears the bill requires
a public necessity as mandated by the State Constitution.9 In addition, bills creating or expanding a
public record or public meeting exemption typically provide for future review and repeal of the
exemption pursuant to the Open Government Sunset Review Act. 10 This bill does not provide such
provision.

Finally, the bill reorganizes the exemption and provides editorial changes.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1 amends s. 286.011, F.S., allowing additional persons to attend a private meeting between a
governmental entity and the entity's attorney to discuss pending litigation to which the governmental
entity is a party.

Section 2 provides an effective date of upon becoming a law.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

None.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

None.

III. COMMENTS

9 Section 24(c), Art. I of the State Constitution.
10 See s. 119.15, F.S.
STORAGE NAME: h0405.GAP.doc
DATE: 3/21/2010

PAGE: 4



A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

The bill does not appear to require cities or counties to spend funds or take an action requiring the
expenditure of funds; reduce the authority that cities or counties have to raise revenues in the
aggregate; or reduce the percentage of a shared state tax or premium sales tax received by cities or
counties.

2. Other:

Vote Requirement
Article I, s. 24(c) of the State Constitution, requires a two-thirds vote of the members present and
voting for passage of a newly created or expanded public record or public meeting exemption.
Because the bill creates additional prohibitions regarding attendance at closed attorney-client
sessions, it could be argued that the bill expands the current pUblic meeting exemption for such
sessions. As such, it appears the bill requires a two-thirds vote for final passage.

Public Necessity Statement
Article I, s. 24(c) of the State Constitution, requires a public necessity statement for a newly created
or expanded public record or public meeting exemption. Because the bill creates additional
prohibitions regarding attendance at closed attorney-client sessions, it could be argued that the bill
expands the current public meeting exemption for such sessions. As such, it appears the bill
requires a public necessity statement.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

None.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

Excerpt from the Government-In-The Sunshine Manual on closed attorney-client meetings11

In rejecting the argument that the exemption should be construed so as to allow staff to attend closed
attorney-client sessions, the courts have noted that individual board members are free to meet privately
with staff at any time since "staff members are not subject to the Sunshine Law. ,,12

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

11 Excerpt from the Government-In-The-Sunshine Manual, 2009 Edition, Vohnne 31, at 28.
12 Zorc v. City ofVero Beach, 722 So. 2d at 899. Accord, School Board ofDuval County v. Florida Publishing Company, 670 So. 2d
at 101. Cj, Attorney General Opinion 95-06 (s. 286.011(8), F.S., does not authorize the temporary adjournment and reconvening of
meetings in order for members who are attending such a session to leave the room and consult with others outside the meeting).
STORAGE NAME: h0405.GAP.doc PAGE: 5
DATE: 3/21/2010



FLORIDA

HB405

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1 A bill to be entitled

2 An act relating to public meetings; amending s. 286.011,

3 F.S.; expanding persons authorized to attend a private

4 meeting between a governmental entity and the entity's

5 attorneys to discuss pending litigation to which the

6 governmental entity is a party before a court or

7 administrative agency; revising and providing additional

8 conditions precedent to such private meetings; providing

9 an effective date.

10

11 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the state of Florida:

12

13 Section 1. Subsection (8) of section 286.011, Florida

14 Statutes, is amended to read:

15 286.011 Public meetings and records; public inspection;

16 criminal and civil penalties.-

17 (8) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (1), any

18 board or commission of any state agency or authority or any

19 agency or authority of any county, municipal corporation, or

20 political subdivision, and the chief administrative or executive

21 officer of the governmental entity, and the risk manager and

22 division heads of the governmental entity identified by the

23 chief administrative or executive officer as being involved in

24 pending litigation may meet in private with the entity's

25 attorneys attorney to discuss pending litigation to which the

26 entity is presently a party before a court or administrative

27 agency, if provided that the follmling eonditions are ffiet:

28 (a) The entity gives reasonable public notice of the time

Page 1of 3

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0405-00



FLORIDA

HB405

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

29 and date of the attorney-client session and the names of persons

30 who will be attending the session.

31 (b) The session commences as an open meeting at which the

32 person chairing the meeting announces the commencement and

33 estimated length of the attorney-client session and the names of

34 the persons attending.

35 ~ The entity's attorney advises shall advise the entity

36 at the fr public meeting that he or she desires advice concerning

37 the litigation, which advisory announcement may be made

38 immediately before the attorney-client session begins.

39 (d)+et The subject matter of the session is ffieeting shall

40 ee confined to settlement negotiations or strategy sessions

41 relating related to litigation expenditures.

42 (e) A person who is an adverse party to the litigation is

43 not permitted to attend the attorney-client session.

44 i!l+e+ The entire session is shall be recorded by a

45 certified court reporter. The reporter shall record the times of

46 commencement and termination of the session, all discussion and

47 proceedings, the names of all persons present at any time, and

48 the names of all persons speaking. No portion of the session

49 shall be off the record. The court reporter's notes must shall

50 be fully transcribed and filed with the entity's clerk within a

51 reasonable time after the meeting.

52 Jgl+d+ The entity shall give reasonable publie notice of

53 the tiffie and date of the attorney client session and the naffies

54 of persons Hho ',iill be attending the session. The session shall

55 COffiffience at an open ffieeting at ".hieh the persons chairing the

56 ffieeting shall announce the commencement and estimated length of

Page 2 of3

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0405-00



FLORIDA

HB405

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

57 the attorney client session and the naffles of the persons

58 attending. At the conclusion of the attorney-client session, the

59 meeting is shall be reopened, and the person chairing the

60 meeting announces shall announce the termination of the

61 attorney-client session.

62 (h)4€+ The transcript is shall be made part of the public

63 record upon conclusion of the litigation.

64 (i) A person in attendance at the attorney-client session

65 agrees not to disclose any part of the discussion that took

66 place during the session until the conclusion of the litigation

67 unless ordered by the court.

68 Section 2. This act shall take effect upon becoming a law.

Page 3 of3

CODING: Words striol,en are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0405-00





HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

BILL #: H8 625 Voter Information Cards
SPONSOR(S): Gibson
TIED BILLS: IDEN.lSIM. BILLS: S8 192

REFERENCE

1) Govemmental Affairs Policy Committee

2) Military &Local Affairs Policy Committee

3) Economic Development & Community Affairs Policy
Council

4) _

5) _

ACTION ANALY

McDo

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The bill requires the voter information card prescribed in s. 97.071, F.S., to include the address of the polling
place. If an elector's address of legal residence or polling place address changes, the supervisor of elections
must send the elector a new voter information card. For any elector registered to vote on July 1, 2010, the
supervisor of elections has until 30 days before the next supervisor-administered election in which the elector
is eligible to vote to include the polling place address on the elector's voter information card.

Currently, every supervisor of elections must furnish a voter information card to every registered voter in the
supervisor's county. The card must include date of registration; full name of elector; party affiliation; date of
birth; legal residence address; precinct number; supervisor's name and contact information; and other
information deemed necessary by the supervisor. Replacement cards are provided free of charge. New cards
are issued automatically when a voter's name, address, or party affiliation changes. Sixty-one counties include
the polling place address on the voter information card.

The bill takes effect July 1, 2010.

There will be a fiscal impact on counties that do not include the polling place address on the voter information
card. See "Fiscal Comments."

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h0625.GAP.doc
DATE: 2118/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Present Situation

Currently, every supervisor of elections must furnish a voter information card to every registered voter
in the supervisor's county. The card must include the following information:

• date of registration;
• full name of elector;
• party affiliation;
• date of birth;
• legal residence address;
• precinct number;
• supervisor's name and contact information; and,
• other information deemed necessary by the supervisor. 1

Replacement cards are provided free of charge upon verification of the voter's registration, if the voter
provides a signed written request for a replacement card.2 The voter also may use the uniform
statewide voter registration application to request a replacement card.3 New cards are issued
automatically when a voter's name, address, or party affiliation changes.4

According to the Florida State Association of Supervisors of Elections, 61 counties include the polling
place address on the voter information card. Counties that do not include the polling place address are
Glades, Jefferson, Madison, Orange, Taylor, and Volusia.5

Effect of Proposed Changes

The bill requires the voter information card prescribed in s. 97.071, F.S., to include the address ofthe
polling place. If an elector's address of legal residence or polling place address changes, the
supervisor of elections must send the elector a new voter information card. For any elector registered
to vote on July 1, 2010, the supervisor of elections has until 30 days before the next supervisor-

1 s. 97.071(1), F.S.
2 s. 97.071(2), F.S.
3 s. 97.052(1), F.S.
4 s. 97.071(3), F.s. See also s. 97.1031, F.S.
S Information received from the Florida State Association of Supervisors ofElections, February 23,2010.
STORAGE NAME: h0625.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 2/18/2010



administered election in which the elector is eligible to vote to include the polling place address on the
elector's voter information card.

8. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1. Amends s. 97.01, F.S., to add polling place address to the information required on the voter
information card required to be given to all registered voters residing in a Supervisor of Elections county
and to issue the voter a new card when the polling place address changes.

Section 2. Provides an effective date of July 1, 2010.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

8. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

See "Fiscal Comments."

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

None.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

The fiscal impact has not been determined for the six counties that will be required to issue new voter
information cards reflecting the polling place address. While it varies from county to county, the
average county cost to print and mail one card is approximately 52 cents. For electors who are
registered to vote on July 1, 2010, the bill would allow the supervisor until 30 days before the next
supervisor-administered election in which an elector is eligible to vote to comply with the polling place
address requirement.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

The bill is exempt from the mandate requirements because it is amending the elections laws.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

None.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

h0625.GAP.doc
2/18/2010

PAGE: 3



C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

h0625.GAP.doc
2/18/2010

PAGE: 4



FLORIDA H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

HB 625 2010

1 A bill to be entitled

2 An act relating to voter information cards; amending s.

3 97.071, F.S.; requiring that voter information cards

4 contain the address of the polling place of the registered

5 voter; requiring a supervisor of elections to issue a new

6 voter information card to a voter upon a change in a

7 voter's address of legal residence or a change in a

8 voter's polling place address; providing instructions for

9 implementation by the supervisors of elections; providing

10 an effective date.

11

12 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the state of Florida:

13

14 Section 1. Section 97.071, Florida Statutes, is amended to

15 read:

16

17

97.071 Voter information card.-

(1) A voter information card shall be furnished by the

(a) Voter's registration number.

(b) Date of registration.

(c) Full name.

(d) Party affiliation.

(e) Date of birth.

(f) Address of legal residence.

(g) Precinct number.

(h) Polling place address.

Jll~ Name of supervisor and contact information of

26

27

28

18 supervisor to all registered voters residing in the supervisor's

19 county. The card must contain:

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 1of 2

CODING: Words striQken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0625-00



FLORIDA

HB625

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

29 supervisor.

30 lil~ Other information deemed necessary by the

31 supervisor.

32 (2) A voter may receive a replacement voter information

33 card by providing a signed, written request for a replacement

34 card to a voter registration official. Upon verification of

35 registration, the supervisor shall issue the voter a duplicate

36 card without charge.

37 (3) In the case of a change of name, address of legal

38 residence, polling place address, or party affiliation, the

39 supervisor shall issue the voter a new voter information card.

40 Section 2. The supervisor must meet the requirements of

41 this act for any elector who is registered to vote on July 1,

42 2010, no later than 30 days before the first election

43 administered by the supervisor in which the elector is eligible

44 to vote.

45 Section 3. This act shall take effect July 1, 2010.

Page 2of 2

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0625-00



...ll.

o
.......
U1



BILL #:
SPONSOR(S):
TIED BILLS:

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

HB 1075 Recertification of Minority Business Enterprises
Braynon and others

IDEN./SIM. BILLS: CS/SB 1612

REFERENCE

1) Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

2) Policy Council

3) Economic Development & Community Affairs Policy
Council

4) _

5) _

ACTION

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The Office of Supplier Diversity (office) is established within the Department of Management Services
(department) to assist minority business enterprises (MBEs) in becoming suppliers of commodities, services,
and construction to state government. One of the duties of the office is to certify MBEs pursuant to specified
statutory criteria, and to recertify MBEs at least once every two years. Recertification is accomplished via a
process in which a vendor enters information in online forms, prints the forms, has the forms notarized, and
returns the forms to the office.

The bill amends the minority business enterprise recertification process by authorizing that affidavits to recertify
minority business enterprises be administered by electronic signature in lieu of administration by or before any
judge, clerk, or deputy clerk of any court of record in the state or any notary public in the state. According to
the Office of Supplier Diversity in the Department of Management Services, this change in law would fully
automate the recertification process.

The bill has no fiscal impact.

The bill takes effect July 1, 2010.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h1075.GAP.doc
DATE: 3/17/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state bUdget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Present Situation
The Office of Supplier Diversity (office) is established within the Department of Management Services
(department) to assist minority business enterprises (MBEs) in becoming suppliers of commodities,
services, and construction to state government.1 One of the duties of the office is to certify MBEs2

pursuant to specified statutory criteria,3 and to recertify MBEs at least once every two years.
Recertification is accomplished via a process in which a vendor enters information in online forms,
prints the forms, has the forms notarized, and returns the forms to the office.

The Uniform Electronic Transaction Act in Ch. 668, F.S., permits governmental agencies to accept
electronic signatures,4 and defines an "electronic signature" as an electronic sound, symbol, or process
attached to or logically associated with a record and executed or adopted by a person with the intent to
sign the record.5

Effect of Proposed Changes
The bill provides that the affidavit to recertify a minority business enterprise may be administered by
electronic signature in lieu of administration by or before any judge, clerk, or deputy clerk of any court
of record in the state or any notary public in the state.6

According to the Department of Management Services, the option of electronic signature would fully
automate the recertification process?

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1 amends s. 287.09451, F.S., to authorize that affidavits to recertify minority business
enterprises be administered by electronic signature.

Section 2 provides an effective date of July 1, 2010.

I Section 287.09451(2), F.S.
2 Minority business enterprises are defined in s. 288.703, F.S.
3 Sections 287.0943 and 287.09431, F.S., specify the requirements for certification as an MBE.
4 Section 668.50(18), F.S.
s Section 668.50(2)(h), F.S.
6 Section 92.50, F.S.
7 Analysis ofHB 1075, Department of Management Services, February 10,2010, p. 1 (on file with the Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee).
STORAGE NAME: h1075.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 3/17/2010



II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

None.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

None.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This bill does not require counties or municipalities to spend funds or to take an action requiring the
expenditure offunds. This bill does not reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with counties or
municipalities. This bill does not reduce the authority that municipalities have to raise revenue.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

None.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

h1075.GAP.doc
3/17/2010

PAGE: 3



FLORIDA

HB 1075

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

1 A bill to be entitled

2 An act relating to the recertification of minority

3 business enterprises; amending s. 287.09451, F.S.;

4 authorizing that affidavits to recertify minority business

5 enterprises be administered by electronic signature;

6 providing an effective date.

7

8 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the state of Florida:

9

10 Section 1. Paragraph (m) of subsection (4) of section

11 287.09451, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

12 287.09451 Office of Supplier Diversity; powers, duties,

13 and functions.-

14 (4) The Office of Supplier Diversity shall have the

15 following powers, duties, and functions:

16 (m) To certify minority business enterprises, as defined

17 in s. 288.703, and as specified in ss. 287.0943 and 287.09431,

18 and shall recertify such minority businesses at least once every

19 2 years. Minority business enterprises must be recertified at

20 least once every 2 years by affidavit, which may be administered

21 by electronic signature in lieu of administration by or before

22 an official listed in s. 92.50.

23 Section 2. This act shall take effect July 1, 2010.

Page 1of 1

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1075-00





BILL#:
SPONSOR(S):
TIED BILLS:

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

HB 1179 Electronic Documents Recorded in the Official Records
Grimsley and Others

IDEN.lSIM. BILLS: SB 1288

STAFF DIRECTOR

Malo ~ De La Paz

Williamso~ Williamso

ANALYSTACTION

10 Y, 0 N

REFERENCE

1) Civil Justice &Courts Policy Committee

2) Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

3) Criminal & Civil Justice Policy Council

4) _

5) _

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

Several of the clerks of the court and county recorders were accepting electronic recordings relating to real
property prior to the 2006 adoption of the Uniform Real Property Electronic Recording Act and others began
accepting electronic documents for recording before rules contemplated in the act were formally adopted.

The bill retroactively and prospectively ratifies the validity of all such electronic documents submitted to and
accepted by a county recorder for recordation, whether or not the electronic documents were in strict
compliance with the statutory or regulatory framework in effect at that time. The bill provides that all such
recorded documents are deemed to provide constructive notice. It also clarifies that changes made by the bill
do not alter the duty of the clerk or recorder to comply with the Uniform Real Property Electronic Recording Act
or rules adopted by the Department of State pursuant to that act.

The bill appears to have no fiscal impact.

The bill provides that it is effective upon becoming a law.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h1179b.GAP.doc
DATE: 3/17/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Current Situation
In 2000, the Legislature adopted the Uniform Electronic Transaction Act (UETA).1 This Act was based
on work by the National Conference of Commissioners on Uniform State Laws (NCCUSL). Many,
including NCCUSL, believed the UETA permitted the electronic creation, submission, and recording of
electronic documents affecting real property.

Some county recorders began accepting electronic recordings based on the authorities facially granted
under the UETA. As such, a significant number of electronic documents were filed.

Some legal commentators disagreed, feeling the UETA alone did not authorize the recording of
electronic documents affecting title to real property. That disagreement, and the natural conservative
nature of most real estate professionals, resulted in a limitation on the use and acceptability of
electronic documents in real estate transactions.

To address this problem, NCCUSL promulgated a separate uniform law to address these perceived
shortcomings. A variation of the NCCUSL uniform law was adopted by the by the Legislature in 2006
and was called the Uniform Real Property Electronic Recording Act (URPERA).2

The adoption of the URPERA, as a matter of statutory interpretation, called into question the efficacy of
electronic documents recorded under UETA. The URPERA requires the Department of State, by rule
to prescribe standards to implement the act in consultation with the Electronic Recording Advisory
Committee.3

,4 It also directs any county recorder who elects to receive, index, store, archive,. and
transmit electronic documents to do so in compliance with standards established by rules adopted by
the Department of State.5

Before the Department of State could begin establishing rules, several county recorders began
accepting electronic recordings and, as a result, discovered significant cost and labor savings. At

1 See s. 668.50, F.S., part II of chapter 668, F.S.
2 See s. 695.27, F.S.
3 Section 695.27(5)(a), F.S.
4 Section 695.27(5)(a), F.S., creates the Electronic Recording Advisory Committee. It also requires the Florida Association ofCourt
Clerks and Comptrollers to provide administrative support to the Department of State and the committee at no charge. The committee
is composed ofnine members who serve one year terms.
5 Section 695.27(4)(b), F.S.
STORAGE NAME: h1179b.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 3/17/2010



present, Rule 1B-31 , Florida Administrative Code, implements the URPERA and provides guidelines for
accepting electronic documents.

Effect of the Bill
The bill creates s. 695.28, F.S., to retroactively and prospectively ratify the validity of all electronic
documents affecting title to real property submitted to and accepted by a county recorder for
recordation, notwithstanding possible technical defects.

The bill provides that all documents, previously or hereafter accepted by a county recorder for
recordation electronically, whether under the UETA or the URPERA, are deemed to be validly recorded
and provides notice to all persons notwithstanding that:

• Such documents may have been received and recorded before the formal adoption of rules by
the Department of State; or

• Defects in, deviations from, or the inability to demonstrate strict compliance with any statute,
rule, or procedure to electronically record documents that may have been in effect at the time
the electronic documents were submitted for recording.

The bill clarifies that the newly created s. 695.28, F.S., does not alter the duty of the clerk or recorder to
comply with the URPERA or rules adopted by the Department of State pursuant to that act.

Finally, the bill adds to the URPERA cross-references for the newly created section and provides that
the newly created section also may be referred to as the Uniform Real Property Electronic Recording
Act.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1 amends s. 695.27, F.S., relating to the Uniform Real Property Recording Act.

Section 2 creates s. 695.28, F.S., relating to the validity of electronically recorded documents.

Section 3 provides this act is intended to clarify existing law and applies prospectively and retroactively.

Section 4 provides that the bill is effective upon becoming a law.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS &ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

None.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

h1179b.GAP.doc
3/17/2010

PAGE: 3



D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

None.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This bill does not appear to require counties or municipalities to take an action requiring the
expenditure to funds, reduce the authority that counties or municipalities have to raise revenue in the
aggregate, nor reduce the percentage of state tax shared with counties or municipalities.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

The bill clarifies that the newly created s. 695.28, F.S., does not alter the duty of the clerk or recorder to
comply with the URPERA or rules adopted by the Department of State pursuant to that act.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

None.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

h1179b.GAP.doc
3/17/2010

PAGE: 4



FLORIDA

HB 1179

H 0 USE o F REP RESENTATIVES

2010

1 A bill to be entitled

2 An act relating to electronic documents recorded in the

3 official records; amending s. 695.27, F.S.; providing for

4 the inclusion of an additional statute in the Uniform Real

5 Property Electronic Recording Act; delaying termination of

6 the Electronic Recording Advisory Committee; creating s.

7 695.28, F.S.; declaring that certain electronic documents

8 accepted for recordation are deemed validly recorded;

9 providing intent to clarify existing law; providing for

10 retroactive application; providing an effective date.

11

12 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the state of Florida:

13

14 Section 1. Section 695.27, Florida Statutes, is amended to

15 read:

16 695.27 Uniform Real Property Electronic Recording Act.-

17 (1) SHORT TITLE.-This section and s. 695.28 may be cited

18 as the "Uniform Real Property Electronic Recording Act."

19 (2) DEFINITIONS.-As used in this section and s. 695.28:

20 (a) "Document" means information that is:

21 1. Inscribed on a tangible medium or that is stored in an

22 electronic or other medium and is retrievable in perceivable

23 form; and

24 2. Eligible to be recorded in the Official Records, as

25 defined in s. 28.222, and maintained by a county recorder.

26 (b) "Electronic" means relating to technology having

27 electrical, digital, magnetic, wireless, optical,

28 electromagnetic, or similar capabilities.

Page 1of 7

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1179-00



FLORIDA

HB 1179

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

(c) "Electronic document" means a document that is

received by a county recorder in an electronic form.

(d) "Electronic signature" means an electronic sound,

symbol, or process that is executed or adopted by a person with

the intent to sign the document and is attached to or logically

associated with a document such that, when recorded, it is

assigned the same document number or a consecutive page number

immediately following such document.

(e) "Person" means an individual, corporation, business

trust, estate, trust, partnership, limited liability company,

association, joint venture, public corporation, government or

governmental subdivision, agency, instrumentality, or any other

legal or commercial entity.

(f) "State" means a state of the United States, the

District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, the United States Virgin

Islands, or any territory or insular possession subject to the

jurisdiction of the United States.

(3) VALIDITY OF ELECTRONIC DOCUMENTS.-

(a) If a law requires, as a condition for recording, that

a document be an original, be on paper or another tangible

medium, or be in writing, the requirement is satisfied by an

electronic document satisfying the requirements of this section.

(b) If a law requires, as a condition for recording, that

a document be signed, the requirement is satisfied by an

electronic signature.

(c) A requirement that a document or a signature

associated with a document be notarized, acknowledged, verified,

witnessed, or made under oath is satisfied if the electronic

Page 2of 7

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1179-00



FLORIDA

HB 1179

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

57 signature of the person authorized to perform that act, and all

58 other information required to be included, is attached to or

59 logically associated with the document or signature. A physical

60 or electronic image of a stamp, impression, or seal need not

61 accompany an electronic signature.

62 (4) RECORDING OF DOCUMENTS.-

63 (a) In this subsection, the term "paper document" means a

64 document that is received by the county recorder in a form that

65 is not electronic.

66 (b) A county recorder:

67 1. Who implements any of the functions listed in this

68 section shall do so in compliance with standards established by

69 rule by the Department of State.

70 2. May receive, index, store, archive, and transmit

71 electronic documents.

72 3. May provide for access to, and for search and retrieval

73 of, documents and information by electronic means.

74 4. Who accepts electronic documents for recording shall

75 continue to accept paper documents as authorized by state law

76 and shall place entries for both types of documents in the same

77 index.

78 5. May convert paper documents accepted for recording into

79 electronic form.

80 6. May convert into electronic form information recorded

81 before the county recorder began to record electronic documents.

82 7. May agree with other officials of a state or a

83 political subdivision thereof, or of the United States, on

84 procedures or processes to facilitate the electronic

Page 3 of 7

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1179-00



FLORIDA

HB 1179

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

85 satisfaction of prior approvals and conditions precedent to

86 recording.

87 (5) ADMINISTRATION AND STANDARDS.-

88 (a) The Department.of State, by rule pursuant to ss.

89 120.536(1) and 120.54, shall prescribe standards to implement

90 this section in consultation with the Electronic Recording

91 Advisory Committee, which is hereby created. The Florida

92 Association of Court Clerks and Comptrollers shall provide

93 administrative support to the committee and technical support to

94 the Department of State and the committee at no charge. The

95 committee shall consist of nine members, as follows:

96 1. Five members appointed by the Florida Association of

97 Court Clerks and Comptrollers, one of whom must be an official

98 from a large urban charter county where the duty to maintain

99 official records exists in a county office other than the clerk

100 of court or comptroller.

101 2. One attorney appointed by the Real Property, Probate

102 and Trust Law Section of The Florida Bar Association.

103 3. Two members appointed by the Florida Land Title

104 Association.

105 4. One member appointed by the Florida Bankers

106 Association.

107 (b) Appointed members shall serve a 1-year term. All

108 initial terms shall commence on the effective date of this act.

109 Members shall serve until their successors are appointed. An

110 appointing authority may reappoint a member for successive

111 terms. A vacancy on the committee shall be filled in the same

112 manner in which the original appointment was made, and the term

Page 4 of?

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb11?9-00



FLORIDA

HB 1179

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

113 shall be for the balance of the unexpired term.

114 (c) The first meeting of the committee shall be within 60

115 days of the effective date of this act. Thereafter, the

116 committee shall meet at the call of the chair, but at least

117 annually.

118 (d) The members of the committee shall serve without

119 compensation and shall not claim per diem and travel expenses

120 from the Secretary of State.

121 (e) To keep the standards and practices of county

122 recorders in this state in harmony with the standards and

123 practices of recording offices in other jurisdictions that enact

124 substantially this section and to keep the technology used by

125 county recorders in this state compatible with technology used

126 by recording offices in other jurisdictions that enact

127 substantially this section, the Department of State, in

128 consultation with the committee, so far as is consistent with

129 the purposes, policies, and provisions of this section, in

130 adopting, amending, and repealing standards, shall consider:

131 1. Standards and practices of other jurisdictions.

132 2. The most recent standards adopted by national standard-

133 setting bodies, such as the Property Records Industry

134 Association.

135 3. The views of interested persons and governmental

136 officials and entities.

137 4. The needs of counties of varying size, population, and

138 resources.

139 5. Standards requiring adequate information security

140 protection to ensure that electronic documents are accurate,

Page 50f7

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1179-00



FLORIDA

HB 1179

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

141 authentic, adequately preserved, and resistant to tampering.

142 (f) The committee shall terminate on July 1, 2013 ~.

143 (6) UNIFORMITY OF APPLICATION AND CONSTRUCTION.-In

144 applying and construing this section, consideration must be

145 given to the need to promote uniformity of the law with respect

146 to its subject matter among states that enact it.

147 (7) RELATION TO ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES IN GLOBAL AND

148 NATIONAL COMMERCE ACT.-This section modifies, limits, and

149 supersedes the federal Electronic Signatures in Global and

150 National Commerce Act, 15 U.S.C. SSe 7001 et seq., but this

151 section does not modify, limit, or supersede s. 101(c) of that

152 act, 15 U.S.C. s. 7001(c), or authorize electronic delivery of

153 any of the notices described in s. 103(b) of that act, 15 U.S.C.

154 s. 7003 (b) .

155 Section 2. Section 695.28, Florida Statutes is created to

156 read:

157 695.28 Validity of recorded electronic documents.-

158 (1) A document that is otherwise entitled to be recorded

159 and that was or is submitted to the clerk of the court or county

160 recorder by electronic means and accepted for recordation is

161 deemed validly recorded and provides notice to all persons

162 notwithstanding:

163 (a) That the document was received and accepted for

164 recordation before the Department of State adopted standards

165 implementing's. 695.27; or

166 (b) Any defects in, deviations from, or the inability to

167 demonstrate strict compliance with any statute, rule, or

168 procedure to submit or record an electronic document in effect

Page 6of 7

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1179-00



FLORIDA

HB 1179

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

169 at the time the electronic document was submitted for recording.

170 (2) This section does not alter the duty of the clerk or

171 recorder to comply 'with s. 695.27 or rules adopted pursuant to

172 that section.

173 Section 3. This act is intended to clarify existing law

174 and applies prospectively and retroactively.

175 Section 4. This act shall take effect upon becoming a law.

Page 7of7

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1179-00





HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

BILL #: HB 1401 Export of Goods, Commodities, & Things of Value to Foreign Countries
SPONSOR(S): Rivera
TIED BILLS: IDEN./SIM. BILLS: SB 2576

REFERENCE

1) Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

2) Government Operations Appropriations Committee

3) Economic Development & Community Affairs Policy
Council

4) _

5) _

ACTION

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The bill prohibits any official, officer, commission, board, authority, council, committee, or department of the
executive branch of state government from issuing a certificate of free sale, export certification report,
certificate of good manufacturing practices, permit, registration, license, or certification of any kind for any
good, commodity, or thing of value to a foreign determined by the United States Secretary of State to be a
state sponsor of terrorism.

The four countries currently designated by the U.S. Secretary of State as "State Sponsors of Terrorism" are
Cuba, Iran, Sudan, and Syria.

Federal law specifically prohibits certain goods or products from being sent to countries designated as "state
sponsors of terrorism;" however, certain goods or products classified as "humanitarian" are permitted to be
transported to such countries. Federal law and regulations and guidelines for such enforcement provided by
the Office of the U.S. Secretary of State govern what can be done by the various states.

The Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services' issues a certificate of free sale, also known as
a certificate for export or a certificate to foreign governments, to exporters of products to foreign countries.
These are required by some countries as assurance from a foreign agency that the products listed on the
certificate are freely sold and manufactured in the U.S. Some foreign destinations also require a "certificate of
origin" for the purpose of authenticating the country of origin of the merchandise being shipped. Some require
an Apostille from the Florida Department of State, which is a document that certifies that the department's
notary who notified the documents is, in fact, a notary.

Currently, the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services issues approximately 1,350 certificates per
year. On average, the department turns down about 10 requests per year for the "state sponsors of terrorism"
restriction. These refusals almost always relate to trade with Cuba.

There is no known fiscal impact caused by the bill.

The bill takes effect upon becoming a law.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h1401.GAP.doc
DATE: 3/20/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Present Situation

State Sponsors of Terrorism
Countries that are determined by the United States Secretary of State to have repeatedly provided
support for acts of international terrorism are designated as "State Sponsors of Terrorism" and are
subject to sanctions under the Export Administration Act,1 the Arms Export Control Act,2 and the
Foreign Assistance Act.3 The four main categories of sanctions resulting from designations under these
acts are: restrictions on U.S. foreign assistance, a ban on defense exports and sales, certain controls
over exports of dual use items, and miscellaneous financial and other restrictions.4 Some of the
miscellaneous restrictions include opposition to loans by the World Bank and other financial institutions,
removal of diplomatic immunity to allow victims of terrorism to file civil lawsuits, denial of tax credits to
companies and individuals for income earned in named countries, authority to prohibit U.S. citizens
from engaging in transactions without a Treasury Department license, and prohibition of Department of
Defense contracts above $100,000 with companies controlled by terrorist-list states.5

Some types of humanitarian aid are permitted with countries on the "State Sponsors of Terrorism" list.
For example, the United States is the largest contributor for humanitarian aid to Sudan which is one of
the four countries on the state sponsors of terrorism list.

The four countries currently designated by the U.S. Secretary of State as "State Sponsors of Terrorism"
are Cuba, Iran, Sudan, and Syria.6

Certificate of Origin and Free Sale - Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services
The Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services issues a "certificate of free sale," also
known as a "certificate for export" or a "certificate to foreign governments," to exporters of products to
foreign countries. These are required by some countries as assurance from a foreign agency that the
products listed on the certificate are freely sold and manufactured in the U.S. Some foreign destinations

1 Section 60), U.S. Export Administration Act.
2 Section 40, U.S. Arms Export Control Act.
3 Section 620A, U.S. Foreign Assistance Act.
4 U.S. Department of State website, http://www.state.gov/s/ct/cI4151.htm, Office ofCoordinator for Counterterrorism, State Sponsors
ofTerrorism, last viewed on March 22,2010.
5 U.S. Department of State website, http://www.state.gov/s/ct, Country Reports on Terrorism, last viewed on March 22,2010.
6 See Footnote 5.
STORAGE NAME: h1401.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 3/20/2010



also require a "certificate of origin" for the purpose of authenticating the country of origin of the
merchandise being shipped.

Some foreign governments require an ApostiIJe from the Florida Department of State, which is a
document that certifies that the department's notary who notarized the documents is, in fact, a notary.

Requirements to obtain a certificate of origin and free sale from the Department of Agriculture and
Consumer Services are as follows:

• The exporter must provide documented proof that they are a registered Florida corporation or
company, and

• The exporter must provide documented proof that they have been inspected by their County
Health Department, Division of Food Industry, or FDA.

Between 90 percent and 95 percent of the exporters require a certificate of origin and free sale.

Currently, the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services issues approximately 1,350
certificates per year. On the average, the department turns down about 10 requests per year for the
"state sponsors of terrorism" restriction. These refusals almost always relate to trade with Cuba.

Effect of Proposed Changes

The bill prohibits any official, officer, commission, board, authority, council, committee, or department of
the executive branch of state government from issuing a certificate of free sale, export certification
report, certificate of good manufacturing practices, permit, registration, license, or certification of any
kind for any good, commodity, or thing of value to a foreign country determined by the United States
Secretary of State to be a state sponsor of terrorism?

There is no indication as to what agencies might fall under the prohibition. It is known that the
Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services has been involved in issuing certain documents as
described above for several years. This, in part, grew out of cattlemen and others involved with Florida
agribusiness exporting products to foreign countries.

State agencies must abide by the federal requirements regarding export to state sponsors of terrorism.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1. Creates an unnumbered section of law that prohibits a state agency from exporting goods,
commodities, and things of value to foreign countries that support international terrorism.

Section 2. Provides an effective date of becoming a law.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

7 In subsection (2), the bill references provisions inthe United States Code in determining what determines what foreign countries are
covered under prohibition on issuance ofcertain certificates. The bill refers to 50 U.S.CC. App. S. 24050) which requires a validated
license for the export ofgoods or technology to a country that repeatedly provides support for international acts ofterrorism and the
export of those goods could make a significant contribution to the military potential of the country, including its military logistics
capability, or could enhance the ability of the country to support acts of international terrorism. It also refers to 22 U.S.C. s. 2371(a)
which prohibits assistance under the Agricultural Trade Development and Assistance Act of 1954 (7 U.S.C. 1691 et seq.), the Peace
Corps Act (22 U.S.CC. 2501 et seq), or the Export-Import Bank Act of 1945 (12 U.S.C. 635 et seq.). Finally, 22 U.S.C. s. 2780(d)
relates to activities that aid or abet international proliferation ofnuclear explosive devices, or the acquisition or stockpiling ofsuch or
chemical, biological, or radiological weapons.
STORAGE NAME: h1401.GAP.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 3/20/2010



2. Expenditures:

None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

Unknown fiscal impact. It is not known how many businesses, if any, could be impacted by the bill
because of the federal prohibitions.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

According to the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services, there is no fiscal impact on the
agency because the department does not issues documentation to any country identified by the United
States Secretary of State as having provided support acts of terrorism.8

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This bill does not require counties or municipalities to spend funds or to take an action requiring the
expenditure of funds. This bill does not reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with counties or
municipalities. This bill does not reduce the authority that municipalities have to raise revenue.

2. Other:

No known constitutional concerns.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

None.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

The Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services stated there is a possibility that litigation will be
caused by this legislation; however, no detail was given concerning the grounds for the possible
Iitigation.9

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITIEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

8 Analysis ofHB 1401 by the Department ofAgriculture and Consumer Services, March 16,2010, p. 1.
9 Information provided by the Department ofAgriculture and Consumer Services on March 22, 2010, which is on file with the
Governmental Affairs Policy Committee.
STORAGE NAME: h1401.GAP.doc PAGE: 4
DATE: 3/20/2010



FLORIDA

HB 1401

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1 A bill to be entitled

2 An act relating to the export of goods, commodities, and

3 things of value to foreign countries; defining the term

4 "state agency"; prohibiting state agencies from issuing

5 certain forms of documentation for any good, commodity, or

6 thing of value to be exported to certain foreign

7 countries; providing an effective date.

8

9 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the state of Florida:

10

11 Section 1. Export of goods, commodities, and things of

12 value to foreign countries that support international terrorism;

13 prohibited documentation.-

14 (1) As used in this section, the term "state agency" means

15 any official, officer, commission, board, authority, council,

16 committee, or department of the executive branch of state

17 government.

18 (2) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, a state

19 agency may not issue a certificate of free sale, export

20 certification report, certificate of good manufacturing

21 practices, permit, registration, license, or certification of

22 any kind for any good, commodity, or thing of value to be

23 exported to a foreign country if the United States Secretary of

24 State, pursuant to 50 U.S.C. App. s. 2405(j), 22 U.S.C. s.

25 2371(a), or 22 U.S.C. s. 2780(d), determines that the government

26 of that country has repeatedly provided support for acts of

27 international terrorism.

28 Section 2. This act shall take effect upon becoming a law.

Page 1of 1

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1401-00



:x:
0:1U'I--



HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

Bill #: HB 1511 Effective Public Notices by Governmental Entities
SPONSOR(S): Workman
TIED BillS: IDEN.lSIM. BillS:

REFERENCE

1) Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

2) Military & Local Affairs Policy Committee

3) Economic Development & Community Affairs Policy
Council

4) _

5) _

ACTION ANALYS+- /rAFF DIRE

________ HaU~~Williamso-

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

Current law provides requirements for publishing legal notices and official advertisements. Publications must
be in a newspaper that is printed and published at least once a week and that contains at least 25 percent of
its words in the English language. In addition, the newspaper must qualify or be entered to qualify as
periodicals matter at the post office in the county where published, and be generally available to the public for
the purpose of publication of official or other notices.

The bill authorizes a local government to use its publicly accessible website for legally required advertisements
and public notices. The use of such website constitutes legal notice.

The bill defines "publicly accessible website" to mean a local government's official website that is accessible on
the Internet. If specifically authorized by ordinance, a local government may use its website for legally required
advertisements and public notices if:

• A public library or other governmental facility providing free access to the Internet during regular
business hours exists within the jurisdictional boundaries of the local government;

• The local government provides notice to its residents at least once per year in a newspaper of general
circulation, or the local government's newsletter or periodical, or another publication mailed or delivered
to all residents or property owners within its jurisdictional boundaries, indicating that residents can
register with the local government to receive all advertisements and public notices by first-class mail or
bye-mail; and

• The local government maintains a registry of names, addresses and e-mail addresses of residents who
request in writing that they receive advertisements and notices by first-class mail or bye-mail.

Advertisements and public notices pUblished on a publicly accessible website must be conspicuously placed
on the homepage of that website or must be accessible through a direct link from the homepage. The
advertisement must indicate the date on which it was first published on the website.

The bill also authorizes a local government with an authorized government access channel to include on such
channel a summary of all advertisements and public notices published on its website.

Finally, the bill provides specific authorizations for a local government to advertise or notice on its publicly
accessible website provided certain requirements are met.

The bill may reduce local government expenditures associated with publishing required notices and
advertisements in the newspaper; however, local governments might have to expend funds to create, maintain
and issue correspondence from a registry of persons requesting notifications by first-class mail or e-mail. In
addition, the bill also may cause a loss of revenue to the private sector and a loss of revenue to the state
associated with corporate income tax revenue.

This bill has an effective date of October 1, 2010.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h1511.GAP.doc
DATE: 3/17/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Background

The publication of legal notices in newspapers is a long established practice in Florida and throughout
the United States. According to newspaper trade associations and independent analysts, "it's unclear
how much newspapers collect in total from such publicly financed advertising.,,1 At one newspaper
company, Trib Total Media which runs the Pittsburgh Tribune-Review and other newspapers in western
Pennsylvania, about 7 percent of revenues come from government-funded legal notices. Newspaper
advertising revenues have been declining in recent years, 17.7 percent in 2008 alone. Classified ads
have declined at an even greater rate, 29 percent, but the ad grouping that includes legal and public
notices remains fairly stable, only declining 4.3 percent in 2008.2

The requirements for legal and official advertisements are provided in chapter 50, F.S. Current law
requires that publication must be in a newspaper that is printed and published at least once a week and
that contains at least 25 percent of its words in the English language. The newspaper must qualify or
be entered to qualify as periodicals matter at the post office in the county where published, and be
generally available to the public for the purpose of publication of official or other notices.3

When there is no weekly newspaper published in the county the advertisement may be made by
posting three copies in three different places in the county, one of which must be at the front door of the
courthouse, and by publication in the nearest county in which a newspaper is published.4

Current law also provides requirements for newspapers. A newspaper is required to have been in
existence for at least one year. Also, it must meet the requirements for periodicals matter at the post
office in the county where published.5 An exception is provided for counties in which no newspaper in
existence has been published for a year. Proof of publication also is required in the form of a uniform
affidavit.6

1 Move to Online Public Notices Looms Over Papers, USA Today, May 22,2009, http://www.usatoday.com/tech/news/2009-05-22
online-notices_N.htm (last visited March 19, 2010).
2 Move to Online Public Notices Looms Over Papers, USA Today, May 22, 2009, citing the Newspaper Association of America.
3 Section 50.011, F.S.
4 Section 50.021, F.5.
5 Section 50.031, F.S.
6 Section 50.041, F.5.
STORAGE NAME: h1511.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 3/17/2010



The amount a newspaper can charge for publication is standardized at 70 cents per square inch for the
first insertion, and 40 cents per square inch for each subsequent insertion? Where the regular
established minimum commercial rate per square inch of the newspaper publishing the official notice or
legal advertisement is greater than the per square inch rate established in statute, the minimum
commercial rate may be charged or the government agency may procure publication through bids. All
official notices and legal advertisements must be charged and paid for on the basis of 6-point type on
6-point body, unless otherwise specified in statute. There are criminal penalties for non-compliance
with these rates and charges.8

Effect of Proposed Changes

The bill creates a new section of law authorizing local governments to use its publicly accessible
website for legally required advertisements and public notices. The use of such website constitutes
legal notice.

The bill defines "publicly accessible website" to mean a local government's official website that is
accessible on the Internet. If specifically authorized by ordinance, a local government may use its
website for legally required advertisements and public notices if:

• A public library or other governmental facility providing free access to the Internet during regular
business hours exists within the jurisdictional boundaries of the local government;

• The local government provides notice to its residents at least once per year in a newspaper of
general circulation, or the local government's newsletter or periodical, or another publication
mailed or delivered to all residents or property owners within its jurisdictional boundaries,
indicating that residents can register with the local government to receive all advertisements
and public notices by first-class mail or bye-mail; and

• The local government maintains a registry of names, addresses and e-mail addresses of
residents who request in writing that they receive advertisements and notices by first-class mail
or bye-mail.

Any registry of names, addresses and e-mail addresses of residents requesting receipt of legal
advertisements and public notices by first-class mail or bye-mail is a public record unless a specific
public record exemption exists. For example, information relating to the identification or location of a
police officer or firefighter could remain protected in the database if the officer or firefighter requests in
writing the protection of such information.9

Advertisements and public notices published on a publicly accessible website must be conspicuously
placed on the homepage of that website or must be accessible through a direct link from the
homepage. The advertisement must indicate the date on which it was first published on the website.

The bill also authorizes a local government with a government access channel authorized under s.
610.109, F.S., to include on such channel a summary of all advertisements and public notices
published on its website.

The bill specifically authorizes the following advertisements or public notices on a local government's
publicly accessible website provided the previously discussed requirements are met:

• Advertisement directed by law or order or decree of court.
• Notice regarding special election or referendums. The local government responsible for

publication must publish such notice daily during the five weeks immediately preceding the
election or referendum.

7 Section 50.061(2)(a) and (b), F.S., provides that counties with a population in excess of 304,000 may charge 80 cents per square
inch for the first insertion and 60 cents per square inch for each subsequent insertion. Counties with a population in excess of
450,000 may charge 95 cents per square inch for the first insertion and 75 cents per square inch for each subsequent insertion.
8 Section 50.061, F.S.,
9 See s. 119.071(4)(d), F.S.
STORAGE NAME: h1511.GAP.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 3/17/2010



• Notice regarding the consideration of a county ordinance by the board of county commissioners.
Such notice must be provided at least 10 days before the meeting and must be published daily
during the 10 days preceding the meeting.

• Summary statements of adopted tentative county budgets.
• Advertisement of a public hearing relating to the amendment of a county budget. Such

advertisement must be published daily during the five days immediately preceding the hearing.
• Advertisement by a county water and sewer system district regarding a project to construct,

reconstruct, acquire or improve a water system or a sewer system, and of a call for sealed bids
for such projects. Such advertisement must be published daily during the three weeks
immediately preceding the date set for receipt of such bids.

• Advertisement for competitive bids to contract construction projects under the Florida Industrial
Development Financing Act.

• Notice by code enforcement boards regarding violations of a county or municipal code. Such
notice must be provided daily during the four weeks immediately preceding the hearing on the
local government's website.

• Notice of public hearings regarding the adoption of a local government comprehensive plan or
plan amendment or the approval of a compliance agreement under the Local Government
Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act. The bill provides multiple
requirements for such notice.

• Notice regarding the adoption of a municipal ordinance. Such notice must be provided daily
during the 10 days immediately preceding the adoption on the municipality's website.

• Publication of resolutions relating to municipal public improvements financed by special
assessments.

• Notice regarding hearings on municipal public improvements financed by special assessments.
Such notice must be provided daily for two weeks on the municipality's website.

• Advertisement of specified construction contracts for utilities or extensions to a previously
constructed utility. Such advertisement must be made daily for two weeks on the municipality's
website.

• Notice of intent to use the uniform method of collecting non-ad valorem assessments. Such
notice must be made daily for the four weeks immediately preceding the hearing.

• Notice by a taxing authority of its intent to adopt a millage rate and budget. Such notice must be
maintained on the local government website until completion of the hearing.

• Notice by a multicounty taxing authority of its intent to adopt a tentative budget and millage rate.
The hearing may not be held less than two days after initial publication of the advertisement on
the local government website and not later than September 18. The notice must remain on the
website until the date of the hearing.

• Notice of a specified error contained in a notice of proposed property taxes mailed to taxpayers.
• Advertisement of a solicitation of specified competitive bids or proposals for construction

projects by a county, municipality or other political subdivision. The bill provides multiple
requirements for such advertisement.

• Advertisement of a public hearing by a local government on an areawide development of
regional impact under the Florida Environmental Land and Water Management Act of 1972.

• Advertisement of funding availability through a local housing assistance plan under the State
Housing Initiatives Partnership Act.

Finally, the bill provides requirements for meeting the public disclosure system requirements for s.
403.7049, F.S., relating to local solid waste management fees.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1: Creates s. 50.0311, F.S., providing a definition, authorizing a local government to use its
publicly accessible website for legally required advertisements and public notices and providing an
optional receipt of legally required advertisements and public notices by first-class mail or e-mail.

Section 2: Amends s. 50.011, F.S., providing that a notice, advertisement, or publication on a pUblicly
accessible website of a local government constitutes legal notice.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

h1511.GAP.doc
3/17/2010

PAGE: 4



Section 3: Amends s. 50.021, F.S., providing that advertisements directed by law or order or decree of
court to be made in a county without a published newspaper may be made by publication on a publicly
accessible website.

Section 4: Amends s. 50.051, F.S., clarifying provisions.

Section 5: Amends s. 50.061, F.S., clarifying provisions.

Section 6: Amends s. 100.342, F.S., providing that special election or referendum notices may be
published on a publicly accessible website.

Section 7: Amends s. 125.66, F.S., providing that notices of consideration of a county ordinance by
the board of county commissioners may be published on a publicly accessible website.

Section 8: Amends s. 129.03, F.S., providing that a summary statement of adopted tentative county
budgets may be published on a publicly accessible website.

Section 9: Amends s. 129.06, F.S., providing that advertisement of a public hearing relating to the
amendment of a county budget may be published on a publicly accessible website.

Section 10: Amends s. 153.79, F.S., providing that advertisement by a county water and sewer
system district regarding a project to construct, reconstruct, acquire, or improve a water system or a
sewer system, and of a call for sealed bids for such projects, may be published on a publicly accessible
website.

Section 11: Amends s. 159.32, F.S., providing that the advertisementfor competitive bids to contract
construction projects under the Florida Industrial Development Financing Act may be published on a
publicly accessible website.

Section 12: Amends s. 162.12, F.S., providing that code enforcement boards may notice violation of a
county or municipal code on a publicly accessible website.

Section 13: Amends s. 163.3184, F.S., providing that notice of public hearings on the adoption of a
local government comprehensive plan or plan amendment or the approval of a compliance agreement
under the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act may be
published on a publicly accessible website.

Section 14: Amends s. 166.041, F.S., providing that notice of adoption of a municipal ordinance may
be published on a publicly accessible website; providing clarifying provisions.

Section 15: Amends s. 170.05, F.S., providing that resolutions relating to municipal public
improvements financed by special assessments may be published on a publicly accessible website.

Section 16: Amends s. 170.07, F.S., providing that notice relating to hearings on municipal public
improvements financed by special assessments may be noticed on a publicly accessible website.

Section 17: Amends s. 180.24, F.S., providing that specified construction contracts for utilities or
extensions to a previously constructed utility may be advertised on a publicly accessible website.

Section 18: Amends s. 197.3632, F.S., providing that notices of intent to use the uniform method of
collecting non-ad valorem assessments may be published on a publicly accessible website.

Section 19: Amends s. 200.065, F.S., providing that a taxing authority's notice of intent to adopt a
millage rate and budget, aspecified multicounty taxing authority's notice of intent to adopt a tentative
budget and millage rate, and correction of a specified error contained in a notice of proposed property
taxes mailed to taxpayers may be advertised on a publicly accessible website.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

h1511.GAP.doc
3/17/2010

PAGE: 5



Section 20: Amends s. 255.0525, F.S., providing that for the solicitation of specified competitive bids
or proposals for construction projects, a county, municipality, or other political subdivision may be
advertised on a publicly accessible website.

Section 21: Amends s. 380.06, F.S., providing that a public hearing by a local government on an
areawide development of regional impact under the Florida Environmental Land and Water
Management Act of 1972 may be advertised on a publicly accessible website.

Section 22: Amends s. 403.973, F.S., redefining the term "duly noticed."

Section 23: Amends s. 420.9075, F.S., providing that funding availability through a local housing
assistance plan under the State Housing Initiatives Partnership Act may be advertised on a publicly
accessible website.

Section 24: Amends s. 403.7049, F.S., providing fulfillment requirements ofthe public disclosure
system.

Section 25: Providing an effective date of October 1, 2010.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

State corporate income tax receipts may decrease as a result of corporate profit reductions
associated with local governments moving required advertising and noticing from newspapers to
publicly accessible websites.

2. Expenditures:

None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

The bill may reduce local government expenditures associated with publishing required notices and
advertisements in the newspaper. Local governments might have to expend funds to create,
maintain and issue correspondence from a registry of persons requesting notifications by first-class
mail or e-mail.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

Corporations or other entities or individuals that publish required local government public notices and
advertisements will have a loss of revenue associated with local governments moving such required
advertising and noticing from newspapers to publicly accessible websites.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

None.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:
STORAGE NAME: h1511.GAP.doc
DATE: 3/17/2010

PAGE: 6



1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

The bill does not appear to: require cities or counties to spend funds or take an action requiring the
expenditure of funds; reduce the authority that cities or counties have to raise revenues in the
aggregate; or reduce the percentage of a shared state tax or premium sales tax received by cities or
counties.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

None.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITIEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

h1511.GAP.doc
3/17/2010

PAGE: 7



FLORIDA H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

HB 1511 2010

1 A bill to be entitled

2 An act relating to effective public notices by

3 governmental entities; creating s. 50.0311/ F.S.; defining

4 the term "publicly accessible website"; authorizing a

5 local government to use its publicly accessible website

6 for legally required advertisements and public notices;

7 providing conditions for such use; providing for optional

8 receipt of legally required advertisements and public

9 notices by first-class mail or e-mail; providing

10 requirements for advertisements and public notices

11 published on a publicly accessible website; amending s.

12 50.011/ F.S.; providing that a notice, advertisement, or

13 publication on a publicly accessible website of a local

14 government in accordance with s. 50.0311/ F.S.,

15 constitutes legal notice; amending s. 50.021/ F.S.;

16 providing that advertisements directed by law or order or

17 decree of court to be made in a county in which no

18 newspaper is published may be made by publication on a

19 publicly accessible website; amending s. 50.051/ F.S.;

20 providing clarifying provisions; amending s. 50.061/ F.S.;

21 providing clarifying provisions; amending s. 100.342/

22 F.S.; providing for notice of special election or

23 referendum on a publicly accessible website; amending s.

24 125.66/ F.S.; providing for notice of consideration of an

25 ordinance by a board of county commissioners to be

26 published on a publicly accessible website; requiring

27 maintenance of the advertisement for a specified period;

28 providing clarifying provisions; amending s. 129.03/ F.S.;

Page 1of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 1511 2010

29 providing for the advertisement of a summary statement of

30 adopted tentative county budgets on a publicly accessible

31 website; amending s. 129.06, F.S.; providing for

32 advertisement of a public hearing relating to the

33 amendment of a county budget on a publicly accessible

34 website; amending s. 153.79, F.S.; providing for public

35 advertisement by a county water and sewer system district

36 of projects to construct, reconstruct, acquire, or improve

37 a water system or a sewer system, and of a call for sealed

38 bids for such projects, on a publicly accessible website;

39 amending s. 159.32, F.S.; providing for advertisement for

40 competitive bids for contracts for the construction of a

41 project under the Florida Industrial Development Financing

42 Act on a publicly accessible website; amending s. 162.12,

43 F.S.; providing for optional serving of notice by a code

44 enforcement board of a violation of a county or municipal

45 code via a publicly accessible website; amending s.

46 163.3184, F.S.; providing for notice of public hearings on

47 the adoption of a local government comprehensive plan or

48 plan amendment or the approval of a compliance agreement

49 under the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land

50 Development Regulation Act via a publicly accessible

51 website; amending s. 166.041, F.S.; providing for notice

52 of adoption of a municipal ordinance via a publicly

53 accessible website; providing clarifying provisions;

54 amending s. 170.05, F.S.; providing for publication on a

55 publicly accessible website of a resolution relating to

56 municipal public improvements financed by special

Page 2of36

CODING: Words strisken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

HB 1511 2010

57 assessments; amending s. 170.07, F.S.; providing for

58 publication on a publicly accessible website of notice of

59 hearing on municipal public improvements financed by

60 special assessments; amending s. 180.24, F.S.; providing

61 for advertisement via a publicly accessible website of

62 specified construction contracts for utilities or

63 extensions to a previously constructed utility; amending

64 s. 197.3632, F.S.; providing for publication on a publicly

65 accessible website of a local government's notice of

66 intent to use the uniform method of collecting non-ad

67 valorem assessments; amending s. 200.065, F.S.; providing

68 for advertisement on a publicly accessible website of a

69 taxing authority's intent to adopt a millage rate and

70 budget; providing for advertisement on a publicly

71 accessible website of the intention of a specified

72 multicounty taxing authority to adopt a tentative budget

73 and millage rate; providing clarifying and conforming

74 provisions; providing for notice via a publicly accessible

75 website of correction of a specified error contained in a

76 notice of proposed property taxes mailed to taxpayers;

77 amending s. 255.0525, F.S.; providing for advertisement

78 via a publicly accessible website for the solicitation of

79 competitive bids or proposals for construction projects of

80 a county, municipality, or other political subdivision

81 which are projected to exceed specified costs; amending s.

82 380.06, F.S.; providing for publication of an

83 advertisement on a publicly accessible website of a public

84 hearing by a local government on an areawide development

Page 3of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB 1511

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

85 of regional impact under the Florida Environmental Land

86 and Water Management Act of 1972; amending s. 403.973,

87 F. S.; redefining the term "duly noticed" to include

88 publication on a publicly accessible website; providing

89 conforming provisions; amending s. 420.9075, F.S.;

90 providing for advertisement of notice on a publicly

91 accessible website of funding availability through a local

92 housing assistance plan under the State Housing

93 Initiatives Partnership Act; amending s. 403.7049, F.S.;

94 prescribing procedures for fulfilling public disclosure

95 system requirements with respect to the duty of a

96 municipality to disclose costs for solid waste management;

97 providing an effective date.

98

99 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

100

101 Section 1. Section 50.0311, Florida Statutes, is created

102 to read:

103 50.0311 Publication of advertisements and public notices

104 on a local government's publicly accessible website and

105 government access channels .-

106 (1) For purposes of notices and advertisements required by

107 statute to be published by a local government, the term

108 "publicly accessible website" means a county or municipal

109 government's official website that is accessible via the

110 Internet.

111 (2) If specifically authorized by ordinance, a local

112 government may use its website for legally required

Page 4of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB 1511

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

113 advertisements and public notices if:

114 (a) A public library or other governmental facility

115 providing free access to the Internet during regular business

116 hours exists within the jurisdictional boundaries of such county

117 or municipality;

118 (b) The local government provides notice to its residents

119 at least once per year in a newspaper of general circulation,

120 the county or municipality's newsletter or periodical, or

121 another publication that is mailed or delivered to all residents

122 or property owners throughout the local government's

123 jurisdiction, indicating that residents may receive legally

124 required advertisements and public notices from the local

125 government by first-class mail or e-mail upon registering their

126 name and address or e-mail address with the local governmental

127 entity; and

128 (c) The local government maintains a registry of names,

129 addresses, and e-mail addresses of residents who request in

130 writing that they receive legally required advertisements and

131 public notices from the local government by first-class mail or

132 e-mail.

133 (3) Advertisements and public notices published on a

134 publicly accessible website shall be conspicuously placed on the

135 website's homepage or accessible through a direct link from the

136 homepage. The advertisement shall indicate the date on which the

137 advertisement was first published on the publicly accessible

138 website.

139 (4) The local government that has a government access

140 channel authorized under s. 610.109 may also include on its

Page 50f36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB 1511

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

141 government access channel a summary of all advertisements and

142 public notices that are published on its website.

143 Section 2. Section 50.011, Florida Statutes, is amended to

144 read:

145 50.011 Where and in what language legal notices to be

146 published.-Whenever by statute an official or legal

147 advertisement or a publication, or notice in a newspaper has

148 been or is directed or permitted in the nature of or in lieu of

149 process, or for constructive service, or in initiating,

150 assuming, reviewing, exercising or enforcing jurisdiction or

151 power, or for any purpose, including all legal notices and

152 advertisements of sheriffs and tax collectors, the

153 contemporaneous and continuous intent and meaning of such

154 legislation all and singular, existing or repealed, is and has

155 been and is hereby declared to be and to have been, and the rule

156 of interpretation is and has been, a publication in a newspaper

157 printed and published periodically once a week or oftener,

158 containing at least 25 percent of its words in the English

159 language, entered or qualified to be admitted and entered as

160 periodicals matter at a post office in the county where

161 published, for sale to the public generally, available to the

162 public generally for the publication of official or other

163 notices and customarily containing information of a public

164 character or of interest or of value to the residents or owners

165 of property in the county where published, or of interest or of

166 value to the general public. Notwithstanding any provisions to

167 the contrary, and as specifically authorized by s. 50.0311, a

168 notice, advertisement, or publication on a publicly accessible

Page 6of 36

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB1511

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

169

170

171

172

173

174

175

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186

187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

website of a local government in accordance with s. 50.0311

constitutes legal notice.

Section 3. Section 50.021, Florida Statutes, is amended to

read:

50.021 Publication when no newspaper in county.-When any

law, or order or decree of court, shall direct advertisements to

be made in any county and there be no newspaper published in the

said county, the advertisement may be made, in the case of a

county or municipality, by publishing such advertisement on a

publicly accessible website maintained by the entity responsible

for publication or posting three copies thereof in three

different places in said county, one of which shall be at the

front door of the courthouse, and by publication in the nearest

county in which a newspaper is published.

Section 4. Section 50.051, Florida Statutes, is amended to

read:

50.051 Proof of publication; form of uniform affidavit.

The printed form upon which all such affidavits establishing

proof of publication in a newspaper are to be executed shall be

substantially as follows:

NAME OF NEWSPAPER

Published (Weekly or Daily)

(Town or City) (County) FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF

Page 7of 36

CODING: Words striokeR are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB1511

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

197 Before the undersigned authority personally appeared ,

198 who on oath says that he or she is .... of the .... , a .

199 newspaper published at .... in .... County, Florida; that the

200 attached copy of advertisement, being a .... in the matter of

201 .... in the Court, was published in said newspaper in the

202 issues of .

203 Affiant further says that the said is a newspaper

204 published at .... , in said .... County, Florida, and that the

205 said newspaper has heretofore been continuously published in

206 said .... County, Florida, each .... and has been entered as

207 periodicals matter at the post office in .... , in said

208 County, Florida, for a period of 1 year next preceding the first

209 publication of the attached copy of advertisement; and affiant

210 further says that he or she has neither paid nor promised any

211 person, firm or corporation any discount, rebate, commission or

212 refund for the purpose of securing this advertisement for

213 publication in the said newspaper.

214

215 Sworn to and subscribed before me this .... day of .... ,

216 ... (year) ... , by .... , who is personally known to me or who has

217 produced (type of identification) as identification.

218

219

220 '" (Signature of Notary Public) ...

221

222 ... (Print, Type, or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public) ...

223

224 ... (Notary Public) ...

Page 8of36

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB1511

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

225 Section 5. Subsection (4) of section 50.061, Florida

226 Statutes, is amended to read:

227 50.061 Amounts chargeable.-

228 (4) All official public notices and legal advertisements

229 published in a newspaper shall be charged and paid for on the

230 basis of 6-point type on 6-point body, unless otherwise

231 specified by statute.

232 Section 6. Section 100.342, Florida Statutes, is amended

233 to read:

234 100.342 Notice of special election or referendum.-In any

235 special election or referendum not otherwise provided for there

236 shall be at least 30 days' notice of the election or referendum

237 by publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the

238 county, district, or municipality, as the case may be, or, in

239 the case of a county or municipality, publication on a publicly

240 accessible website maintained by the local government

241 responsible for publication and published daily during the 5

242 weeks immediately preceding the election or referendum. If

243 advertised in the newspaper, the publication shall be made at

244 least twice, once in the fifth week and once in the third week

245 prior to the week in which the election or referendum is to be

246 held. If there is no newspaper of general circulation in the

247 county, district, or municipality and publication is not made on

248 a publicly accessible website maintained by the local government

249 responsible for publication, the notice shall be posted in no

250 fewer ±e&& than five places within the territorial limits of the

251 county, district, or municipality.

252 Section 7. Paragraph (a) of subsection (2) and paragraph

Page 9of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB 1511

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

253 (b) of subsection (4) of section 125.66, Florida statutes, are

254 amended to read:

255 125.66 Ordinances; enactment procedure; emergency

256 ordinances; rezoning or change of land use ordinances or

257 resolutions.-

258 (2) (a) The regular enactment procedure shall be as

259 follows: The board of county commissioners at any regular or

260 special meeting may enact or amend any ordinance, except as

261 provided in subsection (4), if notice of intent to consider such

262 ordinance is given at least 10 days before the prior to said

263 meeting on a publicly accessible website maintained by the

264 county or by publication in a newspaper of general circulation

265 in the county. If advertised on a publicly accessible website,

266 the advertisement shall be publi~hed daily during the 10 days

267 immediately preceding the meeting. A copy of such notice shall

268 be kept available for public inspection during the regular

269 business hours of the office of the clerk of the board of county

270 commissioners. The notice of proposed enactment shall state the

271 date, time, and place of the meeting; the title or titles of

272 proposed ordinances; and the place or places within the county

273 where such proposed ordinances may be inspected by the public.

274 The notice shall also advise that interested parties may appear

275 at the meeting and be heard with respect to the proposed

276 ordinance.

277 (4) Ordinances or resolutions, initiated by other than the

278 county, that change the actual zoning map designation of a

279 parcel or parcels of land shall be enacted pursuant to

280 subsection (2). Ordinances or resolutions that change the actual

Page 10 of 36

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB 1511

H 0 USE o F REP RESENTATIVES

2010

281 list of permitted, conditional, or prohibited uses within a

282 zoning category, or ordinances or resolutions initiated by the

283 county that change the actual zoning map designation of a parcel

284 or parcels of land shall be enacted pursuant to the following

285 procedure:

286 (b) In cases in which the proposed ordinance or resolution

287 changes the actual list of permitted, conditional, or prohibited

288 uses within a zoning category, or changes the actual zoning map

289 designation of a parcel or parcels of land involving 10

290 contiguous acres or more, the board of county commissioners

291 shall provide for public notice and hearings as follows:

292 1. The board of county commissioners shall hold two

293 advertised public hearings on the proposed ordinance or

294 resolution. At least one hearing shall be held after 5 p.m. on a

295 weekday, unless the board of county commissioners, by a majority

296 plus one vote, elects to conduct that hearing at another time of

297 day. The first public hearing shall be held at least 7 days

298 after the day that the first advertisement is published. The

299 second hearing shall be held at least 10 days after the first

300 hearing and shall be advertised at least 5 days prior to the

301 public hearing.

302 2. The required newspaper advertisements shall be no less

303 than 2 columns wide by 10 inches long in a standard size or a

304 tabloid size newspaper, and the headline in the advertisement

305 shall be in a type no smaller than 18 point. The newspaper

306 advertisement shall not be placed in that portion of the

307 newspaper where legal notices and classified advertisements

308 appear. The newspaper advertisement shall be placed in a

Page 11 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB 1511

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

309 newspaper of general paid circulation in the county and of

310 general interest and readership in the community pursuant to

311 chapter 50, not one of limited subject matter. It is the

312 legislative intent that, whenever possible, the newspaper

313 advertisement shall appear in 'a newspaper that is published at

314 least 5 days a week unless the only newspaper in the community

315 is published less than 5 days a week. The newspaper

316 advertisement shall be in substantially the following form:

317

318 NOTICE OF (TYPE OF) CHANGE

319

320 The ... (name of local governmental unit) proposes to

321 adopt the following by ordinance or resolution: (title of

322 ordinance or resolution) ....

323 A public hearing on the ordinance or resolution will be

324 held on ... (date and time) ... at ... (meeting place) ....

325

326 Except for amendments which change the actual list of permitted,

327 conditional, or prohibited uses within a zoning category, the

328 advertisement shall contain a geographic location map which

329 clearly indicates the area within the local government covered

330 by the proposed ordinance or resolution. The map shall include

331 major street names as a means of identification of the general

332 area.

333 3. In lieu of publishing the advertisements set out in

334 this paragraph, the board of county commissioners may mail a

335 notice to each person owning real property within the area

336 covered by the ordinance or resolution. Such notice shall

Page 12 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB 1511

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

337 clearly explain the proposed ordinance or resolution and shall

338 notify the person of the time, place, and location of both

339 public hearings on the proposed ordinance or resolution.

340 Section 8. Paragraph (b) of subsection (3) of section

341 129.03/ Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

342 129.03 Preparation and adoption of budget.-

343 (3) No later than 15 days after certification of value by

344 the property appraiser pursuant to s. 200.065(1)/ the county

345 budget officer, after tentatively ascertaining the proposed

346 fiscal policies of the board for the ensuing fiscal year/ shall

347 prepare and present to the board a tentative budget for the

348 ensuing fiscal year for each of the funds provided in this

349 chapter, including all estimated receipts, taxes to be levied,

350 and balances expected to be brought forward and all estimated

351 expenditures, reserves/ and balances to be carried over at the

352 end of the year.

353 (b) Upon receipt of the tentative budgets and completion

354 of any revisions made by the board, the board shall prepare a

355 statement summarizing all of the adopted tentative budgets. This

356 summary statement shall show, for each budget and the total of

357 all budgets, the proposed tax millages, the balances, the

358 reserves/ and the total of each major classification of receipts

359 and expenditures, classified according to the classification of

360 accounts prescribed by the appropriate state agency. The board

361 shall cause this summary statement to be advertised one time in

362 a newspaper of general circulation published in the county, on a

363 publicly accessible website maintained by the county, or by

364 posting at the courthouse door if there is no such newspaper or

Page 13 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB1511

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

365 website, and the advertisement shall appear adjacent to the

366 advertisement required pursuant to s. 200.065.

367 Section 9. Paragraph (f) of subsection (2) of section

368 129.06, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

369 129.06 Execution and amendment of budget.-

370 (2) The board at any time within a fiscal year may amend a

371 budget for that year, and may within the first 60 days of a

372 fiscal year amend the budget for the prior fiscal year, as

373 follows:

374 (f) If an amendment to a budget is required for a purpose

375 not specifically authorized in paragraphs (a)-(e), unless

376 otherwise prohibited by law, the amendment may be authorized by

377 resolution or ordinance of the board of county commissioners

378 adopted following a public hearing. The public hearing must be

379 advertised at least 2 days, but not more than 5 days, before the

380 date of the hearing. The advertisement must appear on a pUblicly

381 accessible website maintained by the county or in a newspaper of

382 paid general circulation and must identify the name of the

383 taxing authority, the date, place, and time of the hearing, and

384 the purpose of the hearing. If advertised in the newspaper, the

385 public hearing must be advertised at least 2 days, but not more

386 than 5 days, before the date of the hearing. If advertised on a

387 publicly accessible website, the notice must be published daily

388 during the 5 days immediately preceding the hearing. The

389 advertisement must also identify each budgetary fund to be

390 amended, the source of the funds, the use of the funds, and the

391 total amount of each budget.

392 Section 10. Section 153.79, Florida Statutes, is amended

Page 14 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB1511

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

393 to read:

394 153.79 Contracts for construction of improvements, sealed

395 bids.-AII contracts let, awardedL or entered into by the

396 district for the construction, reconstructionL or acquisition or

397 improvement of a water system or a sewer system or both or any

398 part thereof, if the amount thereof shall exceed $1,000, shall

399 be awarded only after public advertisement and call for sealed

400 bids therefor on a publicly accessible website maintained by the

401 county orT in a newspaper published in the county circulating in

402 the district, or, if there is ~ no such website or newspaper,

403 ~ in a newspaper published in the state and circulating in

404 the district. If advertised in the newspaper, such advertisement

405 shall ~ be published at least once at least 3 weeks before the

406 date set for the receipt of such bids. If advertised on a

407 pUblicly accessible website, such advertisement shall be

408 published daily during the 3 weeks immediately preceding the

409 date set for the receipt of such bids. Such advertisements for

410 bids in addition to the other necessary and pertinent matter

411 shall state in general terms the nature and description of the

412 improvement or improvements to be undertaken and shall state

413 that detailed plans and specifications for such work are on file

414 for inspection in the office of the district clerk and copies

415 thereof shall be furnished to any interested party upon payment

416 of reasonable charges to reimburse the district for its expenses

417 in providing such copies. The award shall be made to the

418 responsible and competent bidder or bidders who shall offer to

419 undertake the improvements at the lowest cost to the dis~rict

420 and such bidder or bidders shall be required to file bond for

Page 15 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB 1511

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

421 the full and faithful performance of such work and the execution

422 of any such contract in such amount as the district board shall

423 determine, and in all other respects the letting of such

424 construction contracts shall comply with applicable provisions

425 of the general laws relating to the letting of public contracts.

426 Nothing in this section shall be deemed to prevent the district

427 from hiring or retaining such consulting engineers, attorneys,

428 financial experts or other technicians as it shall determine, in

429 its discretion, or from undertaking any construction work with

430 its own resources, without any such public advertisement.

431 Section 11. Section 159.32, Florida Statutes, is amended

432 to read:

433 159.32 Construction contracts.-Contracts for the

434 construction of the project may be awarded by the local agency

435 in such manner as in its judgment will best promote free and

436 open competition, including advertisement for competitive bids

437 in a newspaper of general circulation within the boundaries of

438 the local agency or on a publicly accessible website maintained

439 by the county; however, if the local agency shall determine that

440 the purposes of this part will be more effectively served, the

441 local agency in its discretion may award or cause to be awarded

442 contracts for the construction of any project, or any part

443 thereof, upon a negotiated basis as determined by the local

444 agency. The local agency shall prescribe bid security

445 requirements and other procedures in connection with the award

446 of such contracts as in its judgment shall protect the public

447 interest. The local agency may by written contract engage the

448 services of the lessee, purchaser, or prospective lessee or

Page 16 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB1511

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

449 purchaser of any project in the construction of the project and

450 may provide in the contract that the lessee, purchaser, or

451 prospective lessee or purchaser may act as an agent of, or an

452 independent contractor for, the local agency for the performance

453 of the functions described therein, subject to such conditions

454 and requirements consistent with the provisions of this part as

455 shall be prescribed in the contract, including functions such as

456 the acquisition of the site and other real property for the

457 project; the preparation of plans, specifications, and contract

458 documents; the award of construction and other contracts upon a

459 competitive or negotiated basis; the construction of the

460 project, or any part thereof, directly by the lessee, purchaser,

461 or prospective lessee or purchaser; the inspection and

462 supervision of construction; the employment of engineers,

463 architects, builders, and other contractors; and the provision

464 of money to pay the cost thereof pending reimbursement by the

465 local agency. Any such contract may provide that the local

466 agency may, out of proceeds of bonds, make advances to or

467 reimburse the lessee, purchaser, or prospective lessee or

468 purchaser for its costs incurred in the performance of those

469 functions, and shall set forth the supporting documents required

470 to be submitted to the local agency and the reviews,

471 examinations, and audits that shall be required in connection

472 therewith to assure compliance with the provisions of this part

473 and the contract.

474 Section 12. Paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of section

475 162.12, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

476 162.12 Notices.-

Page 17 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB 1511

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

477 (2) In addition to providing notice as set forth in

478 subsection (1), at the option of the code enforcement board,

479 notice may also be served by publication or posting, as follows:

480 (a)l. Such notice shall be published once during each week

481 for 4 consecutive weeks (four publications being sufficient) in

482 a newspaper of general circulation in the county where the code

483 enforcement board is located or daily during the 4 weeks

484 immediately preceding the hearing on a publicly accessible

485 website maintained by the local government. The website and

486 newspaper shall meet such requirements as are prescribed under

487 chapter 50 for legal and official advertisements.

488 2. Proof of newspaper publication shall be made as

489 provided in ss. 50.041 and 50.051.

490

491 Evidence that an attempt has been made to hand deliver or mail

492 notice as provided in subsection (1), together with proof of

493 publication or posting as provided in subsection (2), shall be

494 sufficient to show that the notice requirements of this part

495 have been met, without regard to whether or not the alleged

496 violator actually received such notice.

497 Section 13. Paragraph (b) of subsection (15) and paragraph

498 (c) of subsection (16) of section 163.3184, Florida Statutes,

499 are amended to read:

500 163.3184 Process for adoption of comprehensive plan or

501 plan amendment.-

502 (15) PUBLIC HEARINGS.-

503 (b) The local governing body shall hold at least two

504 advertised public hearings on the proposed comprehensive plan or

Page 18 of 36

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB1511

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

505 plan amendment as follows:

506 1. The first public hearing shall be held at the

507 transmittal stage pursuant to subsection (3). It shall be held

508 on a weekday at least 7 days after the day that the first

509 advertisement is published or after the notice of the first

510 public hearing is initially published on the publicly accessible

511 website.

512 2. The second public hearing shall be held at the adoption

513 stage pursuant to subsection (7). It shall be held on a weekday

514 at least 5 days after the day that the second advertisement is

515 published or after the notice of the second public hearing is

516 initially published on the publicly accessible website.

517 (16) COMPLIANCE AGREEMENTS.-

518 (c) Before Prior to its execution of a compliance

519 agreement, the local government must approve the compliance

520 agreement at a public hearing advertised at least 10 days before

521 the public hearing in a newspaper of general circulation in the

522 area or daily during the 10 days immediately preceding the

523 hearing on a publicly accessible website maintained by the local

524 government in accordance with the advertisement requirements of

525 subsection (15).

526 Section 14. Paragraphs (a) and (c) of subsection (3) of

527 section 166.041, Florida Statutes, are amended to read:

528 166.041 Procedures for adoption of ordinances and

529 resolutions.-

530 (3) (a) Except as provided in paragraph (c), a proposed

531 ordinance may be read by title, or in full, on at least 2

532 separate days and shall, at least 10 days before prior to

Page 19 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB1511

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

533 adoption, be noticed once in a newspaper of general circulation

534 in the municipality or noticed daily during the 10 days

535 immediately preceding the adoption on a publicly accessible

536 website, maintained by the municipality. The notice of proposed

537 enactment shall state the date, time, and place of the meeting;

538 the title or titles of proposed ordinances; and the place or

539 places within the municipality where such proposed ordinances

540 may be inspected by the public. The notice shall also advise

541 that interested parties may appear at the meeting and be heard

542 with respect to the proposed ordinance.

543 (c) Ordinances initiated by other than the municipality

544 that change the actual zoning map designation of a parcel or

545 parcels of land shall be enacted pursuant to paragraph (a).

546 Ordinances that change the actual list of permitted,

547 conditional, or prohibited uses within a zoning category, or

548 ordinances initiated by the municipality that change the actual

549 zoning map designation of a parcel or parcels of land shall be

550 enacted pursuant to the following procedure:

551 1. In cases in which the proposed ordinance changes the

552 actual zoning map designation for a parcel or parcels of land

553 involving less than 10 contiguous acres, the governing body

554 shall direct the clerk of the governing body to notify by mail

555 each real property owner whose land the municipality will

556 redesignate by enactment of the ordinance and whose address is

557 known by reference to the latest ad valorem tax records. The

558 notice shall state the substance of the proposed ordinance as it

559 affects that property owner and shall set a time and place for

560 one or more public hearings on such ordinance. Such notice shall

Page 20 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB 1511

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

561 be given at least 30 days prior to the date set for the public

562 hearing, and a copy of the notice shall be kept available for

563 public inspection during the regular business hours of the

564 office of the clerk of the governing body. The governing body

565 shall hold a public hearing on the proposed ordinance and may,

566 upon the conclusion of the hearing, immediately adopt the

567 ordinance.

568 2. In cases in which the proposed ordinance changes the

569 actual list of permitted, conditional, or prohibited uses within

570 a zoning category, or changes the actual zoning map designation

571 of a parcel or parcels of land involving 10 contiguous acres or

572 more, the governing body shall provide for public notice and

573 hearings as follows:

574 a. The local governing body shall hold two advertised

575 public hearings on the proposed ordinance. At least one hearing

576 shall be held after 5 p.m. on a weekday, unless the local

577 governing body, by a majority plus one vote, elects to conduct

578 that hearing at another time of day. The first public hearing

579 shall be held at least 7 days after the day that the first

580 advertisement is published. The second hearing shall be held at

581 least 10 days after the first hearing and shall be advertised at

582 least 5 days prior to the public hearing.

583 b. The required newspaper advertisements shall be no less

584 than 2 columns wide by 10 inches long in a standard size or a

585 tabloid size newspaper, and the headline in the advertisement

586 shall be in a type no smaller than 18 point. The newspaper

587 advertisement shall not be placed in that portion of the

588 newspaper where legal notices and classified advertisements

Page 21 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB1511

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

589 appear. The newspaper advertisement shall be placed in a

590 newspaper of general paid circulation in the municipality and of

591 general interest and readership in the municipality, not one of

592 limited subject matter, pursuant to chapter 50. It is the

593 legislative intent that, whenever possible, the newspaper

594 advertisement appear in a newspaper that is published at least 5

595 days a week unless the only newspaper in the municipality is

596 published less than 5 days a week. The newspaper advertisement

597 shall be in substantially the following form:

598 NOTICE OF (TYPE OF) CHANGE

599

600 The ... (name of local governmental unit) ... proposes to

601 adopt the following ordinance: ... (title of the ordinance) .

602 A public hearing on the ordinance will be held on (date

603 and time) ... at ... (meeting place) ....

604

605 Except for amendments which change the actual list of permitted,

606 conditional, or prohibited uses within a zoning category, the

607 advertisement shall contain a geographic location map which

608 clearly indicates the area covered by the proposed ordinance.

609 The map shall include major street names as a means of

610 identification of the general area.

611 c. In lieu of publishing the advertisement set out in this

612 paragraph, the municipality may mail a notice to each person

613 owning real property within the area covered by the ordinance.

614 Such notice shall clearly explain the proposed ordinance and

615 shall notify the person of the time, place, and location of any

616 public hearing on the proposed ordinance.

Page 22 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB 1511

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

617 Section 15. Section 170.05, Florida Statutes, is amended

618 to read:

619 170.05 Publication of resolution.-Upon the adoption of the

620 resolution provided for in s. 170.03, the municipality shall

621 cause said resolution to be published on a publicly accessible

622 website maintained by the municipality or one time in a

623 newspaper of general circulation published in said municipality,

624 and if there is ~ no website or newspaper published in said

625 municipality, the governing authority of said municipality shall

626 cause said resolution to be published once a week for a period

627 of 2 weeks in a newspaper of general circulation published in

628 the county in which said municipality is located.

629 Section 16. Section 170.07, Florida Statutes, is amended

630 to read:

631 170.07 Publication of preliminary assessment roll.-Upon

632 the completion of said preliminary assessment roll, the

633 governing authority of the municipality shall by resolution fix

6J4 a time and place at which the owners of the property to be

635 assessed or any other persons interested therein may appear

636 before said governing authority and be heard as to the propriety

637 and advisability of making such improvements, as to the cost

638 thereof, as to the manner of payment therefor, and as to the

639 amount thereof to be assessed against each property so improved.

640 Thirty days' notice in writing of such time and place shall be

641 given to such property owners. The notice shall include the

642 amount of the assessment and shall be served by mailing a copy

643 to each of such property owners at his or her last known

644 address, the names and addresses of such property owners to be

Page 23 of 36

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB 1511

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

645 obtained from the records of the property appraiser or from such

646 other sources as the city or town clerk or engineer deems

647 reliable, proof of such mailing to be made by the affidavit of

648 the clerk or deputy clerk of said municipality, or by the

649 engineer, said proof to be filed with the clerk, provided, that

650 failure to mail said notice or notices shall not invalidate any

651 of the proceedings hereunder. Notice of the time and place of

652 such hearing shall also be given by two publications a week

653 apart in a newspaper of general circulation in said municipality

654 or by publication daily for 2 weeks on a publicly accessible

655 website maintained by the municipality, and if there is ee no

656 website or newspaper published in said municipalitYL the

657 governing authority of said municipality shall cause said notice

658 to be published in like manner in a newspaper of general

659 circulation published in the county in which said municipality

660 is located; provided that the last publication shall be at least

661 1 week before prior to the date of the hearing. Said notice

662 shall describe the streets or other areas to be improved and

663 advise all persons interested that the description of each

664 property to be assessed and the amount to be assessed to each

665 piece or parcel of property may be ascertained at the office of

666 the clerk of the municipality. Such service by publication shall

667 be verified by the affidavit of the publisher and filed with the

668 clerk of said municipality.

669 Section 17. Subsection (1) of section 180.24, Florida

670 Statutes, is amended to read:

671 180.24 Contracts for construction; bond; publication of

672 notice; bids.-

Page 24 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB 1511

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

673 (1) Any municipality desiring the accomplishment of any or

674 all of the purposes of this chapter may make contracts for the

675 construction of any of the utilities mentioned in this chapter,

676 or any extension or extensions to any previously constructed

677 utility, which said contracts shall be in writing, and the

678 contractor shall be required to give bond, which said bond shall

679 be executed by a surety company authorized to do business in the

680 state; provided, however, construction contracts in excess of

681 $25,000 shall be advertised by the publication of a notice in a

682 newspaper of general circulation in the county in which said

683 municipality is located at least once each week for 2

684 consecutive weeks, by publication daily for 2 weeks on a

685 publicly accessible website maintained by the municipality, or

686 by posting three notices in three conspicuous places in said

687 municipality, one of which shall be on the door of the city

688 hall; and that at least 10 days shall elapse between the date of

689 the first publication or posting of such notice and the date of

690 receiving bids and the execution of such contract documents. For

691 municipal construction projects identified in s. 255.0525, the

692 notice provision of that section supersedes and replaces the

693 notice provisions in this section.

694 Section 18. Paragraph (a) of subsection (3) of section

695 197.3632, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

696 197.3632 Uniform method for the levy, collection, and

697 enforcement of non-ad valorem assessments.-

698 (3) (a) Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the

699 contrary, a local government which is authorized to impose a

700 non-ad valorem assessment and which elects to use the uniform

Page 25 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB1511

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

701 method of collecting such assessment for the first time as

702 authorized in this section shall adopt a resolution at a public

703 hearing before prior to January lor, if the property appraiser,

704 tax collector, and local government agree, March 1. The

705 resolution shall clearly state its intent to use the uniform

706 method of collecting such assessment. The local government shall

707 publish notice of its intent to use the uniform method for

708 collecting such assessment weekly in a newspaper of general

709 circulation within each county contained in the boundaries of

710 the local government for 4 consecutive weeks preceding the

711 hearing or, in the case of a county or municipality, daily

712 during the 4 consecutive weeks immediately preceding the hearing

713 on a publicly accessible website maintained by the county or

714 municipality. The resolution shall state the need for the levy

715 and shall include a legal description of the boundaries of the

716 real property subject to the levy. If the resolution is adopted,

717 the local governing board shall send a copy of it by United

718 States mail to the property appraiser, the tax collector, and

719 the department by January 10 or, if the property appraiser, tax

720 collector, and local government agree, March 10.

721 Section 19. Paragraph (d) of subsection (2), paragraph (g)

722 of subsection (3), paragraph (b) of subsection (12), and

723 paragraph (a) of subsection (14) of section 200.065, Florida

724 Statutes, are amended to read:

725 200.065 Method of fixing millage.-

726 (2) No millage shall be levied until a resolution or

727 ordinance has been approved by the governing board of the taxing

728 authority which resolution or ordinance must be approved by the

Page 26 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB 1511

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

729 taxing authority according to the following procedure:

730 (d) Within 15 days after the meeting adopting the

731 tentative budget, the taxing authority shall advertise in a

732 newspaper of general circulation in the county as provided in

733 subsection (3)7 its intent to finally adopt a millage rate and

734 budget or, in the case of a county or municipality, may

735 advertise on its publicly accessible website its intent to

736 finally adopt a millage rate and budget, and shall maintain the

737 notice on its website until completion of the hearing. If

738 advertised in a newspaper, a public hearing to finalize the

739 budget and adopt a millage rate shall be held not less than 2

740 days nor more than 5 days after the day that the advertisement

741 is first published. During the hearing, the governing body of

742 the taxing authority shall amend the adopted tentative budget as

743 it sees fit, adopt a final budget, and adopt a resolution or

744 ordinance stating the millage rate to be levied. The resolution

745 or ordinance shall state the percent, if any, by which the

746 millage rate to be levied exceeds the rolled-back rate computed

747 pursuant to subsection (1), which shall be characterized as the

748 percentage increase in property taxes adopted by the governing

749 body. The adoption of the budget and the millage-levy resolution

750 or ordinance shall be by separate votes. For each taxing

751 authority levying millage, the name of the taxing authority, the

752 rolled-bac'k rate, the percentage increase, and the millage rate

753 to be levied shall be publicly announced before prior to the

754 adoption of the millage-levy resolution or ordinance. In no

755 event may The millage rate adopted pursuant to this paragraph

756 may not exceed the millage rate tentatively adopted pursuant to

Page 27 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

H81511

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

757 paragraph (c). If the rate tentatively adopted pursuant to

758 paragraph (c) exceeds the proposed rate provided to the property

759 appraiser pursuant to paragraph (b), or as subsequently adjusted

760 pursuant to subsection (11), each taxpayer within the

761 jurisdiction of the taxing authority shall be sent notice by

762 first-class mail of his or her taxes under the tentatively

763 adopted millage rate and his or her taxes under the previously

764 proposed rate. The notice must be prepared by the property

765 appraiser, at the expense of the taxing authority, and must

766 generally conform to the requirements of s. 200.069. If such

767 additional notice is necessary, its mailing must precede the

768 hearing held pursuant to this paragraph by not less than 10 days

769 and not more than 15 days.

770 (3)

771 (g) If In the event that the mailing of the notice of

772 proposed property taxes is delayed beyond September 3 in a

773 county, any multicounty taxing authority which levies ad valorem

774 taxes within that county shall advertise its intention to adopt

775 a tentative budget and millage rate on a pUblicly accessible

776 website maintained by the taxing authority or in a newspaper of

777 paid general circulation within that county, as provided in this

778 subsection, and shall hold the hearing required pursuant to

779 paragraph (2) (c). If advertised in the newspaper, the hearing

780 shall be held not less than 2 days or more than 5 days

781 thereafter, and not later than September 18. If advertised on

782 the website, the hearing shall be held not less than 2 days

783 after initial publication of the advertisement on the website

784 and not later than September 18, and shall remain on the website

Page 28 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB 1511

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

785 until the date of the hearing. The advertisement shall be in the

786 following form, unless the proposed millage rate is less than or

787 equal to the rolled-back rate, computed pursuant to subsection

788 (1), in which case the advertisement shall be as provided in

789 paragraph (e):

790 NOTICE OF TAX INCREASE

791

792 The ... (name of the taxing authority) ... proposes to

793 increase its property tax levy by ... (percentage of increase

794 over rolled-back rate) .. , percent.

795 All concerned citizens are invited to attend a public

796 hearing on the proposed tax increase to be held on ... (date and

797 time) ... at '" (meeting place) ....

798 (12) The time periods specified in this section shall be

799 determined by using the date of certification of value pursuant

800 to subsection (1) or July 1, whichever date is later, as day 1.

801 The time periods shall be considered directory and may be

802 shortened, provided:

803 (b) Any public hearing preceded by a newspaper

804 advertisement is held not less than 2 days or more than 5 days

805 following publication of such advertisement and any public

806 hearing preceded by advertisement on a website advertisement is

807 held not less than 2 days after initial publication; and

808 (14) (a) If the notice of proposed property taxes mailed to

809 taxpayers under this section contains an error, the property

810 appraiser, in lieu of mailing a corrected notice to all

811 taxpayers, may correct the error by mailing a short form of the

812 notice to those taxpayers affected by the error and its

Page 29 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB 1511

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

813 correction. The notice shall be prepared by the property

814 appraiser at the expense of the taxing authority which caused

815 the error or at the property appraiser's expense if he or she

816 caused the error. The form of the notice must be approved by the

817 executive director of the Department of Revenue or the executive

818 director's designee. If the error involves only the date and

819 time of the public hearings required by this section, the

820 property appraiser, with the permission of the taxing authority

821 affected by the error, may correct the error by advertising the

822 corrected information on a pUblicly accessible website

823 maintained by the taxing authority or in a newspaper of general

824 circulation in the county as provided in subsection (3).

825 Section 20. Subsection (2) of section 255.0525, Florida

826 Statutes, is amended to read:

827 255.0525 Advertising for competitive bids or proposals.-

828 (2) The solicitation of competitive bids or proposals for

829 any county, municipality, or other political subdivision

830 construction project that is projected to cost more than

831 $200,000 shall be publicly advertised at least once in a

832 newspaper of general circulation in the county where the project

833 is located at least 21 days before prior to the established bid

834 opening and at least 5 days before prior to any scheduled prebid

835 conference, or advertised daily during the 21-day period

836 immediately preceding the established bid opening date and daily

837 during the 5-day period immediately preceding any scheduled

838 prebid conference on a publicly accessible website maintained by

839 the entity responsible for publication. The solicitation of

840 competitive bids or proposals for any county, municipality, or

Page 30 of 36

CODING: Words strickeR are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB1511

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT V E S

2010

841 other political subdivision construction project that is

842 projected to cost more than $500,000 shall be publicly

843 advertised at least once in a newspaper of general circulation

844 in the county where the project is located at least 30 days

845 before prior to the established bid opening and at least 5 days

846 before prior to any scheduled prebid conference, or advertised

847 daily during the 30-day period immediately preceding the

848 established bid opening date and daily during the 5-day period

849 immediately preceding any scheduled prebid conference on a

850 publicly accessible website. Bids or proposals shall be received

851 and opened at the location, date, and time established in the

852 bid or proposal advertisement. In cases of emergency, the

853 procedures required in this section may be altered by the local

854 governmental entity in any manner that is reasonable under the

855 emergency circumstances.

8~6 Section 21. Paragraph (e) of subsection (25) of section

857 380.06, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

858 380.06 Developments of regional impact.-

859 (25) AREAWIDE DEVELOPMENT OF REGIONAL IMPACT.-

860 (e) The local government shall schedule a public hearing

861 within 60 days after receipt of the petition. The public hearing

862 shall be advertised at least 30 days before prior to the

863 hearing. In addition to the public hearing notice by the local

864 government, the petitioner, except when the petitioner is a

865 local government, shall provide actual notice to each person

866 owning land within the proposed areawide development plan at

867 least 30 days before prior to the hearing. If the petitioner is

868 a local government, or local governments pursuant to an

Page 31 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB 1511

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

869 interlocal agreement, notice of the public hearing shall be

870 provided by the publication of an advertisement on a publicly

871 accessible website maintained by the county or municipality

872 responsible for publication or in a newspaper of general

873 circulation that meets the requirements of this paragraph. The

874 newspaper advertisement must be no less than one-quarter page in

875 a standard size or tabloid size newspaperf and the headline in

876 the newspaper advertisement must be in type no smaller than 18

877 point. The newspaper advertisement may shall not be published in

878 that portion of the newspaper where legal notices and classified

879 advertisements appear. The advertisement must be published on a

880 publicly accessible website maintained by the county or

881 municipality responsible for publication or in a newspaper of

882 general paid circulation in the county and of general interest

883 and readership in the community, not one of limited subject

884 matter, pursuant to chapter 50. Whenever possible, the newspaper

885 advertisement must appear in a newspaper that is published at

886 least 5 days a week, unless the only newspaper in the community

887 is published less than 5 days a week. The advertisement must be

888 in substantially the form used to advertise amendments to

889 comprehensive plans pursuant to s. 163.3184. The local

890 government shall specifically notify in writing the regional

891 planning agency and the state land planning agency at least 30

892 days before prior to the public hearing. At the public hearing,

893 all interested parties may testify and submit evidence regarding

894 the petitioner's qualifications, the need for and benefits of an

895 areawide development of regional impact, and such other issues

896 relevant to a full consideration of the petition. If more than

Page 32 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB 1511

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

897 one local government has jurisdiction over the defined planning

898 area in an areawide development plan, the local governments

899 shall hold a joint public hearing. Such hearing shall address,

900 at a minimum, the need to resolve conflicting ordinances or

901 comprehensive plans, if any. The local government holding the

902 joint hearing shall comply with the following additional

903 requirements:

904 1. The notice of the hearing shall be published at least

905 60 days in advance of the hearing and shall specify where the

906 petition may be reviewed.

907 2. The notice shall be given to the state land planning

908 agency, to the applicable regional planning agency, and to such

909 other persons as may have been designated by the state land

910 planning agency as entitled to receive such notices.

911 3. A public hearing date shall be set by the appropriate

912 local government at the next scheduled meeting.

913 Section 22. Paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of section

914 403.973, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

915 403.973 Expedited permitting; comprehensive plan

916 amendments.-

917 (2) As used in this section, the term:

918 (a) "Duly noticed" means publication on a publicly

919 accessible website maintained by the municipality or county

920 having jurisdiction or in a newspaper of general circulation in

921 the municipality or county having~ jurisdiction. If

922 published in a newspaper, the notice shall appear on at least 2

923 separate days, one of which shall be at least 7 days before the

924 meeting. If published on a publicly accessible website, the

Page 33 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB 1511

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

925 notice shall appear daily during the 7 days immediately

926 preceding the meeting. The notice shall state the date, time,

927 and place of the meeting scheduled to discuss or enact the

928 memorandum of agreement, and the places within the municipality

929 or county where such proposed memorandum of agreement may be

930 inspected by the public. The newspaper notice must be one-eighth

931 of a page in size and must be published in a portion of the

932 paper other than the legal notices section. The notice shall

933 also advise that interested parties may appear at the meeting

934 and be heard with respect to the memorandum of agreement.

935 Section 23. Paragraph (b) of subsection (4) of section

936 420.9075, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

937 420.9075 Local housing assistance plans; partnerships.-

938 (4) Each local housing assistance plan is governed by the

939 following criteria and administrative procedures:

940 (b) The county or eligible municipality or its

941 administrative representative shall advertise the notice of

942 funding availability in a newspaper of general circulation and

943 periodicals serving ethnic and diverse neighborhoods, at least

944 30 days before the beginning of the application period or daily

945 during the 30 days immediately preceding the application period

946 on a publicly accessible website maintained by the county or

947 eligible municipality. If no funding is available due to a

948 waiting list, no notice of funding availability is required.

949 Section 24. Subsection (2) of section 403.7049, Florida

950 Statutes, is amended to read:

951 403.7049 Determination of full cost for solid waste

952 management; local solid waste management fees.-

Page 34 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



FLORIDA

HB 1511

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

953 (2) (a) Each municipality shall establish a system to

954 inform, no less than once a year, residential and nonresidential

955 users of solid waste management services within the

956 municipality's service area of the user's share, on an average

957 or individual basis, of the full cost for solid waste management

958 as determined pursuant to subsection (1). Counties shall provide

959 the information required of municipalities only to residential

960 and nonresidential users of solid waste management services

961 within the county's service area that are not served by a

962 municipality. Municipalities shall include costs charged to them

963 or persons contracting with them for disposal of solid waste in

964 the full cost information provided to residential and

965 nonresidential users of solid waste management services.

966 (b) The public disclosure system requirements of this

967 section shall be fulfilled by meeting one of the following:

968 1. By mailing a copy of the full cost information to each

969 residential and nonresidential user of solid waste management

970 service within the solid waste management service area of the

971 county or municipality;

972 2. By enclosing a copy of the full cost information in or

973 with a bill sent to each residential and nonresidential user of

974 solid waste management services within the service area of the

975 county or municipality;

976 3. By publishing a coPY of the full cost information in a

977 newspaper of general circulation within the county. Such notice

978 shall be a display advertisement not less than one-quarter page

979 in size; or

980 4. By advertising a copy of the full cost information

Page 35 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00



F La RID A

HB 1511

H a USE a F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

981 daily for at least two consecutive weeks on a publicly

982 accessible website maintained by the municipality.

983 ~+e+ Counties and municipalities are encouraged to

984 operate their solid waste management systems through use of an

985 enterprise fund.

986 Section 25. This act shall take effect October 1, 2010.

Page 36 of 36

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1511-00





HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

BILL #: HB 1565 Rulemaking
SPONSOR(S): Dorworth and others
TIED BILLS: IDEN.lSIM. BILLS: SB 1844

REFERENCE

1) Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

2) Economic Development & Community Affairs Policy
Council

ACTION ANALYST STAFF DIRE TO

MC~ Willi.moo '

3) _

4) _

5) _

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

Currently, under the Administrative Procedure Act each agency, before the adoption, amendment, or repeal of
a rule, must consider the impact of the rule on a small business. A small business is defined as an
independently owned and operated business concern that employs 200 or fewer permanent full-time
employees and that, together with its affiliates, has a net worth of not more than $5 million or any firm based in
this state that has a Small Business Administration 8(a) certification. As applicable to sole proprietorships, the
$5 million net worth requirement includes both personal and business investments. Under the current process,
an agency is required to provide the Small Business Advisory Council (Council) and the Office of Tourism,
Trade, and Economic Development in the Executive Office of the Governor with notice of a proposed rule that
affects small businesses 28 days prior to its adoption. The Council has 21 days after it receives notice of a
rule in which to review the impact of that rule on small businesses and offer alternatives to lessen the identified
impact. If an agency does not adopt all alternatives offered by the Council, it must, prior to rule adoption or
amendment, file a detailed written statement with the Administrative Procedures Committee and the Council
explaining the reasons for failure to adopt the alternatives.

The bill adds determinations that must be made prior to the adoption, amendment, or repeal of a rule. If an
agency initially determines that a rule adversely affects'or increases regulatory costs to small businesses, the
agency must retain an independent entity, which can be a third party or the Legislature, to do an independent
economic analysis. The analysis can also be triggered by a request from the Council. The analysis must be
certified by the Office of Economic and Demographic Research. A further independent analysis is required to
determine if a rule that was the subject of the first analysis would result in a net creation of new private sector
jobs and reduce the state's unemployment rate. Finally, the bill requires the Legislature to ratify rules that an
agency cannot demonstrate would result in creation of new private sector jobs and reduce the state's
unemployment rate. Emergency rules are exempt from the requirements for independent analysis and
ratification by the Legislature.

The bill raises issues relating to a violation of separation of powers between the executive and legislative
branches of government. See "Constitutional Issues" section for further discussion.

The bill has an indeterminate, but potentially significant fiscal impact. See "Fiscal Comments."

The bill takes effect July 1, 2010.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h1565.GAP.doc
DATE: 3/21/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives .

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Present Situation

Administrative Procedure Ad

Administrative Procedures Committee2

Within the Administrative Procedure Act, the responsibility of the Administrative Procedures Committee
of the Legislature is spelled out. As a legislative check on legislatively created authority, the committee
is required to examine every proposed rule, unless exempted by law, and existing rules to make certain
determinations. Among those are such things as:

• Is the rule an invalid exercise of delegated legislative authority,
• Has the statutory authority for the rule been repealed,
• Is it in proper form, was proper notice given and was it adequate for the purpose and effect of

the rule,
• Is it consistent with expressed legislative intent,
• Is it a reasonable implementation of the law as it affects persons impacted,
• Is it necessary to implement the law cited, and
• Could regulatory costs on persons impacted by the rule be reduced by adoption of a less costly

alternative.3

The Administrative Procedures Committee then makes recommendations for change in the law, if
determined necessary. Those recommendations for change, if any, are presented as legislation to
come before the House of Representatives and Senate for consideration just as are other issues.4

Rules Relating to Small Business
Each agency, before the adoption, amendment, or repeal of a rule, is required to consider the impact of
the rule on a small business. A small business means an independently owned and operated business
concern that employs 200 or fewer permanent full-time employees and that, together with its affiliates,
has a net worth of not more than $5 million or any firm based in this state that has a Small Business

1 Codified in chapter 120, F.S.
2 See s. 120.545, F.S.
3 See s. 120.545(1), F.S.
4 See s. 120.545(8), F.S.
STORAGE NAME: h1565.GAP.doc
DATE: 3/21/2010

PAGE: 2



Administration 8(a) certification. As applicable to sole proprietorships, the $5 million net worth
requirement includes both personal and business investments.

Under the current process, an agency is required to provide the Small Business Advisory Council
(Council) and the Office of Tourism, Trade, and Economic Development in the Executive Office of the
Governor with notice of a proposed rule that affects small businesses 28 days prior to its adoption. The
Council has 21 days after it receives notice of a rule in which to review the impact of that rule on small
businesses and offer alternatives to lessen the identified impact. According to the staff of the Joint
Administrative Procedures Committee (Committee), the Council meets once each month, which means
that the 21 day deadline is sometimes past before the Council has had time to consider a rule.5 Under
current law, if the Council does offer a small business alternative, the time limit for adopting the rule is
extended 21 days, within which time the agency must consider the alternative, revise its statement of
estimated regulatory costs as necessary, and accept or reject the alternative. If an agency does not
adopt all alternatives offered by the Small Business Regulatory Advisory Council, it must, prior to rule
adoption or amendment, file a detailed written statement with the Administrative Procedures Committee
and the Small Business Regulatory Advisory Council explaining the reasons for failure to adopt the
alternatives.6

A statement on estimated regulatory costs (SERC) affecting small businesses must be prepared by an
agency and must not be limited to only those proposed rules that have an adverse impact on small
business, but be done on any rule that affects a small business. A SERC must include the following:

• A good faith estimate of the number of individuals and entities likely to be required to comply
with the rule, together with a general description of the types of individuals likely to be affected
by the rule;

• A good faith estimate of the cost to the agency, and to any other state and local government
entities, of implementing and enforcing the proposed rule, and any anticipated effect on state or
local revenues;

• A good faith estimate of the transactional costs likely to be incurred by individuals and entities,
including local government entities, required to comply with the requirements of the rUle?;

• An analysis of the impact on small businesses and an analysis of the impact on small counties
and small cities; and

• Additional information that the agency determines may be useful.

Additionally, agency notices and reports relating to impacts on small business must be sent in writing to
the Council and the Committee.

Every 2 years, agencies review their rules and provide a report to the Speaker of the House of
Representatives and the President of the Senate regarding changes made to rules that promote
efficiency, reduce paperwork, or decrease costs to government and the private sector. In 2008, this
requirement was changed to include the economic impact on small businesses. The 2010 report is due
October 1,2010.8

Office of Tourism, Trade, and Economic Development9

The Office of Tourism, Trade, and Economic Development (OTTED) within the Executive Office of the
Governor is responsible for "considering the impact of agency rules on businesses" and for serving "as
an advocate for business, particularly small businesses, in their dealings with state agencies. ,,10

OTTED is charged with reviewing proposed agency actions for impacts on small businesses and with
offering alternatives to mitigate those impacts. Also, in consultation with the Governor's rules

5 Information received from the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee staff on March 3, 2010.
6 See s. 120.54(3)(b), F.S.
7 According to s. 120.541(c), F.S., "transactional costs" are direct costs that are readily ascertainable based upon standard business
practices, and include filing fees, the cost of obtaining a license, the cost ofequipment required to be installed or used or procedures
required to be employed in complying with the rule, additional operating costs incurred, and the cost of monitoring and reporting.
8 See s. 120.74, F.S., and s. 8, ch.2008-149.
9 Created in s. 14.2015, F.S. With the dismantling of the Department of Commerce in 1996, OTTED was created within the Executive
Office of the Governor and assumed some ofthe roles ofthe Department ofCommerce albeit on a smaller scale.
10 See s. 14.2015(6)(a), F.S.
STORAGE NAME: h1565.GAP.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 3/21/2010



ombudsman, OITED has the power and duty to make recommendations to state agencies on "any
existing and proposed rules for alleviating unnecessary or disproportionate adverse effects to
businesses. ,,11

Small Business Regulatory Advisory Council12

The Small Business Regulatory Advisory Council, an advisory body created in 2008, may make
recommendations to agencies on proposed rules or programs that adversely affect small businesses,
consider requests from small businesses to review rules or programs adopted by an agency, and
review rules promulgated by an agency to determine whether a rule places an unnecessary burden on
small business and make recommendations to the agency to mitigate the adverse effects.13 The
Council actively participates in the Administrative Procedure Act rule review and recommendation
process for state agency rules affecting small businesses.

Effect of Proposed Changes

The bill adds determinations that must be made prior to the adoption, amendment, or repeal of a rule. If
a rule adversely affects or increases regulatory costs to small businesses, an agency must retain an
independent entity, which can be a third party or the Legislature, to do an independent economic
analysis. The analysis can also be triggered by a request from the Council. Any analysis that is done
must be certified by the Office of Economic and Demographic Research.

A further independent analysis is required to determine if a rule that was the subject of the first
economic analysis would result in a net creation of new private sector jobs and reduce the state's
unemployment rate. The legislation does not differentiate between different types of rules such as
health safety or other necessary regulatory changes that might not show a net increase in private
sector jobs and a reduction in unemployment; however, such rules might have a cost impact on small
businesses.

Additionally, no indication is given as to how the determination is to be made for reduction of the
unemployment rate.

Finally, the bill requires the Legislature to ratify rules except for emergency rules.

In effect, executive rulemaking functions are being shifted to the legislative branch of government which
raises concerns regarding separation of powers. See "Constitutional Issues" section for further
discussion.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1 amends s. 120.54(3)(b), F.S., creating requirements for an agency if it determines a rule
adversely affects small businesses or increases regulatory costs to small businesses; requiring
certification of certain economic analyses by the Office of Economic and Demographic Research;
requiring rule ratification by the Legislature under certain circumstances.

Section 2 provides an effective date of July 1,2010.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

It is unknown how the bill will affect state government revenues.

II See s. 14.2015(6)(b), F.S.
12 Created in s. 288.7001, F.S., the advisory council is composed of9 members who are current or former small business owners, with
three members appointed by the Governor, three by the Speaker ofthe House of Representatives, and three appointed by the President
of the Senate. The council is administratively housed in the Florida Small Business Development Center Network.
13 See s. 288.7001(3)(c), F.S.
STORAGE NAME: h1565.GAP.doc PAGE: 4
DATE: 3/21/2010



2. Expenditures:

It is unknown Indeterminate, but potentially significant. See "Fiscal Comments."

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

It is unknown how the bill will affect local government revenues.

2. Expenditures:

It is unknown how the bill will affect local government expenditures.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

Indeterminate. Persons or companies performing the kinds of independent analyses required by the
bill could see an increase in business based upon the third party contracting requirements.
Additionally, there could be a negative impact on businesses caused by delays in review and
ratification of rules; or a potentially positive impact on small businesses.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

Although indeterminate, the bill will increase expenditures relating to the required independent
economic analyses required. The total costs of the economic analyses will be dependent on the
number of rule changes that require an analysis, which is not known at this time, and the cost of each
analysis required.

According to the Department of Business and Professional Regulation in its analysis of HB 1565:

In 2009, the department proposed 275 rules. As agency regulating businesses
and professions, majority, if not all affect small businesses. For purposes of this
example, it is estimated that 80% of the proposed rules could fall into the
category of low complexity and limited impact requiring a lower threshold
independent economic impact analysis estimated at $5,000. The remaining
could fall into the category of high complexity and large impact requiring a higher
threshold independent economic impact of $50,000. Therefore, the initial impact
cost would be $3,850,000.00 (220 x $5,000 = $1,100,000) + (55 x $50,000 =
$2,750,000).14

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This bill does not require counties or municipalities to spend funds or to take an action requiring the
expenditure of funds. This bill does not reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with counties or
municipalities. This bill does not reduce the authority that municipalities have to raise revenue.

2. Other:

Concerns regarding separation of powers are raised on the following parts of the bill:
• Authorizing the Legislature to serve as the independent entity for reviewing the rules for the

executive agencies, if asked, and reporting on those findings and then taking action in its
legislative capacity are problematic.

14 2010 Bill Analysis & Economic Impact Statement, HB 1844, Department of Business & Professional Regulation, at 6.
STORAGE NAME: h1565.GAP.doc PAGE: 5
DATE: 3/21/2010



• Requiring the Legislature to ratify any rule that has an adverse effect on or increases the
regulatory costs of small businesses without increasing private sector jobs or reducing the
unemployment rate.

Article II, sec. 3 of the Florida Constitution, states that state government's powers are divided into
the legislative, executive and judicial branches. Specifically,

No person belonging to one branch shall exercise any powers appertaining to
either of the other branches unless expressly provided herein.

As the United States Supreme Court has stated:

Executive action under legislatively delegated authority that might resemble
'legislative' action in some respects is not subject to the approval of [the
legislature] for the reason that the Constitution does not so require. That kind of
Executive action is always subject to check by the terms of the legislation that
authorized it; and if that authority is exceeded it is open to judicial review as well
as the power of [the legislature] to modify or revoke the authority entirely.15

This concept was directly addressed by Professor Patricia A. Dore in her seminal article regarding
access to administrative proceedings in Florida in which she stated, "[S]tate constitutional problems
with legislative participation in agency rulemaking surfaced in the state courts even before the United
States Supreme Court held the legislative veto violative of the Federal Constitution in [Chadha]." 16

State supreme courts and attorneys general in Kentucky, New Hampshire, West Virginia,
Tennessee, and Texas have found legislative approval of agency rules as unconstitutional.17

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

The bill has a significant effect on rulemaking authority of agencies. It also shifts rulemaking ratification
to the Legislature which is discussed in the "Constitutional Issues" section.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

Section 120.52, F.S., provides that "an agency may adopt only rules that implement or interpret the
specific powers and duties granted by the enabling statute." Agencies will not be able to promulgate a
rule that creates jobs or reduces unemployment unless the implemented statute provides for job
creation or unemployment reduction.

The Agency for Health Care Administration stated "this burdensome process will delay necessary
rulemaking, compromising an agency's ability to meet its regulatory duties. This has significant
ramifications on the health, safety and welfare of the population protected by health care regulatory
agencies such as AHCA.,,18

The Department Business and Professional Regulation (DBPR) stated "the financial costs and the time
required to perform the analysis would paralyze agency rulemaking." Additionally, it stated the
workload for the Legislature to assume would not be feasible:

In February 2010 alone, the Florida Administrative Weekly contained Notices of
Proposed Rule for 166 rules. If we assume that 50 percent of those rules will
meet the threshold requirements of this bill, which is a conservative estimate
because 99.8 percent of Florida businesses are small businesses, then the

15 Immigration & Naturalization Servo V. Chadra, 462 U.S. 919, 954 n. 16 (1983).
16See Patricia A. Dore, Access to Florida Administrative Proceedings, 13 Fla. St. U. L. Rev. 967, 1015-16 (Winter 1986).
17 See id. at 1015-1016.
18 2010BiB Analysis & Economic Impact Statement, SB 1844 (Identical Bill to HB 1565), ACHA, at 2.
STORAGE NAME: h1565.GAP.doc PAGE: 6
DATE: 3/21/2010



legislature could very easily be asked to perform approximately 83 economic
analyses per month. Such a workload is not feasible. 19

The DBPR analysis determined that in order to reduce the unemployment rate of 11.8 percent in
December 2009, based on a labor force of 9,180,000 people and 1,087,000 jobless people, 8,500 jobs
would have to be created to lower the rate to 11.74 percent.20

DBPR also stated there was no direct conflict with federal law; however, the Florida Real Estate
Appraisal Board must comply with federal requirements:

Any delay in the rulemaking process may hinder Florida's ability to adopt ever
changing federal requirements for the licensing and practice of the appraisal
profession. It may also hinder compliance with the federal mandate to close
FREAB cases within one year of the complaint being received by the
department.21

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

19 2010 Legislative Analysis Form, SB 1844, Department ofBusiness & Professional Regulation, p. 4.
20 Ibid., p. 4.
21 Ibid., P 7.
STORAGE NAME: h1565.GAP.doc
DATE: 3/21/2010

PAGE: 7



FLORIDA

HB 1565

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

1 A bill to be entitled

2 An act relating to rulemaking; amending s. 120.54, F.S.;

3 requiring each agency, before adopting, amending, or

4 repealing a rule, to determine whether the rule would

5 adversely affect small businesses or increase the

6 regulatory costs of small businesses; requiring the agency

7 to conduct an independent economic analysis under certain

8 specified circumstances; prohibiting a state agency from

9 producing its own economic analysis or an economic

10 analysis for another state agency; requiring that the

11 economic analysis be certified as valid by the Office of

12 Economic and Demographic Research; requiring the agency to

13 request further independent analysis if the rule would

14 adversely affect or increase the regulatory costs of small

15 businesses; requiring a rule to be ratified by the

16 Legislature if the state agency cannot prove that the rule

17 creates new jobs and lowers the unemployment rate for the

18 state; requiring that rules subject to ratification be

19 accompanied by a report from the agency explaining why the

20 rule does not create new private-sector jobs and reduce

21 the unemployment rate for the state; providing that the

22 act is not applicable to certain specified rules;

23 providing an effective date.

24

25 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the state of Florida:

26

27 Section 1. Paragraph (b) of subsection (3) of section

28 120.54, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

Page 1of 6

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1565-00



FLORIDA

HB 1565

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

29 120.54 Rulemaking.-

30 (3) ADOPTION PROCEDURES.-

31 (b) Special matters to be considered in rule adoption.-

32 1. Statement of estimated regulatory costs.-Prior to the

33 adoption, amendment, or repeal of any rule other than an

34 emergency rule, an agency is encouraged to prepare a statement

35 of estimated regulatory costs of the proposed rule, as provided

36 by s. 120.541. However, an agency shall prepare a statement of

37 estimated regulatory costs of the proposed rule, as provided by

38 s. 120.541, if the proposed rule will have an impact on small

39 business.

40 2. Small businesses, small counties, and small cities.-

41 a. Each agency, before the adoption, amendment, or repeal

42 of a rule, shall consider the impact of the rule on small

43 businesses as defined by s. 288.703 and the impact of the rule

44 on small counties or small cities as defined by s. 120.52.

45 Whenever practicable, an agency shall tier its rules to reduce

46 disproportionate impacts on small businesses, small counties, or

47 small cities to avoid regulating small businesses, small

48 counties, or small cities that do not contribute significantly

49 to the problem the rule is designed to address. An agency may

50 define "small business" to include businesses employing more

51 than 200 persons, may define "small county" to include those

52 with populations of more than 75,000, and may define "small

53 city" to include those with populations of more than 10,000, if

54 it finds that such a definition is necessary to adapt a rule to

55 the needs and problems of small businesses, small counties, or

56 small cities. The agency shall consider each of the following

Page 2of6

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1565-00



FLORIDA

HB 1565

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

57 methods for reducing the impact of the proposed rule on small

58 businesses, small counties, and small cities, or any combination

59 of these entities:

60 (I) Establishing less stringent compliance or reporting

61 requirements in the rule.

62 (II) Establishing less stringent schedules or deadlines in

63 the rule for compliance or reporting requirements.

64 (III) Consolidating or simplifying the rule's compliance

65 or reporting requirements.

66 (IV) Establishing performance standards or best management

67 practices to replace design or operational standards in the

68 rule.

69 (V) Exempting small businesses, small counties, or small

70 cities from any or all requirements of the rule.

71 b.

72 (I) If the agency determines that the proposed action will

73 affect small businesses as defined by the agency as provided in

74 sub-subparagraph a., the agency shall send written notice of the

75 rule to the Small Business Regulatory Advisory Council and the

76 Office of Tourism, Trade, and Economic Development not less than

77 28 days prior to the intended action.

78 (II) Each agency shall adopt those regulatory alternatives

79 offered by the Small Business Regulatory Advisory Council and

80 provided to the agency no later than 21 days after the council's

81 receipt of the written notice of the rule which it finds are

82 feasible and consistent with the stated objectives of the

83 proposed rule and which would reduce the impact on small

84 businesses. When regulatory alternatives are offered by the

Page 3 of 6

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1565-00



FLORIDA

HB 1565

H 0 USE o F REP RESENTATIVES

2010

85 Small Business Regulatory Advisory Council, the 90-day period

86 for filing the rule in subparagraph (e)2. is extended for a

87 period of 21 days.

88 (III) If an agency does not adopt all alternatives offered

89 pursuant to this sub-subparagraph, it shall, prior to rule

90 adoption or amendment and pursuant to subparagraph (d)l., file a

91 detailed written statement with the committee explaining the

92 reasons for failure to adopt such alternatives. Within 3 working

93 days of the filing of such notice, the agency shall send a copy

94 of such notice to the Small Business Regulatory Advisory

95 Council. The Small Business Regulatory Advisory Council may make

96 a request of the President of the Senate and the Speaker of the

97 House of Representatives that the presiding officers direct the

98 Office of Program Policy Analysis and Government Accountability

99 to determine whether the rejected alternatives reduce the impact

100 on small business while meeting the stated objectives of the

101 proposed rule. Within 60 days after the date of the directive

102 from the presiding officers, the Office of Program Policy

103 Analysis and Government Accountability shall report to the

104 Administrative Procedures Committee its findings as to whether

105 an alternative reduces the impact on small business while

106 meeting the stated objectives of the proposed rule. The Office

107 of Program Policy Analysis and Government Accountability shall

108 consider the proposed rule, the economic impact statement, the

109 written statement of the agency, the proposed alternatives, and

110 any comment submitted during the comment period on the proposed

111 rule. The Office of Program Policy Analysis and Government

112 Accountability shall submit a report of its findings and

Page 4 of 6

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1565-00



FLORIDA

HB 1565

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

113 recommendations to the Governor, the President of the Senate,

114 and the Speaker of the House of Representatives. The

115 Administrative Procedures Committee shall report such findings

116 to the agency, and the agency shall respond in writing to the

117 Administrative Procedures Committee if the Office of Program

118 Policy Analysis and Government Accountability found that the

119 alternative reduced the impact on small business while meeting

120 the stated objectives of the proposed rule. If the agency will

121 not adopt the alternative, it must also provide a detailed

122 written statement to the committee as to why it will not adopt

123 the alternative.

124 3. Job creation.-

125 a. Except as provided in sub-subparagraph g., each agency

126 shall initially determine, before adopting, amending, or

127 repealing a rule, whether the rule would:

128 (I) Adversely affect small businesses; or

129 (II) Increase regulatory costs to those small businesses

130 affected.

131 b. If the agency initially determines the rule would

132 adversely affect small businesses or increase the regulatory

133 costs of small businesses, the agency shall retain an

134 independent entity to conduct an economic analysis to determine

135 the extent to which the rule as adopted, amended, or repealed,

136 would adversely affect a small business or increase its

137 regulatory costs. The agency shall also initiate an independent

138 economic analysis if it receives an electronic or written

139 request from the Small Business Regulatory Advisory Council to

140 do so.

Page 5of 6

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1565-00



FLORIDA

HB 1565

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

141 c. The independent entity used to conduct the analysis may

142 be the Legislature or a third party. However, the agency

143 proposing the rule may not conduct its own economic analysis and

144 an agency may not conduct an analysis for any other agency. The

145 completed analysis must be certified as valid by the Office of

146 Economic and Demographic Research.

147 d. If the independent analysis shows that the rule would

148 adversely affect small businesses or increase the regulatory

149 costs of small businesses, the agency shall request the

150 independent entity to further analyze whether the rule as

151 adopted, amended, or repealed, would:

152 (I) Result in the net creation of new private-sector jobs;

153 and

154 (II) Reduce the state's unemployment rate.

155 e. If an agency cannot demonstrate that the rule as

156 adopted, amended, or repealed would result in the net creation

157 of new private-sector jobs and reduce tne state's unemployment

158 rate, the rule may not take effect until the rule is submitted

159 to and ratified by the Legislature.

160 f. Rules subject to ratification by the Legislature must

161 be accompanied by a report from the agency which explains why

162 the rule does not result in the creation of new private-sector

163 jobs or reduce the state's unemployment rate.

164 g. A prop0sed rule is not subject to this subparagraph if

165 the proposed rule is initiated by an agency pursuant to its

166 emergency rulemaking powers.

167 Section 2. This act shall take effect July 1, 2010.

Page" 6 of 6

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1565-00





HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

BILL #: HB 1603 Florida State Employees' Charitable Campaign
SPONSOR(S): Cruz and others
TIED BILLS: IDEN.JSIM. BILLS: SB 1312

ACTIONREFERENCE

1) Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

2) Economic Development & Community Affairs Policy
Council

3) _

4) _

5) _

ANALYS~ IlTAFF DIRE" TO

-------- Haug =:gr Williamso

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

On an annual basis, the Department of Management Services, in consultation with the Florida State
Employees' Charitable Campaign statewide steering committee screens upwards of 1400 applications from
charities applying to participate in the campaign. Employees are invited to designate their pledged amount to
the charity(ies) of their choice and the associated amount(s) will be paid through payroll deduction. Employees
also may donate money to the campaign without designating a specific charity. Such donations are classified
as "undesignated funds." Monies earmarked to a particular charity are forwarded to that charity (or that
charity's parent organization) by the local fiscal agent. Undesignated monies are maintained by the local fiscal
agent until allocation decisions have been made.

In 2006, the Legislature created a two-fold allocation process for undesignated funds. Implementation of the
two-fold allocation process for undesignated funds necessitated the creation of a second application process
that has been difficult to administer due to ambiguities in the statutory language

The bill makes changes to the Florida State Employees' Charitable Campaign to provide a uniform distribution
process of undesignated funds. The bill eliminates the undesignated funds application and decision making
process and establishes a pro rata method as the sole manner for allocation of undesignated funds to
participating charitable organizations.

This bill is expected to reduce expenditures by the Department of Management Services. It does not have a
fiscal impact on local governments.

This bill has an effective date of JUly 1, 2010.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h1603.GAP.doc
DATE: 3/17/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following gUiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Background
On an annual basis, the Department of Management Services (OMS), in consultation with the Florida
State Employees' Charitable Campaign (FSECC) statewide steering committee (consisting of 9
appointed state employees) must screen upwards of 1400 applications from charities applying to
participate in the campaign. The vast majority of these applicant organizations (1200 to 1300) meets
the criteria each year and become participating charities. 1

FSECC fundraising is de-centralized into 27 fiscal agent areas. OMS contracts with the United Way of
Florida, Inc. (UWOF), to act as the fiscal agent. UWOF then utilizes the 27 regional United Way
entities to serve as sub-agents to perform the duties of the contracted fiscal agent. During the annual
campaign, each state employee receives a booklet that lists the participating charities for the fiscal
agent area in which he or she works. In addition to listing the participating United Way charities
specific to the fiscal agent area, each booklet also lists the other participating charities. Employees are
invited to designate their pledged amount to the charity(ies) of their choice and the associated
amount(s) will be paid through payroll deduction.

Employees also may donate money to the campaign without designating a specific charity. Such
donations are classified as "undesignated funds." Additional undesignated funds are collected from
various state agency hosted fund raising events such as bake sales and short distance jogging.

Monies collected in each fiscal agent area are handled separately by each local fiscal agent. Monies
earmarked to a particular charity are forwarded to that charity (or that charity's parent organization) by
the local fiscal agent. Undesignated monies are maintained by the local fiscal agent until allocation
decisions have been made.

Historically all decisions regarding the allocation of undesignated funds were delegated to the local
steering committee in each fiscal agent area. These committees were and still are comprised of state
employees located in each respective fiscal agent area. Any charity that OMS and the FSECC
statewide steering committee approved to participate in a particular fiscal agent area can petition the
local steering committee of that area for undesignated funds. The allocation of undesignated funds

1 Department of Management Services HB 1603 (2010) Substantive Bill Analysis (March 12, 2010) at 1 (on file with the Governmental
Affairs Policy Committee).
STORAGE NAME: h1603.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 3/17/2010



between local (United Way) charities, national charities, international charities and independent
charities is at the sole discretion of each local steering committee.

In 2006, the Legislature created a two-fold allocation process for undesignated funds.2 "Tier One"
undesignated funds determinations occur when charities apply to OMS and certify that they are
providing direct services to one or more fiscal agent areas. Charities affiliated with the United Way
have been allowed to participate in the Tier One allocation process without having to formally apply, on
the premise that they provide direct services in their respective fiscal agent area as a matter of course.
OMS, in consultation with the FSECC statewide steering committee, reviews applications from the non
United Way charities and determines which ones have met the criteria for Tier One undesignated
funds. All eligible charities receive a pro rata share of the Tier One funds (Le., the same percentage of
undesignated funds as the percentage of designated funds they received).3 In 2008, the FSECC
statewide steering committee reviewed applications from 90 different charities with over 1,192 fiscal
agent area claims. Those applicants had to be analyzed to determine if direct services were provided
in those local fiscal agent areas.4

After the Tier One allocation is made usually there are residual undesignated funds remaining in most
of the fiscal agent areas. The local steering committees are then tasked with allocation of these "Tier
Two" funds. It is left to their discretion as to which participating charities will receive a portion of the
undesignated funds and what percentage/dollar amount they will receive. There are no statutory
eligibility requirements in order for organizations to receive undesignated funds through the Tier Two
distribution process other than the organization must be approved for participation in the current year's
campaign.

Implementation of the two-fold allocation process for undesignated funds necessitated the creation of a
second application process administered by OMS. The FSECC statewide steering committee is now
involved in a second application process. This has significantly increased the amount of time OMS
devotes to administration of the campaign and that the FSECC statewide steering committee must
spend meeting and deliberating. In addition, the task of determining whether non United Way charities
are providing direct services in a local fiscal agent area as contemplated by the 2006 change in the law
has been difficult to perform due to ambiguities in the statutory language. Consequently, the first year
of application of the statutory requirement resulted in litigation due to charities challenging the
determination that they had not met the criteria. .

Effect of Proposed Changes
The bill makes changes to the Florida State Employees' Charitable Campaign to provide a uniform
distribution process of undesignated funds. The bill eliminates the undesignated funds application and
decision making process that currently requires substantial OMS staff time to administer.

The bill establishes a pro rata method as the sole manner for allocation of undesignated funds to
participating charitable organizations. This change is accomplished by eliminating the requirement that
only those charities that provide direct services in a local fiscal agent's area may receive undesignated
funds.

The change will remove the discretion of the FSECC statewide steering committee to interpret the
meaning of the term "direct services" and resulting fund distribution.5 This interpretive process has
been the subject of controversy and has led to litigation.6

2 Public Law 2006-221; codified at s. 110.181, F.S.
3 Section 11O.181(2)(e), F.S.
4 Department of Management Services HB 1603 (2010) Substantive Bill Analysis (March 12, 2010) at 2 (on file with the Governmental
Affairs Policy Committee).
5 Section 110.181(2)(e), F.S.
6 Community Health Charities of Florida v. State, Dept. ofManagement Services, 961 So.2d 372, (Fla. 1

st
DCA 2007); Community

Health Charities ofFlorida v. State, Dept. ofManagement Services, 7 So.3d 570 (Fla. 1
st

DCA 2009).
STORAGE NAME: h1603.GAP.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 3/17/2010



B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1: Amends s. 110.181, F.S., removing the power of local steering committees to direct
distribution of undesignated charitable campaign funds.

Section 2: Provides an effective date of July 1, 2010.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

This bill is expected to reduce expenditures by the Department of Management Services (see Fiscal
Comments).

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

The funds received by participating charitable organizations may increase or decrease depending on
the level of contributions received as a result of each annual campaign.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

The Department of Management Service provided the following fiscal comment:

Since the inception of the FSECC in 1993, the Legislature has provided the OMS Division of Human
Resource Management (HRM) with an annual appropriation of $17,000 to administer the campaign.
Even if we assume the cost of doing business has not generally risen in the past 17 years, this amount
would not include the costs associated with the new application process, the unanticipated expenses of
litigation, or the ongoing legal services that are now required. As a consequence, the actual
administrative costs to OMS for the FSECC in Fiscal Year 2007 to 2008 was $106,457.53, ofwhich
$45,101.23 was general counsel hours, $7,181.16 was for other legal costs (including Attorney General
hours) and $12,800.00 was the cost of a settlement agreement. In Fiscal Year 2008 to 2009, actual
administrative costs were $153,830.23, of which $54,043.29 were related to legal services. Even
though the statutes authorize OMS to recoup from the campaign the administrative costs that exceed
our appropriation, such reimbursement is capped to 1% of campaign proceeds, which has been
declining slightly the past few years (the 2007 campaign raised $4,869,270.00 but the 2008 campaign
only raised $4,364,809.00). For example, in FY 08-09 OMS had to absorb over $93,000.00:

$153,830.23 Grand Total Expenditures for FY 08-09
($ 17,000.00) Covered by Annual Appropriation
($ 43,648.09) Amount Recouped from Campaign (1 % of the $4,364,809.00 raised in 2008)
$ 93,182.14 Amount Absorbed by OMS

Also, because the amount recouped from the campaign is not returned directly to either the operating
budget of HRM or the OMS Office of the General Counsel (OGC), the actual impact on thes~ program

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

h1603.GAP.doc
3/1712010

PAGE: 4



areas is a loss of over $136,000.000, which affects their ability to effectively perform other mission
critical activities. Specifically:

$153,830.23 Grand Total Expenditures for FY 08-09
($ 17,000.00) Appropriation Amount in the HRM Budget
$136,830.23 Total Amount un-recouped by HRM and OGC

Of the 2,047.25 hours of professional staff time that HRM devoted to the FSECC in Fiscal Year 2008 to
2009, HRM estimates that approximately 682.42 hours or a third (33%) was required to administer the
undesignated funds process of the Campaign?

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

The bill does not appear to: require cities or counties to spend funds or take an action requiring the
expenditure of funds; reduce the authority that cities or counties have to raise revenues in the
aggregate; or reduce the percentage of a shared state tax or premium sales tax received by cities or
counties.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

None.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

7 Department of Management Services HB 1603 (2010) Substantive Bill Analysis (March 12, 2010) at 2 (on file with the Governmental
Affairs Policy Committee).
STORAGE NAME: h1603.GAP.doc PAGE: 5
DATE: 3/17/2010



FLORIDA

H81603

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2010

1 A bill to be entitled

2 An act relating to the Florida state Employees' Charitable

3 Campaign; amending s. 110.181, F.S.; deleting the power of

4 local steering committees to direct the distribution of

5 undesignated funds; requiring such undesignated campaign

6 funds to be shared proportionally by the participating

7 charitable organizations based on the percentage of

8 designations in each area; providing an effective date.

9

10 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the state of Florida:

11

12 Section 1. Subsection (2) of section 110.181, Florida

13 Statutes, is amended to read:

14 110.181 Florida State Employees' Charitable Campaign.-

15 (2) SELECTION OF FISCAL AGENTS; COST.-

16 (a) The Department of Management Services shall select

17 through the competitive procurement process a fiscal agent or

18 agents to receive, account for, and distribute charitable

19 contributions among participating charitable organizations.

20 (b) The fiscal agent shall withhold the reasonable costs

21 for conducting the campaign and for accounting and distribution

22 to the participating organizations and shall reimburse the

23 department the actual cost, not to exceed 1 percent of gross

24 pledges, for coordinating the campaign in accordance with the

25 rules of the department. In any fiscal year in which the

26 Legislature specifically appropriates to the department its

27 total costs for coordinating the campaign from the General

28 Revenue Fund, the fiscal agent is not required to reimburse such

Page 1of 2

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1603-00



FLORIDA

HB 1603

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2010

29 costs to the department under this subsection. Otherwise,

30 reimbursement will be the difference between actual costs and

31 the amount appropriated.

32 (c) The fiscal agent shall furnish the department and

33 participating charitable organizations a report of the

34 accounting and distribution activities. Records relating to

35 these activities shall be open for inspection upon reasonable

36 notice and request.

37 (d) A local steering committee shall be established in

38 each fiscal agent area to assist in conducting the campaign ~

39 to direct the distribution of undesignated funds remaining after

40 partial distribution pursuant to paragraph (e). The committee

41 shall be composed of state employees selected by the fiscal

42 agent from among recommendations provided by interested

43 participating organizations, if any, and approved by the

44 Statewide Steering Committee.

45 (e) Participating charitable organizations tpat provide

46 direct services in a local fiscal agent's area shall receive the

47 same percentage of undesignated funds as the percentage of

48 designated funds they receive in the campaign. The payment of

49 each charity's share of undesignated funds shall be distributed

50 in the same manner as the designations. The undesignated funds

51 remaining folloHing allocation to these charitable organizations

52 shall be distributed by the local steering committee.

53 Section 2. This act shall take effect July 1, "2010.

Page 2of 2

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1603-00





BILL#:
SPONSOR(S):
TIED BILLS:

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

PCB GAP 10-19 OGSR Voluntary Prekindergarten
Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

IDEN.JSIM. BILLS: CS/SB 2144

REFERENCE

Orig. Comm.: Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee

ACTION ANALYST

Williamso

1) _

2) _

3) _

4) _

5) _

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The Open Government Sunset Review Act requires the Legislature to review each public record and each
public meeting exemption five years after enactment. If the Legislature does not reenact the exemption, it
automatically repeals on October 2nd of the fifth year after enactment.

In 2002, the State Constitution was amended to require the establishment of a prekindergarten program for
every 4-year-old child in the state that is voluntary, high-quality, free, and delivered according to professionally
accepted standards. As such, the Legislature created the voluntary prekindergarten (VPK) program. The VPK
program is administered at the local level by school districts and early learning coalitions. At the state level,
the Department of Education administers the educational accountability requirements of the program and the
Agency for Workforce Innovation (AWl) administers the operational requirements of the program.

Current law provides a public record exemption for the VPK program. Individual records of a child enrolled in
the VPK program held by an early learning coalition, AWl, or a VPK program provider are confidential and
exempt from public records requirements. Current law also authorizes the sharing and release of such
records.

The bill reenacts the public record exemption, which will repeal on October 2, 2010, if this bill does not become
law. It also reorganizes the exemption.

The bill does not appear to have a fiscal impact on state or local governments.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: pcb19.GAP.doc
DATE: 3/6/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

BACKGROUND

Open Government Sunset Review Act
The Open Government Sunset Review Act1 sets forth a legislative review process for neWly created or
substantially amended public record or public meeting exemptions. It requires an automatic repeal of
the exemption on October 2nd of the fifth year after creation or substantial amendment, unless the
Legislature reenacts the exemption.

The Act provides that a public record or public meeting exemption may be created or maintained only if
it serves an identifiable public purpose. In addition, it may be no broader than is necessary to meet one
of the following purposes:

• Allows the state or its political subdivisions to effectively and efficiently administer a
governmental program, which administration would be significantly impaired without the
exemption.

• Protects sensitive personal information that, if released, would be defamatory or would
jeopardize an individual's safety; however, only the identity of an individual may be exempted
under this provision.

• Protects trade or business secrets.

If, and only if, in reenacting an exemption that will repeal, the exemption is expanded (essentially
creating a new exemption), then a public necessity statement and a two-thirds vote for passage are
required.2 If the exemption is reenacted with grammatical or stylistic changes that do not expand the
exemption, if the exemption is narrowed, or if an exception to the exemption is created3 then a public
necessity statement and a two-thirds vote for passage are not required.

Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program
In 2002, the State Constitution was amended to require the establishment of a prekindergarten
program for every 4-year-old child in the state that is voluntary, high-quality, free, and delivered

1 Section 119.15, F.S.
2 Section 24(cl, Art. I of the State Constitution.
3 An example of an exception to a public record exemption would be allowing another agency access to confidential or exempt
records.
STORAGE NAME: pcb19.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 3/6/2010



according to professionally accepted standards.4 As such, the Legislature created the voluntary
prekindergarten (VPK) program. It took effect for the 2005 school year and provided the parents of
eligible children a choice among three program options: a school-year VPK program delivered by a
private prekindergarten provider, a school-year VPK program delivered by a public school, or a summer
VPK program delivered by a public school or private prekindergarten provider.5

The VPK program is administered at the local level by school districts and early learning coalitions.6 At
the state level, the Department of Education administers the educational accountability requirements of
the program? and the Agency for Workforce Innovation (AWl) administers the operational requirements
of the program.8 AWl's specific operational requirements include determining the eligibility of private
providers to deliver the VPK program.

All VPK providers must register with an early learning coalition, comply with federal antidiscrimination
requirements, and may not discriminate against a parent or child, including the refusal to admit a child
for enrollment in the VPK program in violation of the antidiscrimination requirements.9

In 2008-2009, there were 5,660 providers that participated in the VPK program, 657 offered the
summer program and 5,472 offered the school year program.10 Most of the VPK providers (84 percent)
were private centers. For 2008-2009, the VPK program enrollment is estimated to be 63.5 percent of
the 4-year old population. 11

Public Record Exemption under Review
Current law provides a public record exemption for the VPK program.12 Individual records of a child
enrolled in the VPK program held by an early learning coalition, AWl, or a VPK program provider are
confidential. and exempt13 from public records requirements. Such records include assessment data,
health data, records of teacher observations, and personal identifying information of an enrolled child
and his or her parent. Current law provides for retroactive application of the public record exemption.14

A parent has the right to inspect and review the VPK program record of his or her child. In addition, a
parent may obtain a copy of such record. 15

An early learning coalition, AWl, or a VPK program provider may release the confidential and exempt
records to:

• The United States Secretary of Education, the United States Secretary of Health and Human
Services, and the Comptroller General of the United States for the purpose of federal audits.

• Individuals or organizations conducting studies for institutions to develop, validate, or administer
assessments or improve instruction.

• Accrediting organizations in order to carry out their accrediting functions.

4 Section l(b) and (c), Art. IX of the State Constitution.
5 Chapter 2004-484, L.O.F.; codified at ss. 1002.55, 1002.61, and 1002.63, F.S.
6 Section 1002.51(2), F.S., defines "early learning coalition" or "coalition" to mean an that early learning coalition created under s.
411.01, F.S.
7 Section 1002.73(1), F.S.
sSections 1002.75(1), F.S.
9 Sections 1002.53(6)(c) and 1002.75(2), F.S., and 42 U.S.c. s. 2000d.
10 Senate Bill Analysis and Fiscal Impact Statement for CSjSB 2144, March 19, 2010, at 4.
ll ld.

12 Section 1002.72, F.S.
13 There is a difference between records the Legislature designates as exempt from public record requirements and those the
Legislature deems confidential and exempt. A record classified as exempt from public disclosure may be disclosed under certain
circumstances. (See WF710 Inc. v. The School Board ofSeminole, 874 So.2d 48, 53 (Fla. 5th DCA 2004), review denied 892 So.2d 1015
(Fla. 2004); City ofRiviera Beach v. Barfield, 642 So.2d 1135 (Fla. 4th DCA 1994); Williams v. City ofMinneola, 575 So.2d 687 (Fla. 5th
DCA 1991) If the Legislature designates a record as confidential and exempt from public disclosure, such record may not be
released, by the custodian of public records, to anyone other than the persons or entities specifically designated in the statutory
exemption. (See Attorney General Opinion 85-62, August 1, 1985).
14 Section 1002.72(1), F.S.
15 Section 1002.72(2), F.5.
STORAGE NAME: pcb19.GAP.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 3/6/2010



• Appropriate parties in connection with an emergency if the information is necessary to protect
the health or safety of the child or other individuals.

• The Auditor General in connection with his or her official functions.
• A court of competent jurisdiction in compliance with an order of that court pursuant to a lawfully

issued subpoena.
• Parties to an interagency agreement among early learning coalitions, local governmental

agencies, Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program providers, or state agencies for the
purpose of implementing the Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program.16

Pursuant to the Open Government Sunset Review Act, the exemption will repeal on October 2, 2010,
unless reenacted by the Legislature.17

EFFECT OF BILL

The bill removes the repeal date, thereby reenacting the public record exemption. It also reorganizes
the exemption.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1 amends s. 1002.72, F.S., to reenact the public record exemption for the VPK program.

Section 2 provides an effective date of October 1, 2010.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

None.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

None.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

16 Section 1002.72(3), F.S.
17 Section 1002.72(4), F.S.
STORAGE NAME: pcb19.GAP.doc
DATE:. 3/6/2010

PAGE: 4



1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This bill does not require counties or municipalities to spend funds or to take an action requiring the
expenditure of funds. This bill does not reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with counties or
municipalities. This bill does not reduce the authority that municipalities have to raise revenue.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

None.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcb19.GAP.doc
3/6/2010

PAGE: 5



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

A bill to be entitled

An act relating to a review under the Open Government

Sunset Review Act; amending s. 1002.72, F.S., which

provides an exemption from public records requirements for

records of children in the Voluntary Prekindergarten

Education Program; making editorial changes; reorganizing

the section; removing the scheduled repeal of the

exemption; providing an effective date.

10 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

11

12 Section 1. Section 1002.72, Florida Statutes, is amended

13 to read:

14 1002.72 Records of children in the Voluntary

15 Prekindergarten Education Program.-

16 (1)~ The individual records of a child enrolled in the

17 Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program held by an early

18 learning coalition, the Agency for Workforce Innovation, or a

19 Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program provider are

20 confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I

21 of the State Constitution. For purposes of this section, such

22 records include assessment data, health data, records of teacher

23 observations, and personal identifying information of an

24 enrolled child and his or her parent.

25 (b) This exemption applies to the individual records of a

26 child enrolled in the Voluntary Prekindergarten Education

27 Program held by an early learning coalition, the Agency for

28 Workforce Innovation, or a Voluntary Prekindergarten Education

Page 1of 3
PCB GAP 10-19
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

29 Program provider before, on, or after the effective date of this

30 exemption.

31 (2) A parent has the right to inspect and review the

32 individual Voluntary Prekindergarten Education Program record of

33 his or her child and to obtain a copy of such record.

34 (3) (a) Confidential and exempt Voluntary Prekindergarten

35 Education Program records may be released to:

36 1.+a+ The United States Secretary of Education, the United

37 States Secretary of Health and Human Services, and the

38 Comptroller General of the United States for the purpose of

39 federal audits.

40 2.+9+ Individuals or organizations conducting studies for

41 institutions to develop, validate, or administer assessments or

42 improve instruction.

43 3.+e+ Accrediting organizations in order to carry out

44 their accrediting functions.

45 4.+9+ Appropriate parties in connection with an emergency

46 if the information is necessary to protect the health or safety

47 of the child or other individuals.

48 5.+e+ The Auditor General in connection with his or her

49 official functions.

50 6.~ A court of competent jurisdiction in compliance with

51 an order of that court pursuant to a lawfully issued subpoena.

52 ~~ Parties to an interagency agreement among early

53 learning coalitions, local governmental agencies, Voluntary

54 Prekindergarten Education Program providers, or state agencies

55 for the purpose of implementing the Voluntary Prekindergarten

56 Education Program.

Page 2of3
PCB GAP 10-19
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

57 (b) Agencies, organizations, or individuals receiving such

58 confidential and exempt records in order to carry out their

59 official functions must protect the records in a manner that

60 will not permit the personal identification of an enrolled child

61 or his or her parent by persons other than those authorized to

62 receive the records.

63 (4) This section is subject to the Open Government Sunset

64 Revieu Act in accordance 'ilith s. 119.15 and shall stand repealed

65 October 2, 2010, unless revimmd and saved from repeal through

66 reenactment by the Legislature.

67 Section 2. This act shall take effect October 1, 2010.

Page 3 of3
PCB GAP 10-19
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



~

o
I

I"ooJo



BILL#:
SPONSOR(S):
TIED BILLS:

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

PCB GAP 10-20 OGSR H. Lee Moffitt Cancer Center and Research Institute
Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

IDEN./SIM. BILLS: SB 1678

Orig. Comm.:

REFERENCE

Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee

ACTION ANALYST

Williams

1) _

2) _

3) _

4) _

5) _

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The Open Government Sunset Review Act requires the Legislature to review each public record and each
public meeting exemption five years after enactment. If the Legislature does not reenact the exemption, it
automatically repeals on October 2nd of the fifth year after enactment.

Current law establishes the H. Lee Moffitt Cancer Center and Research Institute (the center) at the University
of South Florida. A not-for-profit corporation governs the center in accordance with an agreement with the
State Board of Education for the use of facilities on the campus of the University of South Florida. The not-for
profit corporation, acting as an instrumentality of the state, operates the center in accordance with an
agreement between the Board of Governors and the not-for-profit corporation. A board of directors manages
the not-for-profit corporation, and a chief executive officer, who serves at the pleasure of the board of directors,
administers the center.

Current law provides public record and meeting exemptions for the not-for-profit corporation and its
subsidiaries.

The bill reenacts and expands the public record exemption for the not-for-profit corporation and its subsidiaries.
It expands the current exemption to include the identity of a donor or prospective donor to the not-for-profit
corporation or a subsidiary who wishes to remain anonymous, and to include patentable materials. As such,
the bill extends the repeal date from October 2,2010, to October 2,2015. It also provides a public necessity
statement as reqUired by the State Constitution.

In addition, the bill narrows the public meeting exemption for the board of directors for the not-for-profit
corporation and its subsidiaries. It provides that meetings may be closed to the public only to discuss
information the Legislature has deemed confidential and exempt from public records requirements. This
change conforms the public meetings requirements for the board of directors for the not-for-profit corporation
and its subsidiaries to that of other similar entities.

Article I, s. 24(c) of the State Constitution, requires a two-thirds vote of the members present and
voting for passage of a newly created public record or public meeting exemption. The bill expands the
current exemption under review; thus, it requires a two-thirds vote for final passage.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: pcb20.GAP.doc
DATE: 2/22/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Background

Open Government Sunset Review Act
The Open Government Sunset Review Act1 sets forth a legislative review process for newly created or
substantially amended public record or public meeting exemptions. It requires an automatic repeal of
the exemption on October 2nd of the fifth year after creation or substantial amendment, unless the
Legislature reenacts the exemption.

The Act provides that a public record or public meeting exemption may be created or maintained only if
it serves an identifiable public purpose. In addition, it may be no broader than is necessary to meet one
of the following purposes: .

• Allows the state or its political subdivisions to effectively and efficiently administer a
governmental program, which administration would be significantly impaired without the
exemption.

• Protects sensitive personal information that, if released, would be defamatory or would
jeopardize an individual's safety; however, only the identity of an individual may be exempted
under this provision.

• Protects trade or business secrets.

If, and only if, in reenacting an exemption that will repeal, the exemption is expanded (essentially
creating a new exemption), then a public necessity statement and a two-thirds vote for passage are
required.2 If the exemption is reenacted with grammatical or stylistic changes that do not expand the
exemption, if the exemption is narrowed, or if an exception to the exemption is created3 then a public
necessity statement and a two-thirds vote for passage are not required.

The H. Lee Moffitt Cancer Center and Research Institute
Current law establishes the H. Lee Moffitt Cancer Center and Research Institute (the center) at the
University of South Florida.4 A not-for-profit corporation governs the center in accordance with an

1 Section 119.15, F.S.
2 Section 24(c), Art. I ofthe State Constitution.
3 An example of an exception to a public record exemption would be allowing another agency access to confidential or exempt
records.
4 Section 1004.43, F.S.,
STORAGE NAME: pcb20.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 2122/2010



agreement with the State Board of Education for the use of facilities on the campus of the University of
South Florida. The not-for-profit corporation, acting as an instrumentality of the state, operates the
center in accordance with an agreement between the Board of Governors and the not-for-profit
corporation.5

A board of directors manages the not-for-profit corporation, and a chief executive officer, who serves at
the pleasure of the board of directors, administers the center. The board of directors is comprised of:

• The President of the University of South Florida, or his or her designee;
• The chair of the Board of Governors, or his or her designee;
• Five representatives of the state universities; and
• No more than 14 or fewer than 10 directors who are not medical doctors or state employees.6

The corporation has created three not-for-profit subsidiaries that were approved by the Board of
Regents and two for-profit subsidiaries that were approved by the Board of Governors?

Records of the not-for-profit corporation and its subsidiaries are public records.8

Public Record Exemption for the Not-For-Profit Corporation and its Subsidiaries
Current law provides a public record exemption for proprietary confidential business information. Such
information is made confidential and exempt9 from pUblic records requirements. Such information must
be provided to the Auditor General, the Office of Program Policy Analysis and Government
Accountability, and the Board of Governors pursuant to their oversight and auditing functions. 10

For purposes of the public record exemption, "proprietary confidential business information" is defined
to mean information that is owned or controlled by the not-for-profit corporation or its subsidiaries; is
intended to be and is treated by the not-for-profit corporation or its subsidiaries as private and the
disclosure of which would harm the business operations of the not-for-profit corporation or its
subsidiaries; has not been intentionally disclosed by the corporation or its subsidiaries unless pursuant
to law, an order of a court or administrative body, a legislative proceeding pursuant to s. 5, Art. III of the
State Constitution, or a private agreement that provides that the information may be released to the
public; and which is information concerning:

• Internal auditing controls and reports of internal auditors;
• Matters reasonably encompassed in priVileged attorney-client communications;11

5 Section 1004.43(1), F.S.
6 1d.

7 Open Government Sunset Review of s. 1004.43, F.S., relating to the H. Lee Moffitt Cancer Center and Research Institute, joint
questionnaire by House and Senate staff, July 31,2009, at question 1 and question 3 (on file with the Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee).
8 Section 1004.43(8)(a), F.S.
9 There is a difference between records the Legislature designates as exempt from public record requirements and those the
Legislature deems confidential and exempt. A record classified as exempt from public disclosure may be disclosed under certain
circumstances. (See WF7lI- Inc. v. The School Board ofSeminole, 874 So.2d 48, 53 (Fla. 5th DCA 2004), review denied 892 So.2d 1015
(Fla. 2004); City of Riviera Beach v. Barfield, 642 So.2d 1135 (Fla. 4th DCA 1994); Williams v. City ofMinneola, 575 So.2d 687 (Fla. 5th
DCA 1991) If the Legislature designates a record as confidential and exempt from public disclosure, such record may not be
released, by the custodian of public records, to anyone other than the persons or entities specifically designated in the statutory
exemption. (See Attorney General Opinion 85-62, August 1, 1985).
10 Section 1004.43(8)(b), F.S.
11 Section 119.071(1)(d), F.S., provides a general public record exemption, which is applicable to the not-for-profit corporation and
its subsidiaries, for a public record that was prepared by an agency attorney or prepared at the attorney's express direction, that
reflects a mental impression, conclusion, litigation strategy, or legal theory of the attorney or the agency, and that was prepared in
anticipation of imminent civil or criminal litigation or imminent adversarial administrative proceedings. The public record exemption
expires at the conclusion of the litigation or adversarial administrative proceedings. According to its questionnaire response, the
not-for-profit corporation prefers the more broad public record exemption for "matters reasonably encompassed in privileged
attorney-client communications because it protects confidential attorney-client communications made during the course of general
representation of the not-for-profit corporation in aI/legal matters, including transactions. According to the questionnaire response,

These differences reflect the varying natures of the attorney-client relationship contemplated by Section 119.071,
and of the attorney-client relationship the corporation must maintain with its attorneys to effectively fulfill its

STORAGE NAME: pcb20.GAP.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 2/22/2010



• Contracts for managed-care12 arrangements, including preferred provider organization
contracts, health maintenance organization contracts, and exclusive provider organization
contracts, and any documents directly relating to the negotiation, performance, and
implementation of any such contracts for managed-care arrangements;

• Bids or other contractual data, banking records, and credit agreements the disclosure of which
would impair the efforts of the not-for-profit corporation or its subsidiaries to contract for goods
or services on favorable terms;

• Information relating to private contractual data, the disclosure of which would impair the
competitive interest of the provider of the information;

• Corporate officer and employee personnel information;13
• Information relating to the proceedings and records of credentialing panels and committees and

of the governing board of the not-for-profit corporation or its subsidiaries relating to
credentialing;

• Minutes of exempt meetings of the governing board of the not-for-profit corporation and its
subsidiaries;

• Information that reveals plans for marketing services that the not-for-profit corporation or its
subsidiaries reasonably expect to be provided by competitors;

• Trade secrets as defined by the Uniform Trade Secrets Act,14 including: information relating to
methods of manufacture or production, potential trade secrets, potentially patentable materials,
or proprietary information received, generated, ascertained, or discovered during the course of
research conducted by the not-for-profit corporation or its subsidiaries; and reimbursement
methodologies or rates;

• The identity of donors or prospective donors of property who wish to remain anonymous or any
information identifying such donors or prospective donors; or

• Any information received by the not-for-profit corporation or its subsidiaries from an agency in
this or another state or nation or the Federal Government which is otherwise exempt or
confidential pursuant to the laws of this or another state or nation or pursuant to federal law.

Public Meeting Exemption for the Not-For-Profit Corporation and its Subsidiaries
Current law also provides a public meeting exemption for the governing board of the not-for-proflt
corporation and its subsidiaries. All meetings are exempt from public meetings requirements except
those meetings wherein the expenditure of dollars appropriated by the state to the not-for-profit

mission and legislative mandates. Specifically, unlike the attorney-client relationship contemplated by Section
119.071, the corporation must engage its attorneys in its everyday operations and strategic planning to allow the
corporation to directly compete and collaborate with non-public entities that are not subject to the public records
law and that enjoy the protections set forth in Section 90.502(1)(c), Florida Statutes, of attorney-client
communications. [Open Government Sunset Review of s. 1004.43, F.S., relating to the H. Lee Moffitt Cancer
Center and Research Institute, joint questionnaire by House and Senate staff, July 31, 2009, at question 1 and
question 3 (on file with the Governmental Affairs Policy Committee)]

The questionnaire response indicates that agencies do not engage with their attorneys on a daily basis; however, agencies at the
state and local level have attorneys that they engage with on a regular basis yet, these agencies are not afforded the same
protections as the not-for-profit corporation or its subsidiaries.
12 For purposes of the exemption, "managed care" means systems or techniques generally used by third-party payors or their agents
to affect access to and control payment for health care services. Managed-care techniques most often include one or more ofthe
following: prior, concurrent, and retrospective review of the medical necessity and appropriateness of services or site of services;
contracts with selected health care providers; financial incentives or disincentives related to the use of specific providers, services,
or service sites; controlled access to and coordination of services by a case manager; and payor efforts to identify treatment
alternatives and modify benefit restrictions for high-cost patient care. Section 1004.43(8), F.S.
13 This exemption does not apply to the not-for-profit corporation's highest paid executives and employees as those executives and
employees are required to publically disclose their names and compensation by virtue of Federal law and IRS reporting
requirements.
14 Chapter 688, F.S., is the Uniform Trade Secrets Act. Section 688.002(4), F.S., defines "trade secret" to mean information, including
a formula, pattern, compilation, program, device, method, technique, or process that: derives independent economic value, actual
or potential, from not being generally known to, and not being readily ascertainable by proper means by, other persons who can
obtain economic value from its disclosure or use; and is the subject of efforts that are reasonable under the circumstances to
maintain its secrecy.
STORAGE NAME: pcb20.GAP.doc PAGE: 4
DATE: 2/22/2010



corporation are discussed or reported.15 In essence, the only time the not-for-profit corporation or its
subsidiaries conducts a meeting that is open to the public is when the expenditure of dollars
appropriated by the state is discussed.

Review of the Exemptions
Pursuant to the Open Government Sunset Review Act, the public record exemption for the following
information will repeal on October 2, 2010, unless reenacted by the Legislature: 16

• Trade secrets as defined by the Uniform Trade Secrets Act, including: information relating to
methods of manufacture or production, potential trade secrets, potentially patentable materials,
or proprietary information received, generated, ascertained, or discovered during the course of
research conducted by the not-for-profit corporation or its subsidiaries; and reimbursement
methodologies or rates; and

• Any information received by the not-for-profit corporation or its subsidiaries from an agency in
this or another state or nation or the Federal Government which is otherwise exempt or
confidential pursuant to the laws of this or another state or nation or pursuant to federal law.

As part of the review process, staff studied the public record and public meeting exemptions in their
entirety and compared those exemptions with similar exemptions found throughout current law. 17 Staff
discovered the following as part of the Open Government Sunset Review process:

• Portions of the definition of proprietary confidential business information included information
that did not meet the definition, such as, minutes of exempt meetings and information received
that is otherwise confidential or exempt from public records requirements.

• The current exemption for information that would identify a person donating property who would
prefer to remain anonymous is more narrow than other public record exemptions for donor
information. Typicaliy, such protections are provided to any donor or prospective donor who
wishes to remain anonymous, whether or not the person is donating property.

• When compared with other public meeting exemptions, including exemptions for similar not-for
profit corporations, it was found that the public meeting exemption appeared overly broad in that
all meetings are exempt from public meetings requirements unless state appropriated funds are
discussed. For example, the not-for-profit corporation for the Florida Institute for Human and
Machine Cognition has a more limited public meeting exemption. Only those meetings wherein
confidential and exempt information is discussed are exempt from public meetings
requirements. 18 Meetings of the board of directors of the Scripps Florida Funding Corporation
are open to the public unless confidential and exempt information is discussed.19 In addition, as
part of a conference call between staff of the not-for-profit corporation and the House and
Senate, staff of the not-for-profit corporation indicated that the current public meeting exemption
was not strictly adhered to by the board of directors.2o

Effect of Bill

The bill reenacts the public record exemption for the not-for-profit corporation of the H. Lee Moffitt
Cancer Center and Research Institute and its subsidiaries.

15 Section 1004.43(9), F.S.
16 Section 1004.39(8)(c), F.S.
17 Section 119.15(6)(a), F.S., requires the Legislature to consider the following as part of the Open Government Sunset Review
process:

• What specific records or meetings are affected by the exemption?

• Whom does the exemption uniquely affect, as opposed to the general public?

• What is the identifiable public purpose or goal ofthe exemption?
• Can the information contained in the records or discussed in the meeting be readily obtained by alternative means? If so,

how?

• Is the record or meeting protected by another exemption?
• Are there multiple exemptions for the same type ofrecord or meeting that it would be appropriate to merge?

18 See s. 1004.4472(4), F.S.
19 See s. 288.9551(3)(a), F.S.
20 Conference call on February 24, 2010.
STORAGE NAME: pcb20.GAP.doc PAGE: 5
DATE: 2122/2010



The bill expands the current exemption to create a public record exemption for the identity of a donor or
prospective donor to the not-for-profit corporation or a subsidiary who wishes to remain anonymous.
This expansion creates the same protections afforded other agencies or similar entities.21 It further
expands the current exemption to provide a public record exemption for patentable materials, which is
added to the definition of proprietary confidential business information.22

The bill narrows the public meeting exemption for the board of directors for the not-for-profit corporation
and its subsidiaries. It provides that meetings may be·closed to the public only to discuss information
the Legislature has deemed confidential and exempt from public records requirements. This change
conforms the public meetings requirements for the board of directors for the not-for-profit corporation
and its subsidiaries to that of other similar entities. .

The bill reorganizes the exemption and revises the definition of proprietary confidential business
information.

Because the bill expands the current public record exemption, it extends the repeal date for the
exemption from October 2, 2010, to October 2, 2015. It also provides a public necessity statement as
required by the State Constitution.23

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1 amends s. 1004.43, F.S., to reenact and expand the public record exemption for the not-for
profit corporation of the H. Lee Moffitt Cancer Center and Research Institute and its subsidiaries, and to
narrow its public meeting exemption.

Section 2 provides a public necessity statement.

Section 3 provides an effective date of upon becoming a law.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

None.

21 For example, see s. 1004.4472(2)(d), F.S.
22 Section 1004.4472(2)(a), F.S., provides the same protection for the Florida Institute for Human and Machine Cognition, Inc.
23 Section 24(c), Art. I ofthe State Constitution.
STORAGE NAME: pcb20.GAP.doc PAGE: 6
DATE: 2122/2010



D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

None.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This bill does not require counties or municipalities to spend funds or to take an action requiring the
expenditure of funds. This bill does not reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with counties or
municipalities. This bill does not reduce the authority that municipalities have to raise revenue.

2. Other:

Vote Requirement .
Article I, s. 24(c) of the State Constitution, requires a two-thirds vote of the members present and
voting for passage of a newly created public record or public meeting exemption. The bill expands
the current exemption under review; thus, it requires a two-thirds vote for final passage.

Public Necessity Statement
Article I, s. 24(c) of the State Constitution, requires a public necessity statement for a newly created
or expanded public record or public meeting exemption. The bill expands the current exemption
under review; thus, it includes a public necessity statement.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

None.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcb20.GAP.doc
2/22/2010

PAGE: 7



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

A bill to be entitled

An act relating to a review under the Open Government

Sunset Review Act; amending s. 1004.43, F.S., which

provides an exemption from public records and public

meetings requirements for the not-for-profit corporation

or a subsidiary of the H. Lee Moffitt Cancer Center and

Research Institute; providing a definition for the terms

~managed care," ~proprietary confidential business

information," and ~trade secret"; expanding the public

record exemption to include the identity of a donor or

prospective donor to the not-for-profit corporation or a

subsidiary who wishes to remain anonymous; expanding the

public record exemption to include patentable materials

received, generated, ascertained, or discovered during the

course of research; narrowing the public meetings
\

exemption to include only those portions of meetings

wherein confidential and exempt information is discussed;

providing for future legislative review and repeal of the

exemption under the Open Government Sunset Review Act;

reorganizing the section;'providing a statement of public

necessity; providing an effective date.

23 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

24

25 Section 1. Subsections (8) and (9) of section 1004.43,

26 Florida Statutes, are amended to read:

27 1004.43 H. Lee Moffitt Cancer Center and Research

28 Institute.-There is established the H. Lee Moffitt Cancer Center

Page 1of 8
PCB GAP 10-20.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

29 and Research Institute at the University of South Florida.

30 (8) (a) Records of the not-for-profit corporation and of

31 its subsidiaries are public records unless made confidential or

32 exempt by law.

33 (b) The following information is confidential and exempt

34 from s. 119.07(1) and s. 24{a), Art. I of the State

35 Constitution:

36 1. Information received by the not-for-profit corporation

37 or a subsidiary from a person in another state or nation or the

38 Federal Government that is otherwise exempt or confidential

39 pursuant to the laws of that state or nation or pursuant to

40 federal law.

41 2. Information received by the not-for-profit corporation

42 or a subsidiary in the performance of its duties and

43 responsibilities which is otherwise confidential or exempt by

44 law.

45 3. Matters reasonably encompassed in privileged attorney-

46 client communications.

47 4. Proprietary confidential business information-4£

48 confidential and exempt from the provisions of s. 119.07 (1) and

49 s. 24(a), Art. I of the State Constitution.

50 5. Records of credentialing panels and committees and of

51 the governing board of the not-for-profit corporation or its

52 subsidiaries relating to credentialing.

53 6. The identity of a donor or prospective donor to the

54 not-for-profit corporation or a subsidiary who wishes to remain

55 anonymous.

56 7. Trade secrets.

Page 2ot8
PCB GAP 10-20.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

57 (c) However, The Auditor General, the Office of Program

58 Policy Analysis and Government Accountability, and the Board of

59 Governors, pursuant to their oversight and auditing functions,

60 must be given access to all proprietary confidential business

61 information made confidential and exempt under paragraph (b),

62 upon request and without subpoena and must maintain the

63 confidentiality of information so received.

64

65

(d) As used in this subsection paragraph, the term:

1. "Managed care" means systems or techniques generally

66 used by third-party payors or their agents to affect access to

67 and control payment for health care services. Managed-care

68 techniques most often include one or more of the following:

69 a. Prior, concurrent, and retrospective review of the

70 medical necessity and appropriateness of services or site of

71 services;

72

73

b. Contracts with selected health care providers;

c. Financial incentives or disincentives related to the

74 use of specific providers, services, or service sites;

75 d. Controlled access to and coordination of services by a

76 case manager; and

77 e. Payor efforts to identify treatment alternatives and

78 modify benefit restrictions for high-cost patient care.

79 2. "Proprietary confidential business information" means

80 information, regardless of its form or characteristics, that

81 \Jhich is owned or controlled by the not-for-profit corporation

82 or its subsidiaries; is intended to be and is treated by the

83 not-for-profit corporation or its subsidiaries as private and

84 the disclosure of which would harm the business operations of

Page 3 of 8
PCB GAP 10-20.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

85 the not-for-profit corporation or its subsidiaries; has not been

86 intentionally disclosed by the not-for-profit corporation or its

87 subsidiaries unless pursuant to law, an order of a court or

88 administrative body, a legislative proceeding pursuant to s. 5,

89 Art. III of the State Constitution, or a private agreement that

90 provides that the information may be released to the public; and

91 that \.Thich is information concerning:

92 a.~ Internal auditing controls and reports of internal

93 auditors;

94 2. ~4atters reasonably encompassed in privileged attorney

95 client communications;

96 b.~ Contracts for managed-care arrangements, including

97 preferred provider organization contracts, health maintenance

98 organization contracts, and exclusive provider organization

99 contracts, and any records documents directly relating to the

100 negotiation, performance, and implementation of any such

101 contracts for managed-care arrangements;

102 c.~ Bids or other contractual data, banking records, and

103 credit agreements the disclosure of which would impair the

104 efforts of the not-for-profit corporation or its subsidiaries to

105 contract for goods or services on favorable terms;

106 d.~ Information relating to private contractual data, the

107 disclosure of which would impair the competitive interest of the

108 provider of the information;

109

110

e.~ Corporate officer and employee personnel information;

7. Information relating to the Proceedings and records of

111 credentialing panels and committees and of the governing board

112 of the not for profit corporation or its subsidiaries relating

Page 4 of 8
PCB GAP 10-20.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

113 to credentialing;

114 8. Ninutes of meetings of the governing board of the not

115 for profit corporation and its subsidiaries, except minutes of

116 meetings open to the public pursuant to subsection (9);

117 f.~ Information that reveals plans for marketing services

118 that the not-for-profit corporation or its subsidiaries

119 reasonably expect to be provided by competitors;

120

121

10. Trade secrets as defined in s. 688.002, including:

~~ Information relating to methods of manufacture or

122 production, potential trade secrets, or patentable or

123 potentially patentable materials, or proprietary information

124 received, generated, ascertained, or discovered during the

125 course of research conducted by the not-for-profit corporation

126 or its subsidiaries;-and

127

128

h.~ Reimbursement methodologies or rates~+

3. "Trade secret" means a trade secret as defined in s.

129 688.002.

130 11. The identity of donors or prospective donors of

131 property ~,Tho \lish to remain anonymous or any information

132 identifying such donors or prospective donors. The anonymity of

133 these donors or prospective donors must be maintained in the

134 auditor's report; or

135 12. Any information received by the not for profit

136 corporation or its subsidiaries from an agency in this or

137 another state or nation or the Federal Government ~,Thich is

138 othenlise mwmpt or confidential pursuant to the lmlS of this or

139 another state or nation or pursuant to federal la\l.

140

Page 5of 8
PCB GAP 10-20.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

141 As used in this paragraph, the term "managed care" means systems

142 or techniques generally used by third party payors or their

143 agents to affect access to and control payment for health care

144 services. Hanaged care techniques most often include one or more

145 of the follmling: prior, concurrent, and retrospective revie\! of

146 the medical necessity and appropriateness of services or site of

147 services; contracts with selected health care providers;

148 financial incentives or disincentives related to the use of

149 specific providers, services, or service sites; controlled

150 access to and coordination of services by a case manager; and

151 payor efforts to identify treatment alternatives and modify

152 benefit restrictions for high cost patient care.

153 (d)~ This subsection is Subparagraphs 10. and 12. of

154 paragraph (b) are subject to the Open Government Sunset Review

155 Act in accordance with s. 119.15 and shall stand repealed on

156 October 2, 2015 ~, unless reviewed and saved from repeal

157 through reenactment by the Legislature.

158 (9) (a) Those portions of meetings of the governing board

159 of the not-for-profit corporation and meetings of the

160 subsidiaries of the not-for-profit corporation at which

161 information made confidential and exempt pursuant to subsection

162 (8) are discussed are exempt from the GJ{penditure of dollars

163 appropriated to the not for profit corporation by the state are

164 discussed or reported must remain open to the public in

165 accordance with s. 286.011 and s. 24(b), Art. I of the State

166 Constitution unless made confidential or GJwrnpt by la\,7. Other

167 meetings of the governing board of the not for profit

168 corporation and of the subsidiaries of the not for profit

Page 6of 8
PCB GAP 10-20.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

169 corporation are mwmpt from s. 286.011 and s. 24 (b), Art. I of

170 the State Constitution.

171 (b) Minutes of closed meetings of the governing board of

172 the not-for-profit corporation and its subsidiaries are

173 confidential and exempt from s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I

174 of the State Constitution.

175 Section 2. The Legislature finds that it is a public

176 necessity to make confidential and exempt from public records

177 requirements the identity of a donor or prospective donor to the

178 not-for-profit corporation or a subsidiary of the H. Lee Moffitt

179 Cancer Center and Research Institute who wishes to remain

180 anonymous. The Legislature finds that the identity of a donor or

181 prospective donor who wishes to remain anonymous should be

182 confidential and exempt from public disclosure in the same

183 manner provided to the direct-support organizations at the state

184 universities in s. 1004.28(5), Florida Statutes. This exemption

185 is necessary because the disclosure of such confidential and

186 exempt information may adversely impact the ability of the not

187 for-profit corporation or its subsidiaries to receive donations

188 from individuals who request anonymity. In addition, the

189 Legislature finds that patentable materials received, generated,

190 ascertained, or discovered during the course of research

191 conducted by or through the not-for-profit corporation or a

192 subsidiary of the H. Lee Moffitt Cancer Center and Research

193 Institute must be made confidential and exempt because the

194 disclosure of such information would create an unfair

195 competitive advantage for persons receiving such information and

196 would adversely impact the not-for-profit corporation or its

Page 7of 8
PCB GAP 10-20.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

197 subsidiaries. If such confidential and exempt information was

198 released pursuant to a public records request, others would be

199 allowed to take the benefit of the research without compensation

200 or reimbursement to the not-for-profit corporation or its

201 subsidiaries. Without the exemptions provided for in this act,

202 the disclosure of confidential and exempt information would

203 place the not-for-profit corporation in an unequal footing in

204 the marketplace as compared with its private research

205 competitors that are not required to disclose confidential and

206 exempt information. The Legislature finds that the disclosure of

207 such confidential and exempt information would adversely impact

208 the ability of the not-for-profit corporation or its

209 subsidiaries to fulfill the mission of research and education.

210 Section 3. This act shall take effect upon becoming a law.

Page 8of 8
PCB GAP 10-20.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v





BILL#:
SPONSOR(S):
TIED BILLS:

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

PCB GAP 10-29 Professional Sports Franchises
Governmental Affairs Policy Committee

IDEN.lSIM. BILLS: SB 2540

ACTIONREFERENCE

Governmental Affairs Policy
Committee

Orig. Comm.:

1) _

2) _

3) _

4) _

5) _

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

Fifteen of the 30 Major League Baseball franchises conduct their spring training seasons in Florida. Since
2000, a dedicated source of state general revenue funds has assisted, or will assist, in the construction of 10
spring-training stadiums or related facilities.

Current law specifies a process by which the Governor's Office of Tourism, Trade, and Economic Development
(OrrED) has certified 10 local governments to receive up to $15 million each in state sales tax revenues to
help pay for spring-training facilities. One of those certified local governments - Vero Beach - has been
without a team for 2 years, and Fort Lauderdale will lose the Baltimore Orioles to Sarasota after the 2010
spring season.

However, the statute does not require OrrED and the certified local governments to enter into contracts
before receiving the state funds; does not have a reporting requirement or other mechanism by which OrrED
can monitor the funds' expenditures; does not include provisions to decertify and recover state funds from local
governments whose spring training franchises have relocated; and does not permit the participation of a
private entity as a certified applicant.

The bill proposes a number of changes to current Florida law to address these issues. The bill does permit
participation of a private entity provided certain requirements are met to ensure protection of the funds
received. It also directs OrrED and its partners to develop a strategic plan to help guide the future of spring
training baseball in Florida. It provides an opportunity for currently certified local governments who have lost
their teams to recruit new franchises, before they are decertified by OITED and must return state funds.

In addition, the bill expands the scope of the incentive, which is currently restricted to "retained" spring training
franchises that were based in Florida prior to 2000, to include any spring training franchise. This allows the
incentive to be used by local communities or private entities to attract Arizona-based teams to Florida, should
additional state funding become available.

The bill provides an unnumbered section of law recognizing the validity of an agreement certified under the
existing spring training provisions of law and the continued release of funding by OrrED for a certified
applicant under the current law governing spring training franchises.

The bill does not increase the number of certifications allowed in current law nor does it change the individual
or total limits on the amount of funding that is permitted for such certification. Some changes made by the bill
have a potential positive, but indeterminate fiscal impact. See "Fiscal Comments" for details.

The bill takes effect upon becoming a law.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: pcb29.GAP.doc
DATE: 3/22/2010



HOUSE PRINCIPLES

Members are encouraged to evaluate proposed legislation in light of the following guiding principles of the
House of Representatives

• Balance the state budget.
• Create a legal and regulatory environment that fosters economic growth and job creation.
• Lower the tax burden on families and businesses.
• Reverse or restrain the growth of government.
• Promote public safety.
• Promote educational accountability, excellence, and choice.
• Foster respect for the family and for innocent human life.
• Protect Florida's natural beauty.

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Present Situation

Florida's Grapefruit League
The first professional team to come to Florida for spring training was the Washington Capitals, in 1888,
which spent three weeks in Jacksonville to get ready for the upcoming regular season.1 In the modern
era, Florida's Grapefruit League2 has been the spring-training home to as many as 20 of the 30 Major
League Baseball teams. But since the late 1990s, it has slowly been losing teams to Arizona's Cactus
League,3 which has a storied, 50-year history of its own with Major League Baseball spring training. A
2007 economic impact study indicated that spring training generates nearly $311 million annually to
Arizona's economy.4

The impetus for Arizona's emergence as a spring-training competitor to Florida was passage in 2000 of
legislation creating the "Arizona Sports and Tourism Authority" with authority to levy and collect certain
taxes (such as car-rental fees), and to bond them as debt service, for certain specified sports facilities. 5

These revenue sources, coupled with local bed-tax and other funds, have enabled the construction of
new spring-training ballparks, some shared. For example, the Cincinnati Reds and the Chicago White
Sox will share a $108 million spring training complex in Goodyear, Arizona.6 Both teams will use the
1O,OOO-seat stadium, but have separate clubhouses, offices, and practice fields. Meanwhile, the
Chicago Cubs have announced intentions to stay in Mesa, contingent on the city of Mesa securing the
funding to build a new $84 million spring training complex, with a 15,000-seat stadium?

1 Baseball in Florida, written by Kevin M. McCarthy. Published by Pineapple Press in 1996. Page 141.
2 More information about the league is available at http://www.f1oridagrapefruitleague.com/. Last visited March 11,2010.
3 The Cactus League began in 1947 with two teams, and now has 15 teams.
4 See report at http://www.cactusleague.com/downloads/2007_Cactus_League_Report.pdf.
5 See Chapter 8 of the Arizona Statutes at http://www.azleg.gov/ArizonaRevisedStatutes.asp?Title=5. The relevant statewide
legislation was ch. 372, Laws 2000, and the implementing local referendum was Proposition 302, which Maricopa County voters
approved by a vote of 52 percent to 48 percent, authorizing new tourism taxes.
6 Information available at http://www.goodyearaz.gov/index.asp?NID=1800.
7 The Arizona Legislature is considering a bill to add a $1 surcharge on rental car fees in Maricopa County, and an 8-percent surcharge
on all Grapefruit League tickets, to raise an estimated $81 million over 25 years. At least some ofthe revenues would be used to
fmance the new Cubs complex. An alternate plan to raise the necessary funds for the new Cubs complex is through tax-increment
fmancing.
STORAGE NAME: pcb29.GAP.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 3/22/2010



Besides the availability of large, new facilities, baseball teams are drawn to Arizona because of the
proximity of the spring training stadiums, which are located within two adjacent counties, Maricopa and
Pima. Florida's spring training facilities are scattered along the state's two coasts and within the state's
heartland, so travel between stadiums can be time-consuming and exhausting.

Since 1998, six teams have left the Grapefruit League for the Cactus League. They are the Texas
Rangers, the Kansas City Royals, the Chicago White Sox, the Los Angeles Dodgers, the Cleveland
Indians, and the Cincinnati Reds.

Note: Shaded cells indicate teams playing in communities that have received state certification under s.
288.1162, F.S.

According to the Florida Grapefruit League website,12 total attendance in 2009 was 1,561,873 fans, or
6,030 fans per game. That was a decline of 115,000 in attendance from 2008, which in turn
experienced a drop of about 40,000 in attendance from 2007. This year, the spring training season runs
from March 2 to April 3.

8 Information in this chart was compiled from information provided by the Florida Sports Foundation, the Florida Grapefruit League,
andOTTED.
9 Fort Lauderdale's proposal to renovate its spring-training facility for the Orioles was rejected by the FAA without an accompanying
increase in rental fees, so the Orioles have decided to relocate to Sarasota after the 2010 season.
10 The Rays originally played their spring training games at Florida Power Park-AI Lang Field in S1. Petersburg, but have moved to the
newly renovated Port Charlotte Park in Charlotte County, built in part with state certification funds.
11 2008 was the last spring training season for the Los Angeles Dodgers at the publicly owned Dodger Town in Indian River County's
Vero Beach. The Dodgers now share a new, $100 million facility with the Chicago White Sox in Glendale, Arizona.
12 Supra FN 2.
STORAGE NAME: pcb29.GAP.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 3/22/2010



A June 2009 economic impact study on spring training baseball in Florida estimated that the sport
generated $442 million in direct spending during the 2009 season.13 When calculated using an
economic multiplier effect, that direct spending created an estimated $752.3 million in total spending
and $284.3 million in income, while creating or supporting 9,205 full-time and part-time jobs. Among the
study's conclusions was that every $1 spent for a spring training-related activity turned over 1.7 times in
the overall state economy.

Of the 1.56 million people who attended spring training games in 2009, nearly 52 percent (811,286
persons) were Floridians. Seventy-one percent of all attendees indicated that their primary reason for
traveling to the communities which host spring training was to attend one or more baseball games.14

Florida's Role in Funding Spring Training Facilities
Chapter 88-226, L.O.F., established a funding mechanism for state financial support of the construction
of new professional sports franchise facilities within Florida.15 Legislation in 1991 added eligibility for
state funding for local-government-owned facilities for "new spring training franchises," defined as
teams not based in Florida prior to July 1, 1990, and a certification process for local governments.16 No
local government ever applied for the certification.

The source of the state funds is a distribution of state sales tax revenues, pursuant to s.
212.20(6)(d)7.b., F.S. Certified facilities are eligible for a maximum of $41,667 monthly.

As the pressure from Arizona to recruit Grapefruit League teams intensified in the late 1990's, the
Legislature in 2000 amended the law to make the certification process easier for local governments.17 A
key change in'the law expanded eligibility, by replacing the definition for "new spring training franchise"
with that of "retained spring training franchise," meaning a franchise that has been based in Florida
prior to January 1, 2000. The legislation also gave Office of Tourism, Trade, and Economic
Development (OITED) (the successor to the Department of Commerce) the responsibility for certifying
spring training facilities for state funding. Among the information that the certification applicants were
required to submit to OITED was:

• Whether the applicant local government was responsible for the acquisition, construction,
management, or operation of the retained spring training franchise facility, or held title to the
property on which the facility was located;

• A verified copy of a signed agreement with a retained spring training franchise for the use of the
facility for a term of at least 15 years;

• Whether the applicant had a financial commitment of 50 percent or more of the funds required
by an agreement for the acquisition, construction, or renovation of the facility;

• Valid projections demonstrating that the facility would attract paid attendance of at least 50,000
annually; and

• If the facility was or would be located in a county levying a tourist development tax pursuant to
s. 125.0104, F.S.

OITED was to "competitively evaluate" the applications, and nine criteria were specified in the new law
in descending order of priority:

• The intended use of the funds by the applicant, with priority given to the construction of a new
facility;

• The length of time that the existing franchise has been located in the state, with priority given to
retaining franchises that have been in the same location the longest;

13 "2009 Major League Baseball Florida Spring Training Economic Impact Study." June 2009. Prepared by the Florida Sports
Foundation and The Bonn Marketing Research Group. On file with the House Governmental Affairs Policy Committee.
14 Ibid. Page 40.
15 Information in this paragraph based on bill analysis for HB 1439 (ch. 2000-186, L.O.F.).
16 Only three spring training franchises met the original date criteria: the Blue Jays, the Marlins, and the Devil Rays (now known as
the Rays).
17 Chapter 2000-186, L.O.F., which amended s. 288.1162, F.S.
STORAGE NAME: pcb29.GAP.doc PAGE: 4
DATE: 3/22/2010



• The length of time that a facility to be used by a retained spring training franchise has been
used by one or more spring training franchises, with priority given to a facility that has been in
continuous use as a facility for spring training the longest;

• For those teams leasing a spring training facility from a unit of local government, the remaining
time on the lease for facilities used by the spring training franchise, with priority given to the
shortest time period remaining on the lease;

• The duration of the future-use agreement with the retained spring training franchise, with priority
given to the future-use agreement having the longest duration;

• The amount of the local match, with priority given to the largest percentage of local match
proposed;

• The net increase of total active recreation space owned by the applying unit of local government
following the acquisition of land for the spring training facility, with priority given to the largest
percentage increase of total active recreation space;

• The location of the facility in a brownfield, an enterprise zone, a community redevelopment area,
or other area of targeted development or revitalization included in an Urban Infill
Redevelopment Plan, with priority given to facilities locateq in these areas; and

• The projections on paid attendance attracted by the facility and the proposed effect on the
economy of the local community, with priority given to the highest projected paid attendance.

Local governments may use state funds to pay for acquisition, construction, reconstruction, or
renovation of a spring training facility; to payor pledge for the payment of debt service on a facility; or
to reimburse or refinance bonds issued for the facility. 18 State funds also may be used to relocate' a
retained spring training franchise to another unit of local government within Florida if the local
government from which it is relocating agrees to the move.19 The statute does not define "relocate" or
the process by which the current host community would make its decision to either approve or veto the
relocation.

State funds were prohibited from being expended to subsidize privately-owned and maintained facilities
for use by the retained spring training franchise.20

The legislation directed the Department of Revenue (DOR) to distribute sales tax proceeds to any
applicant certified under s. 288.1162(5), F.S., as a "facility for a retained spring training franchise." A
certified applicant could receive up to $41,667 monthly for up to 30 years.

The original five certifications, in 2000, were awarded to:
• The City of Lakeland: $7 million over 15 years for a facility for the Detroit Tigers;
• The City of Dunedin: $10 million over 20 years for a facility for the Toronto Blue Jays;
• Indian River County: $15 million over 30 years for a facility for the Los Angeles Dodgers;
• Osceola County: $7.5 million over 15 years for a facility for the Houston Astros; and
• The City of Clearwater: $15 million over 30 years for a facility for the Philadelphia Phillies.

In 2006, the Legislature amended s. 288.1162, F.S., to authorize five more certifications for spring
training facilities. The criteria were essentially identical and the source offunding, in s. 212.20, F.S.,
was unchanged. Six local governments submitted applications, and OITED selected five:21

• Charlotte County: $15 million over 30 years for a facility for the Tampa Bay Rays;
• The City of Bradenton: $15 million over 30 years for a facility for the Pittsburgh Pirates;
• The City of Fort Lauderdale: $15 million over 30 years for a facility for the Baltimore Orioles;
• The City of Sarasota: $15 million over 30 years for a facility for the Cincinnati Reds; and
• St. Lucie County: $7.5 million over 30 years for the New York Mets.

Eight of the local governments have either begun spending or have encumbered the state funds. As
for the other two:

18 Section 288.1162(6), F.S.
19 Section 288.1162(5)(b), F.S.
20 Section 288.1162(5)(d), F.S.
21 The City ofFort Myers' application for a new facility for the Boston Red Sox was not approved by OTTED in 2006.
STORAGE NAME: pcb29.GAP.doc PAGE: 5
DATE: 3/22/2010



• Fort Lauderdale has received in excess of $1.5 million in state funds, as of March 2010, but has
not spent or otherwise encumbered the funds because the city's plan to build a new stadium for
the Orioles was halted because of Federal Aviation Administration restrictions.22 As mentioned
previously, the Orioles have entered into an agreement with Sarasota to relocate there for
spring training after the 2010 season.

• Sarasota also has received in excess of $1.5 million in state funds, as of March 2010, and has
not encumbered or spent any of the funds, because it lost the Reds to Arizona. As soon as it
enters into a formal agreement with the Orioles, it plans to pledge the state revenue stream to
help pay debt service on bonds to be issued to pay for facility renovations.

DOR Distributions to Hosts of Certified Spring Training Facilities23

As ofMarch 31 2010

Clearwater
Dunedin
Indian River Count
Osceola Count
Lakeland
Charlotte Count
Bradenton
Fort Lauderdale
Sarasota
St. Lucie Count

Feb.2001/Feb.2031
Feb.2001/Feb.2023
Feb. 2001/Feb. 2031
Feb. 2001/Feb. 2016
Feb. 2001/Feb. 2016

March 2007/Feb. 2037
March 2007/Feb. 2037
March 2007/Feb. 2037
March 2007/Feb. 2037
March 2007/Feb. 2037

$4.54 million
$4.54 million
$4.54 million
$4.54 million
$4.28 million
$1.54 million
$1.54 million
$1.54 million
$1.54 million
$813,462

Recent Developments
The city of Sarasota and the Baltimore Orioles have tentatively agreed to enter into a 30-year
agreement, whereby the city and Sarasota County will help finance a $31 million renovation of existing
spring training facilities for the Orioles in time for the 2011 season. The city of Sarasota's existing
stream of state funding - $15 million over 30 years - also will be used to finance the renovations. No
formal agreement has been signed.

Meanwhile, a group of Naples businesspeople over the summer of 2009 made a bid for the Chicago
Cubs, who are under new ownership. As mentioned above, Cubs ownership announced the team was
staying in Mesa, Arizona, where it has played its spring training games for 50 years. But if a funding
stream for a new complex is not approved, there are indications, at least as reported by the media, that
the Cubs might exercise a buyout clause in its agreement with Mesa in 2012.

Effect of Proposed Changes

The bill relocates the certification program for spring training facilities from s. 288.1162, F.S., which
included new and retained professional sports franchises, to a new s. 288.11621, F.S. that specifically
deals with the certification program for spring training facilities. In this new section, the bill removes a
potential impediment to Florida communities interested in recruiting teams from Arizona's Cactus
League by deleting a definition requiring that eligible teams had to be based in Florida prior to January
1,2000.

The bill clarifies and strengthens existing statutory provisions related to the state certification program
not only for local governmental entities applying for or receiving state funding for spring training
baseball facilities but also for private entities that meet certification requirements provided in the bill.

The new certification program includes both provisions from the existing certification program and new
provisions. Some provisions in the existing spring training certification program that are preserved in

22 Among the conditions imposed by the FAA was an increase in the Orioles' annual facility rental fee to $1.3 million from the current
maximum rate of$120,000. The stadium is on land owned by the Fort Lauderdale Executive Airport.
23 Chart information provided by DOR. Complete Excel chart on file with the Commerce Committee.
STORAGE NAME: pcb29.GAP.doc PAGE: 6
DATE: 3/22/2010



the new section include the following and apply them to the changed definitions of "applicant" and
"certified applicant" which include not only a local government, but local governments in a county that
partner for a spring training franchise and private sector entities:

• Before certifying an applicant to receive state funding for a facility for a spring training franchise,
OITED must verify that the:

1. Applicant is responsible for the acquisition, construction, management, or operation of a
spring training facility, or holds title to the property on which the facility is located;

2. Applicant has a signed agreement with a spring training team;
3. Applicant has made a financial commitment to provide at least 50 percent of the funds

needed to acquire, construct, or renovate the spring training facility;
4. Applicant demonstrates that the spring training facility will attract an annual paid

attendance of at least 50,000 persons; and
5. Spring training facility is or will be located in a county that levies a tourist development

tax pursuant to s. 125.0104, F.S.
• OITED must competitively evaluate applications for funding using the following criteria, with

priority given in descending order (the order has been changed):
1. Anticipated effect on local community economy where the spring training facility is to be

built, including projections on paid attendance, local and state tax collections generated
by spring training games, and direct and indirect job creation resulting from the spring
training activities. Priority is given to applicants who can demonstrate the largest
projected economic impact (partially new criterion);

2. Amount of local matching funds committed relative to amount of state funding sought,
with priority given to largest local commitment relative to state funding;

3. Potential for the facility to serve multiple uses (new criterion);
4. Intended fund use with priority for purchase, construction, or renovation of facility;
5. Length of time a spring training franchise has been under agreement to do spring

training activities in an applicant's geographical location or jurisdiction (partially new
criterion);

6. Length of time that the facility has been used by one or more spring training teams;
7. Term remaining on the lease between the applicant and a spring training team for the

facility's use;
8. Length of time that the spring training franchise has agreed to use the applicant's facility;
9. Net increase of total active recreational space owned by the applicant, following the

acquisition of land for a new spring training facility; and
10. Whether the facility is located in a brownfield, an enterprise zone, a community

development area, or a revitalization area in an urban infill redevelopment plan.
• No more than 10 communities can be certified at anyone time.

The bill also includes a number of new provisions aimed at improving state oversight and management
of the spring training certification program. For example, local governments and private entities
certified by OTTED on or after July 1,2010, must enter into a formal agreement with OTTED that
specifies:

• The amount of state funds to be distributed;
• The criteria to be met in order to remain certified;
• The process by which a local government or private entity will be decertified if it fails to comply

with certification requirements;
• State funds may be recovered in case of decertification;
• Information that the certified applicant, whether a local government or a private entity, must

provide to OITED; and
• Any other provisions deemed prudent to OITED.

The prohibition against the use of state funds for private funded facilities is changed to allow state
funding provided that those facilities are not used just by the spring training team but are used for other
public purposes.

The state funds may be used only to: acquire, construct, or renovate a facility for a spring training
franchise; payor pledge debt service or fund debt service reserves for bonds issued to build or

STORAGE NAME: pcb29.GAP.doc PAGE: 7
DATE: 3/22/2010



renovate a spring training facility; or to assist in the relocation of a spring training franchise from one
unit of local government to another or to or! from the location of a private entity to another private entity
or to a unit of local government. The change is to allow relocation to or from a private entity to other
private entities or local governments.

OITED also is given explicit authority to decertify certified applicants that no longer meet the criteria,
and is able to collect the state funds that have not been encumbered. Certified applicants can ask to
be decertified or OITED can initiate the decertification if a certified applicant either no longer has a
valid agreement with a spring training franchise; has satisfied its required local match for the state
funds; or has not satisfied the bond requirement, if applicable. However, decertification proceedings by
OITED against an applicant certified prior to July 1, 2010, are stayed until 12 months after the
expiration of its most recent team agreement without a new agreement being signed, provided that the
local government can demonstrate to OITED that it is in active negotiations with a different major
league spring training franchise from the one that formed the basis of its original certification.24

Typically, the certified applicant facing decertification has 60 days after it receives a notice of OITED's
intent to decertify to petition OITED's executive director for a review of the decision. Within 45 days of
the request for review, the executive director must notify the certified applicant of the outcome of the
requested review.

OITED must notify DOR within 10 days after an order of decertification becomes final, at which time
DOR stops the distribution of state funds to the decertified certified applicant. A decertified certified
applicant must repay all of the unencumbered or unexpended or contractually unencumbered state
funds received through this program, plus any interest earnings, within 60 days after the decertification
order becomes final. The returned funds will be deposited into the state's General Revenue Fund.

Other new provisions are as follows:
• Certified applicants' agreements with spring training teams must be for a term of at least 20

years, rather than the minimum 15 years specified in current law.
• DOR may not distribute funds to any new certified local government until it is notified by OITED

that the local government has encumbered funds for the spring training facilities.
• All certified applicants, current or future, must place unexpended state funds in a trust account

for the purposes provided in law. Additionally, certified local governments that have lost their
teams may ask DOR to suspend further distributions of the state funds for 12 months after the
expiration of their existing team agreements, in order to give them time to enter into a new
agreement, at which point the distribution of funds would resume.

• Expenditure of the state funds to local governments certified prior to July 1, 2010, must begin
within 48 months of the initial receipt of the funds, and construction or renovations to, a spring
training facility must be completed within 24 months of the project's beginning date.25

• By September 1 of each year, all certified applicants must submit an annual report to OITED
including the most recent annual audit, a detailed report on the use of all funds, a copy of the
contract between the certified applicant and the spring training team, a cost-benefit analysis of
the team's impact on the host community, and evidence that the certified applicant continues to
meet the certification requirements.

• If a certified applicant is decertified, OITED may accept applications for the vacant slot.
• The Auditor General may conduct audits to verify that the state funding is being expended as

required in this section. If the Auditor General determines that is not the case, then the Auditor
General may contact DOR to recover the funds.

• OITED is required to adopt rules to implement certification, decertification, and review
processes, rather than given broad permissive authority to adopt rules.

• A certified applicant that is a private entity is required to execute a contract with OITED to
ensure protection of the state's financial interests. Requirements for the contract provisions are
provided.

24 This would apply to all lO currently certified communities, but for all practical purposes may be used by the three that no longer
have teams: Indian River CountyNero Beach, Sarasota, and Fort Lauderdale.
25 This would apply to alllO currently certified communities, but for all practical purposes may be used by Fort Lauderdale, which no
longer has a team and has not encumbered state funds.
STORAGE NAME: pcb29.GAP.doc PAGE: 8
DATE: 3/22/2010



The bill also directs OTTED, in conjunction with the Florida Sports Foundation and the Florida
Grapefruit League Association, to develop a comprehensive strategic plan for Florida to retain and
recruit spring training franchises. A copy of the strategic plan must be submitted to the Governor, the
President of the Senate, and the Speaker of the House of Representatives by December 31,2010.

The bill provides an unnumbered section of law recognizing the validity of an agreement certified under
the existing spring training provisions of law and the continued release of funding by OTTED for a
certified applicant under the current law governing spring training franchises.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1 amends s. 14.2015, F.S., to replace a cross-reference, consistent with the proposed
changes in section 5 of the bill.

Section 2. Amends s. 212.20, F.S., to make conforming changes.

Section 3. Amends s. 218.64, F.S., to make conforming changes.

Section 4. Amends s. 288.1162, F.S., to delete all references to retained spring training baseball
teams and to the certification process for local governments seeking state funds to help finance spring
training facilities; to direct the Auditor General, rather than DOR, to conduct audits to verify proper use
of funds and to notify DOR of discrepancies; and to allow for DOR to pursue recovery of the funds.

Section 5. Creates s. 288.11621, F.S., which is devoted exclusively to the state funding program for
communities with spring training baseball teams and is designed to increase program oversight and
accountability.

Section 6. Amends s. 288.1229, F.S., to add assistance in the retention of spring training baseball and
other professional sports franchises among the duties of the Florida Sports Foundation, the sports
related direct support organization under contract to OTTED.

Section 7. Creates a section that is not assigned to any section of law that provides legislative
recognition of the validity of an agreement certified under the existing spring training provisions of law
and the authority of OTTED to release funds as it has done.

Section 8. Provides an effective date of upon becoming a law.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

See "Fiscal Comments."

2. Expenditures:

See "Fiscal Comments."

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcb29.GAP.doc
3/22/2010

PAGE: 9



C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

The bill could have a positive, but indeterminate, impact on a private entity that participates under the
provisions of this act and becomes a certified applicant. As a certified applicant, the private entity is
eligible to receive funding, if selected, under the criteria provided in section 5 of the bill.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

According to OTTED, there is no additional fiscal impact on the office for the requirements of the bill.
The other requirements for the Auditor General are indeterminate since the number of audits and timing
of audits are not specified. The requirement for audits performed by the Department of Revenue is
removed; thereby, creating some cost savings to the department.

Because the bill allows OTTED to recover unencumbered state funds from decertified local
governments, it is possible that at least $2 million in released state funds can be returned to the state's
General Revenue Fund. Additionally, up to $28 million in sales tax revenue dedicated over the next 28
years can instead be directed to the General Revenue Fund, unless OTTED decides to certify new
applicants for the purpose of developing spring training baseball facilities.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This bill does not require counties or municipalities to spend funds or to take an action requiring the
expenditure of funds. This bill does not reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with counties or
municipalities. This bill does not reduce the authority that municipalities have to raise revenue.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

OTTED, in current law, is authorized to adopt rules relating to spring training. The bill narrows the
current grant of rulemaking authority by requiring OTTED to adopt rules only addressing specific areas
of responsibility.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL OR COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

Not applicable.

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcb29.GAP.doc
3/22/2010

PAGE: 10



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

A bill to be entitled

An act relating to professional sports franchises;

amending ss. 14.2015, 212.20, and 218.64, F.S., relating

to the Office of Tourism, Trade, and Economic Development,

the distribution of certain tax proceeds, and the

allocation of a portion of the local government half-cent

sales tax; conforming provisions to changes made by the

act; conforming cross-references; amending s. 288.1162,

F.S.; deleting provisions relating to the certification

and funding of facilities for spring training franchises;

authorizing the Auditor General to conduct audits to

verify whether certain funds for professional sports

franchises are used as required by law; requiring the

Auditor General to notify the Department of Revenue if the

funds are not used as required by law; creating s.

288.11621, F.S.; authorizing certain units of local

government and private entities to apply for certification

to receive state funding for a facility for a spring

training franchise; providing definitions; providing

eligibility requirements; providing criteria to

competitively evaluate applications for certification;

requiring a certified applicant to use the funds awarded

for specified public purposes and place unexpended funds

in a trust fund or separate account; authorizing a

certified applicant to request a suspension of the

distribution of funds for a specified period under certain

circumstances; requiring the expenditure of funds by

certain certified applicants within a specified period;

Page 1of 31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

requiring the completion of certain spring training

facility projects within a specified period; requiring

certified applicants to submit annual reports to the

Office of Tourism, Trade, and Economic Development;

requiring a contract for receipt of funds by certified

applicant that is a private entity; providing contract

requirements; requiring the office to decertify applicants

under certain circumstances; providing for delay in

decertification proceedings for local governments

certified before a specified date under certain

circumstances; providing for review of the office's notice

of intent to decertify an applicant; requiring an

applicant to repay unencumbered state funds and interest

after decertification; requiring the office to develop a

strategic plan relating to baseball spring training

activities; requiring the office to adopt rules;

authorizing the Auditor General to conduct audits to

verify whether certified funds for baseball spring

training facilities are used as required by law; requiring

the Auditor General to notify the Department of Revenue if

the funds are not used as required by law; amending s.

288.1229, F.S.; providing that the Office of Tourism,

Trade, and Economic Development may authorize a direct

support organization to assist in the retention of

professional sports franchises; recognizing validity of

specified agreement under circumstances; providing an

effective date.

Page 2 of 31
PCB GAP 10-29.doGX
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

57 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the state of Florida:

58

59 Section 1. Paragraph (f) of subsection (2) of section

60 14.2015, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

61 14.2015 Office of Tourism, Trade, and Economic

62 Development; creation; powers and duties.-

63 (2) The purpose of the Office of Tourism, Trade, and

64 Economic Development is to assist the Governor in working with

65 the Legislature, state agencies, business leaders, and economic

66 development professionals to formulate and implement coherent

67 and consistent policies and strategies designed to provide

68 economic opportunities for all Floridians. To accomplish such

69 purposes, the Office of Tourism, Trade, and Economic Development

70 shall:

71 (f)l. Administer the Florida Enterprise Zone Act under SSe

72 290.001-290.016, the community contribution tax credit program

73 under SSe 220.183 and 624.5105, the tax refund program for

74 qualified target industry businesses under S. 288.106, the tax

75 refund program for qualified defense contractors and space

76 flight business contractors under S. 288.1045, contracts for

77 transportation projects under S. 288.063, the sports franchise

78 facility programs program under SSe 288.1162 and 288.11621 ~

79 288.1162, the professional golf hall of fame facility program

80 under S. 288.1168, the expedited permitting process under S.

81 403.973, the Rural Community Development Revolving Loan Fund

82 under S. 288.065, the Regional Rural Development Grants Program

83 under S. 288.018, the Certified Capital Company Act under S.

84 288.99, the Florida State Rural Development Council, the Rural

Page 3of31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

85 Economic Development Initiative, and other programs that are

86 specifically assigned to the office by law, by the

87 appropriations process, or by the Governor. Notwithstanding any

88 other provisions of law, the office may expend interest earned

89 from the investment of program funds deposited in the Grants and

90 Donations Trust Fund to contract for the administration of the

91 programs, or portions of the programs, enumerated in this

92 paragraph or assigned to the office by law, by the

93 appropriations process, or by the Governor. Such expenditures

94 shall be subject to review under chapter 216.

95 2. The office may enter into contracts in connection with

96 the fulfillment of its duties concerning the Florida First

97 Business Bond Pool under chapter 159, tax incentives under

98 chapters 212 and 220, tax incentives under the Certified Capital

99 Company Act in chapter 288, foreign offices under chapter 288,

100 the Enterprise Zone program under chapter 290, the Seaport

101 Employment Training program under chapter 311, the Florida

102 Professional Sports Team License Plates under chapter 320,

103 Spaceport Florida under chapter 331, Expedited Permitting under

104 chapter 403, and in carrying out other functions that are

105 specifically assigned to the office by law, by the

106 appropriations process, or by the Governor.

107 Section 2. Paragraph (d) of subsection (6) of section

108 212.20, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

109 212.20 Funds collected, disposition; additional powers of

110 department; operational expense; refund of taxes adjudicated

111 unconstitutionally collected.-

112 (6) Distribution of all proceeds under this chapter and s.

Page 4 of 31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

113 202.18 (1) (b) and (2) (b) shall be as follows:

114 (d) The proceeds of all other taxes and fees imposed

115 pursuant to this chapter or remitted pursuant to s. 202.18(1) (b)

116 and (2) (b) shall be distributed as follows:

117 1. In any fiscal year, the greater of $500 million, minus

118 an amount equal to 4.6 percent of the proceeds of the taxes

119 collected pursuant to chapter 201, or 5.2 percent of all other

120 taxes and fees imposed pursuant to this chapter or remitted

121 pursuant to s. 202.18(1) (b) and (2) (b) shall be deposited in

122 monthly installments into the General Revenue Fund.

123 2. After the distribution under subparagraph 1., 8.814

124 percent of the amount remitted by a sales tax dealer located

125 within a participating county pursuant to s. 218.61 shall be

126 transferred into the Local Government Half-cent Sales Tax

127 Clearing Trust Fund. Beginning July 1, 2003, the amount to be

128 transferred shall be reduced by 0.1 percent, and the department

129 shall distribute this amount to the Public Employees Relations

130 Commission Trust Fund less $5,000 each month, which shall be

131 added to the amount calculated in subparagraph 3. and

132 distribpted accordingly.

133 3. After the distribution under subparagraphs 1.and 2.,

134 0.095 percent shall be transferred to the Local Government Half

135 cent Sales Tax Clearing Trust Fund and distributed pursuant to

136 s. 218.65.

137 4. After the distributions under subparagraphs 1., 2., and

138 3., 2.0440 percent of the available proceeds shall be

139 transferred monthly to the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund for

140 Counties pursuant to s. 218.215.

Page 5of 31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

141 5. After the distributions undercsubparagraphs 1., 2., and

142 3., 1.3409 percent of the available proceeds shall be

143 transferred monthly to the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund for

144 Municipalities pursuant to s. 218.215. If the total revenue to

145 be distributed pursuant to this subparagraph is at least as

146 great as the amount due from the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund for

147 Municipalities and the former Municipal Financial Assistance

148 Trust Fund in state fiscal year 1999-2000, no municipality shall

149 receive less than the amount due from the Revenue Sharing Trust

150 Fund for Municipalities and the former Municipal Financial

151 Assistance Trust Fund in state fiscal year 1999-2000. If the

152 total proceeds to be distributed are less than the amount

153 received in combination from the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund for

154 Municipalities and the former Municipal Financial Assistance

155 Trust Fund in state fiscal year 1999-2000, each municipality

156 shall receive an amount proportionate to the amount it was due

157 in state fiscal year 1999-2000.

158

159

6. Of the remaining proceeds:

a. In each fiscal year, the sum of $29,915,500 shall be

160 divided into as many equal parts as there are counties in the

161 state, and one part shall be distributed to each county. The

162 distribution among the several counties must begin each fiscal

163 year on or before January 5th and continue monthly for a total

164 of 4 months. If a local or special law required that any moneys

165 accruing to a county in fiscal year 1999-2000 under the then

166 existing provisions of s. 550.135 be paid directly to the

167 district school board, special district, or a municipal

168 government, such payment must continue until the local or

Page 6of31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

169 special law is amended or repealed. The state covenants with

170 holders of bonds or other instruments of indebtedness issued by

171 local governments, special districts, or district school boards

172 before July 1, 2000, that it is not the intent of this

173 subparagraph to adversely affect the rights of those holders or

174 relieve local governments, special districts, or district school

175 boards of the duty to meet their obligations as a result of

176 previous pledges or assignments or trusts entered into which

177 obligated funds received from the distribution to county

178 governments under then-existing s. 550.135. This distribution

179 specifically is in lieu of funds distributed under s. 550.135

180 before July 1, 2000.

181 b. The department shall distribute $166,667 monthly

182 pursuant to s. 288.1162 to each applicant that has been

183 certified as a facility for a new or retained professional

184 sports franchise "facility for a nml professional sports

185 franchise" or a "facility for a retained professional sports

186 franchise" pursuant to s. 288.1162. Up to $41,667 shall be

187 distributed monthly by the department to each certified

188 applicant as defined in s. 288.11621 for a facility for a

189 retained spring training franchise. that has been certified as a

190 "facility for a retained spring training franchise" pursuant to

191 s. 288.1162; However, not more than $416,670 may be distributed

192 monthly in the aggregate to all certified applicants for

193 facilities for a retained spring training franchises franchise.

194 Distributions ffiU-S-t. begin 60 days after follmdng such

195 certification and shall continue for not more than 30 yearsL

196 except as otherwise provided in s. 288.11621. A certified

Page 7of31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

197 applicant identified in this sub-subparagraph may not~

198 paragraph may not be construed to allml an applicant certified

199 pursuant to s. 288.1162 to receive more in distributions than

200 actually expended by the applicant for the public purposes

201 provided for in s. 288.1162(5) or s. 288.11621(3) ~

202 288.1162(6).

203 c. Beginning 30 days after notice by the Office of

204 Tourism, Trade, and Economic Development to the Department of

205 Revenue that an applicant has been certified as the professional

206 golf hall of fame pursuant to s. 288.1168 and is open to the

207 public, $166,667 shall be distributed monthly, for up to 300

208 months, to the applicant.

209 d. Beginning 30 days after notice by the Office of

210 Tourism, Trade, and Economic Development to the Department of

211 Revenue that the applicant has been certified as the

212 International Game Fish Association World Center facility

213 pursuant to s. 288.1169, and the facility is open to the public,

214 $83,333 shall be distributed monthly, for up to 168 months, to

215 the applicant. This distribution is subject to reduction

216 pursuant to s. 288.1169. A lump sum payment of $999,996 shall be

217 made, after certification and before July 1, 2000.

218 7. All other proceeds must remain in the General Revenue

219 Fund.

220 Section 3. Section 218.64, Florida Statutes, is amended to

221 read:

222 218.64 Local government half-cent sales tax; uses;

223 limitations.-

224 (1) The proportion of the local government half-cent sales

Page 8of 31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

225 tax received by a county government based on two-thirds of the

226 incorporated area population shall be deemed countywide revenues

227 and shall be expended only for countywide. tax relief or

228 countywide programs. The remaining county government portion

229 shall be deemed county revenues derived on behalf of the

230 unincorporated area but may be expended on a countywide basis.

231 (2) Municipalities shall expend their portions of the

232 local government half-cent sales tax only for municipality-wide

233 programs or for municipality-wide property tax or municipal

234 utility tax relief. All utility tax rate reductions afforded by

235 participation in the local government half-cent sales tax shall

236 be applied uniformly across all types .of taxed utility services.

237 (3) Subject to ordinances enacted by the majority of the

238 members of the county governing authority and by the majority of

239 the members of the governing authorities of municipalities

240 representing at least 50 percent of the municipal population of

241 such county, counties may use up to $2 million annually of the

242 local government half-cent sales tax allocated to that county

243 for funding for any of the following applicants:

244 (a) A certified applicant as a facility for a new or

245 retained professional sports franchise under "facility for a new

246 professional sports franchise," a "facility for a retained

247 professional sports franchise," or a "facility for a retained

248 spring training franchise," as provided for in s. 288.1162 or a

249 certified applicant as defined in s. 288.11621 for a facility

250 for a spring training franchise. It is the Legislature's intent

251 that the provisions of s. 288.1162, including, but not limited

252 to, the evaluation process by the Office of Tourism,. Trade, and

Page 90f31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

253 Economic Development except for the limitation on the number of

254 certified applicants or facilities as provided in that section

255 and the restrictions set forth in s. 288.1162(8) s. 288.1162(9),

256 shall apply to an applicant's facility to be funded by local

257 government as provided in this subsection.

258 (b) A certified applicant as a "motorsport entertainment

259 complex," as provided for in s. 288.1171. Funding for each

260 franchise or motorsport complex shall begin 60 days after

261 certification and shall continue for not more than 30 years.

262 (4) A local government is authorized to pledge proceeds of

263 the local government half-cent sales tax for the payment of

264 principal and interest on any capital project.

265 Section 4. Section 288.1162, Florida Statutes, is amended

266 to read:

267 288.1162 Professional sports franchises; spring training

268 franchises; duties.-

269 (1) The Office of Tourism, Trade, and Economic Development

270 shall serve as the state agency for screening applicants for

271 state funding under pursuant to s. 212.20 and for certifying an

272 applicant as a facility for a new or retained professional

273 sports franchise. "facility for a neH professional sports

274 franchise," a "facility for a retained professional sports

275 franchise," or a "facility for a retained spring training

276 franchise."

277 (2) The Office of Tourism, Trade, and Economic Development

278 shall develop rules for the receipt and processing of

279 applications for funding under pursuant to s. 212.20.

280 (3) As used in this section, the term:

Page 10 of 31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

281 (a) "New professional sports franchise" means a

282 professional sports franchise was that is not based in this

283 state before prior to April 1, 1987.

284 (b) "Retained professional sports franchise" means a

285 professional sports franchise that has had a league-authorized

286 location in this state on or before December 31, 1976, and has

287 continuously remained at that location, and has never been

288 located at a facility that has been previously certified under

289 any provision of this section.

290 (4) Before Prior to certifying an applicant as a facility

291 for a new or retained professional sports franchise, "faoility

292 for a ne\! professional sports franohise" or a "faoility for a

293 retained professional sports franohise," the Office of Tourism,

294 Trade, and Economic Development must determine that:

295 (a) A "unit of local government" as defined in s. 218.369

296 is responsible for the construction, management, or operation of

297 the professional sports franchise facility or holds title to the

298 property on which the professional sports franchise facility is

299 located.

300 (b) The applicant has a verified copy of a signed

301 agreement with a new professional sports franchise for the use

302 of the facility for a term of at least 10 years, or in the case

303 of a retained professional sports franchise, an agreement for

304 use of the facility for a term of at least 20 years.

305 (c) The applicant has a verified copy of the approval from

306 the governing authority of the league in which the new

307 professional sports franchise exists authorizing the location of

308 the professional sports franchise in this state after April 1,

Page 11 of 31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

309 1987, or in the case of a retained professional sports

310 franchise, verified evidence that it has had a league-authorized

311 location in this state on or before December 31, 1976. As used

312 in this section, the term "league" means the National League or

313 the American League of Major League Baseball, the National

314 Basketball Association, the National Football League, or the

315 National Hockey League.

316 (d) The applicant has projections, verified by the Office

317 of Tourism, Trade, and Economic Development, which demonstrate

318 that the new or retained professional sports franchise will

319 attract a paid attendance of more than 300,000 annually.

320 (e) The applicant has an independent analysis or study,

321 verified by the Office of Tourism, Trade, and Economic

322 Development, which demonstrates that the amount of the revenues

323 generated by the taxes imposed under chapter 212 with respect to

324 the use and operation of the professional sports franchise

325 facility will equal or exceed $2 million annually.

326 (f) The municipality in which the facility for a new or

327 retained professional sports franchise is located, or the county

328 if the facility for a new or retained professional sports

329 franchise is located in an unincorporated area, has certified by

330 resolution after a public hearing that the application serves a

331 public purpose.

332 (g) The applicant has demonstrated that it has provided,

333 is capable of providing, or has financial or other commitments

334 to provide more than one-half of the costs incurred or related

335 to the improvement and development of the facility.

336 (h) An Ne applicant previously certified under any

Page 12 of 31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

337 provision of this section who has received funding under such

338 certification is not shall be eligible for an additional

339 certification.

340 (5) (a) As used in this seotion, the term "retained spring

341 training franohise" means a spring training franohise that has

342 been based in this state prior to January 1, 2000.

343 (b) Prior to certifying an applioant as a "faoility for a

344 retained spring training franohise," the Offioe of Tourism,

345 Trade, and goonomio Development must determine that:

346 1. A "unit of looal government" as defined in s. 218.369

347 is responsible for the aoquisition, construotion, management, or

348 operation of the facility for a retained spring training

349 franohise or holds title to the property on T,lhioh the faoility

350 for a retained spring training franohise is looated.

351 2. The applioant has a verified oopy of a signed agreement

352 ~lith a retained spring training franohise for the use of the

353 facility for a term of at least 15 years.

354 3. The applioant has a financial oommitment to provide 50

355 peroent or more of the funds required by an agreement for the

356 aoquisition, oonstruotion, or renovation of the faoility for a

357 retained spring training franohise. The agrebment oan be

358 contingent upon the aT/larding of funds under this section and

359 other conditions preoedent to use by the spring training

360 franohise.

361 4. The applicant has projections, verified by the Offioe

362 of Tourism, Trade, and goonomio Development, Hhioh demonstrate

363 that the facility for a retained spring training franohise \dll

364 attraot a paid attendanoe of at least 50,000 annually.

Page 13 of 31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

365 5. The facility for a retained spring training franchise

366 is located in a county that is levying a tourist development tax

367 pursuant to s. 125.0104.

368 (c)l. The Office of Tourism, Trade, and Economic

369 Development shall competitively evaluate applications for

370 funding of a facility for a retained spring training franchise.

371 Applications must be submitted by October 1, 2000, \dth

372 certifications to be made by January 1, 2001. If the number of

373 applicants exceeds five and the aggregate funding request of all

374 applications exceeds $208,335 per month, the office shall rank

375 the applications according to a selection criteria, certifying

376 the highest ranked proposals. The evaluation criteria shall

377 include, \lith priority given in descending order to the

378 following items:

379 a. The intended use of the funds by the applicant, \lith

380 priority given to the construction of a nml facility.

381 b. The length of time that the existing franchise has been

382 located in the state, with priority given to retaining

383 franchises that have been in the same location the longest.

384 c. The length of time that a facility to be used by a

385 retained spring training franchise has been used by one or more

386 spring training franchises, with priority given to a facility

387 that has been in continuous use as a facility for spring

388 training the longest.

389 d. For those teams leasing a spring training facility from

390 a unit of local government, the remaining time on the lease for

391 facilities used by the spring training franchise, \lith priority

392 given to the shortest time period remaining, on the lease.

Page 14 of 31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

393 e. The duration of the future use agreement with the

394 retained spring training franchise, with priority given to the

395 future use agreement having the longest duration.

396 f. The amount of the local match, \lith priority given to

397 the largest percentage of local match proposed.

398 g. The net increase of total active recreation space owned

399 by the applying unit of local government follmdng the

400 acquisition of land for the spring training facility, \lith

401 priority given to the largest percentage increase of total

402 active recreation space.

403 h. The location of the facility in a brmmfield, an

404 enterprise zone, a community redevelopment area, or other area

405 of targeted development or revitalization included in an Urban

406 Infill Redevelopment Plan, with priority given to facilities

407 located in these areas.

408 i. The projections on paid attendance attraeted by the

409 facility and the proposed effect on the economy of the local

410 community, \lith priority given to the highest proj ected paid

411 attendance.

412 2. Beginning July 1, 2006, the Office of Tourism, Trade,

413 and Economic Development shall competitively evaluate

414 applications for funding of facilities for retained spring

415 training franchises in addition to those certified and funded

416 under subparagraph 1. An applicant that is a unit of government

417 that has an agreement for a retained spring training franchise

418 for 15 or more years \lhich \las entered into bet'ileen July 1,

419 2003, and July 1, 2004, shall be eligible for funding.

420 l\:pplications must be submitted by October 1, 2006, ',lith

Page 15 of 31
PCB GAP 10-29.doGX
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

421 certifications to be made by January 1, 2007. The office shall

422 rank the applications according to selection criteria,

423 certifying no more than five proposals. The aggregate funding

424 request of all applicants certified shall not exceed an

425 aggregate funding request of $208,335 per month. The evaluation

426 criteria shall include the follmling, \lith priority given in

427 descending order:

428 a. The intended use of the funds by the applicant for

429 acquisition or construction of a nml facility.

430 b. The intended use of the funds by the applicant to

431 renovate a facility.

432 c. The length of time that a facility to be used by a

433 retained spring training franchise has been used by one or more

434 spring training franchises, \lith priority given to a facility

435 that has been in continuous use as a facility for spring

436 training the longest.

437 d. For those teams leasing a spring training facility from

438 a unit of local government, the remaining time on the lease for

439 facilities used by the spring training franchise, with priority

440 given to the shortest time period remaining on the lease. For

441 consideration under this subparagraph, the remaining time on the

442 lease shall not exceed 5 years, unless an agreement of 15 years

443 or more \las entered into bet\,reen July 1, 2003, and July 1, 2004.

444 e. The duration of the future use agreement with the

445 retained spring training franchise, ',lith priority given to the

446 future use agreement having the longest duration.

447 f. The amount of the local match, \lith priority given to

448 the largest percentage of local match proposed.

Page 16 of 31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

449 g. The net increase of total active recreation space mmed

450 by the applying unit of local government follmling the

451 acquisition of land for the spring training facility, ,lith

452 priority given to the largest percentage increase of total

453 active recreation space.

454 h. The location of the facility in a brmmfield area, an

455 enterprise zone, a community redevelopment area, or another area

456 of targeted development or revitalization included in an urban

457 infill redevelopment plan, with priority given to facilities

458 located in those areas.

459 i. The projections on paid attendance attracted by the

460 facility and the proposed effect on the economy of the local

461 cornrnunity, ',lith priority given to the highest projeeted paid

462 attendance.

463 (dl Funds may not be m~pended to subsidize privately mmed

464 and maintained facilities for use by the spring training

465 franchise. Funds may be used to relocate a retained spring

466 training franchise to another unit of local government only if

467 the mdsting unit of local government ',lith the retained spring

468 training franchise agrees to the relocation.

469 (5)+6+ An applicant certified as a facility for a new or

470 retained professional sports franchise or a facility for a

471 retained professional sports franchise or as a facility for a

472 retained spring training franchise may use funds provided under

473 pursuant to s. 212.20 only for the public purpose of paying for

474 the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, or renovation of

475 a facility for a new or retained professional sports franchiseT

476 a facility for a retained professional sports franchise, or a

Page 17 of 31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

477 facility for a retained spring training franchise or to payor

478 pledge for the payment of debt service on, or to fund debt

479 service reserve funds, arbitrage rebate obligations, or other

480 amounts payable with respect to, bonds issued for the

481 acquisition, construction, reconstruction, or renovation of such

482 facility or for the reimbursement of such costs or the

483 refinancing of bonds issued for such purposes.

484 (6)+++(a) The Office of Tourism, Trade, and Economic

485 Development shall notify the Department of Revenue of any

486 facility certified as a facility for a new or retained

487 professional sports franchise or a facility for a retained

488 professional sports franchise or as a facility for a retained

489 spring training franchise. The Office of Tourism, Trade, and

490 Economic Development shall certify no more than eight facilities

491 as facilities for a new professional sports franchise or as

492 facilities for a retained professional sports franchise,

493 including in the~ total any facilities certified by the

494 former Department of Commerce before July 1, 1996. The number of

495 facilities certified as a retained spring training franchise

496 shall be as provided in subsection (5). The office may make no

497 more than one certification for any facility. The office may not

498 certify funding for less than the requested amount to any

499 applicant certified as a facility for a retained spring training

500 franchise.

501 (b) The eighth certification of an applicant under this

502 section as a facility for a new or retained professional sports

503 franchise or a facility for a retained professional sports

504 franchise shall be for a franchise that is a member of the

Page 18 of 31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

505 National Basketball Association, has been located within the

506 state since 1987, and has not been previously certified. This

507 paragraph is repealed July 1, 2010.

508 (7)~ The Auditor General Department of Revenue may

509 conduct audits audit as provided in s. 11.45 s. 213.34 to verify

510 that the distributions under pursuant to this section are £a¥e

511 been expended as required in this section. Such information is

512 subject to the confidentiality requirements of chapter 213. If

513 the Auditor General Department of Revenue determines that the

514 distributions under pursuant to this section are £a¥e not been

515 expended as required by this section, the Auditor General shall

516 notify the Department of Revenue, which ~ may pursue recovery

517 of the sueh funds under pursuant to the laws and rules governing

518 the assessment of taxes.

519 (8)+9+ An applicant is not qualified for certification

520 under this section if the franchise formed the basis for a

521 previous certification, unless the previous certification was

522 withdrawn by the facility or invalidated by the Office of

523 Tourism, Trade, and Economic Development or the former

524 Department of Commerce before any funds were distributed under

525 pursuant to s. 212.20. This subsection does not disqualify an

526 applicant if the previous certification occurred between May 23,

527 1993, and May 25, 1993; however, any funds to be distributed

528 under pursuant to s. 212.20 for the second certification shall

529 be offset by the amount distributed to the previous certified

530 facility. Distribution of funds for the second certification

531 shall not be made until all amounts payable for the first

532 certification are have been distributed.

Page 19 of 31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

533 Section 5. Section 288.11621, Florida Statutes, is created

534 to read:

535

536

537

288.11621 Spring training baseball facilities.-

(1) DEFINITIONS.-As used in this section, the term:

(a) "Agreement" means a certified, signed lease between an

538 applicant and the spring training baseball franchise for the use

539 of a facility. This definition applies to applicants that apply

540 for certification after July 1, 2010.

541 (b) "Applicant" means a unit of local government as

542 defined in s. 218.369, including local governments located in

543 the same county that have partnered with a certified applicant

544 prior to the effective date of this act or with an application

545 for a new certification, for the purposes of sharing in the

546 responsibilities of a facility, or a private entity.

547 (c) "Certified applicant" means a facility for a spring

548 training franchise that was certified before July 1, 2010, under

549 s. 288.1162(5), Florida Statutes 2009, or a unit of local

550 government or a private entity that is certified under this

551 section.

552 (d) "Facility" means a spring training stadium, playing

553 fields, and appurtenances intended to support spring training

554 activities.

555 (e) "Local funds" and "local matching funds" means funds

556 provided by a county, municipality, or other local government,

557 funds provided by a private entity, or a combination of such

558 funds.

559 (f) "Office" means the Office of Tourism, Trade, and

560 Economic Development.

Page 20 of31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

561

562

(2) CERTIFICATION PROCESS.-

(a) Before certifying an applicant to receive state

563 funding for a facility for a spring training franchise, the

564 office must verify that:

565 1. The applicant is responsible for the acquisition,

566 construction, management, or operation of the facility for a

567 spring training franchise or holds title to the property on

568 which the facility for a spring training franchise is located.

569 2. The applicant has a certified copy of a signed

570 agreement with a spring training franchise for the use of the

571 facility for a term of at least 20 years. The agreement also

572 must require the franchise to reimburse the state for state

573 funds expended by an applicant under this section if the

574 franchise relocates before the agreement expires. The agreement

575 may be contingent on an award of funds under this section and

576 other conditions precedent.

577 3. The applicant has made a financial commitment to

578 provide 50 percent or more of the funds required by an agreement

579 for the acquisition, construction, or renovation of the facility

580 for a spring training franchise. The commitment may be

581 contingent upon an award of funds under this section and other

582 conditions precedent.

583 4. The applicant demonstrates that the facility for a

584 spring training franchise will attract a paid attendance of at

585 least 50,000 annually to the spring training games.

586 5. The facility for a spring training franchise is located

587 in a county that levies a tourist development tax under s.

588 125.0104.

Page 21 of 31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

589 6. The applicant, if a private entity, demonstrates that

590 it can be bonded for an amount that it anticipates to be

591 required by the office and the Department of Revenue in

592 accordance with subsection (5).

593 (b) The office shall competitively evaluate applications

594 for state funding of a facility for a spring training franchise.

595 The total number of certifications may not exceed 10 at any

596 time. The evaluation criteria must include, with priority given

597 in descending order, the following items:

598 1. The anticipated effect on the economy of the local

599 community where the spring training facility is to be built,

600 including projections on paid attendance, local and state tax

601 collections generated by spring training games, and direct and

602 indirect job creation resulting from the spring training

603 activities. Priority shall be given to applicants who can

604 demonstrate the largest projected economic impact.

605 2~ The amount of the local matching funds committed to a

606 facility relative to the amount of state funding sought, with

607 priority given to applicants that commit the largest amount of

608 local matching funds relative to the amount of state funding

609 sought.

610

611

3. The potential for the facility to serve multiple uses.

4. The intended use of the funds by the applicant, with

612 priority given to the funds being used to acquire a facility,

613 construct a new facility, or renovate an existing facility.

614 5. The length of time that a spring training franchise has

615 been under an agreement to conduct spring training activities

616 within an applicant's geographical location or jurisdiction,

Page 22 of31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

617 with priority given to applicants having agreements with the

618 same franchise for the longest period of time.

619 6. The length of time that an applicant's facility has

620 been used by one or more spring training franchises, with

621 priority given to applicants whose facilities have been in

622 continuous use as facilities for spring training the longest.

623 7. The term remaining on a lease between an applicant and

624 a spring training franchise for a facility, with priority given

625 to applicants having the shortest lease terms remaining.

626 8. The length of time that a spring training franchise

627 agrees to use an applicant's facility if an application is

628 granted under this section, with priority given to applicants

629 having agreements for the longest future use.

630 9. The net increase of total active recreation space owned

631 by the applicant after an acquisition of land for the facility,

632 with priority given to applicants having the largest percentage

633· increase of total active recreation space that will be available

634 for public use.

635 10. The location of the facility in a brownfield, an

636 enterprise zone, a community redevelopment area, or other area

637 of targeted development or revitalization included in an urban

638 infill redevelopment plan, with priority given to applicants

639 having facilities located in these areas.

640 (c) Applicants that are certified on or after July 1,

641 2010, shall enter into an agreement with the office that:

642 1. Specifies the amount of the state incentive funding to

643 be distributed.

644 2. States the criteria that the certified applicant must

Page 23 of31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

645 meet in order to remain certified.

646 3. States that the certified applicant is subject to

647 decertification if the certified applicant fails to comply with

648 this section or the agreement.

649 4. States that the office may recover state incentive

650 funds if the certified applicant is decertified.

651 5. Specifies information that the certified applicant must

652 report to the office.

653 6. Includes any provision deemed prudent by the office.

654 (3) USE OF FUNDS.-

655 (a) A certified applicant may use funds provided under s.

656 212.20(6) (d)7.b. only to:

657 1. Serve the public purpose of acquiring, constructing,

658 reconstructing, or renovating a facility for a spring training

659 franchise.

660 2. Payor pledge for the payment of debt service on, or to

661 fund debt service reserve funds, arbitrage rebate obligations,

662 or other amounts payable with respect thereto, bonds issued for

663 the acquisition, construction, reconstruction, or renovation of

664 such facility, or for the reimbursement of such costs or the

665 refinancing of bonds issued for such purposes.

666 3. Assist in the relocation of a spring training franchise

667 from one unit of local government to another or to or from the

668 location of a private entity to another private entity or to a

669 unit of local government.

670 (b) State funds awarded to a certified applicant for a

671 facility for a spring training franchise may not be used to

672 subsidize facilities that are privately owned, maintained, and

Page 24 of 31
PCB GAP 10-29.doGX
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

673 used only by a spring training franchise.

674 (c) The Department of Revenue may not distribute funds to

675 an applicant certified on or after July 1, 2010, until it

676 receives notice from the office that the certified applicant has

677 encumbered funds under subparagraph (a)2. or has expended funds

678 or contractually encumbered funds for the acquisition,

679 construction, reconstruction, or renovation of a facility for

680 spring training pursuant to contract requirements in subsection

681 (5) .

682 (d)l. All certified applicants must place unexpended state

683 funds received pursuant to s. 212.20(6) (d)7.b. in a trust fund

684 or separate account for use only as authorized in this section.

685 2. A certified applicant may request that the Department

686 of Revenue suspend further distributions of state funds made

687 available under s. 212.20(6) (d)7.b. for 12 months after

688 expiration of an existing agreement with a spring training

689 baseball franchise to provide the certified applicant with an

690 opportunity to enter into a new agreement with a spring training

691 baseball franchise, at which time the distributions shall

692 resume.

693 3. The expenditure of state funds distributed to an

694 applicant certified before July 1, 2010, must begin within 48

695 months after the initial receipt of the state funds. In

696 addition, the construction of, or capital improvements to, a

697 spring training facility must be completed within 24 months

698 after the project's commencement.

699 (4) ANNUAL REPORTS.-On or before September 1 of each year,

700 a certified applicant shall submit to the office a report that

Page 25 of31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

701 includes, but is not limited to:

702

703

(a) A copy of its most recent annual audit.

(b) A detailed report on all local and state funds

704 expended to date on the project being financed under this

705 section.

706 (c) A copy of the contract between the certified local

707 governmental entity or certified private entity and the spring

708 training team.

709 (d) A cost-benefit analysis of the team's impact on the

710 community.

711 (e) Evidence that the certified applicant continues to

712 meet the criteria in effect when the applicant was certified.

713 (f) For purposes of a certified applicant that is a

714 private entity, a list of all uses of the facility and

715 appurtenant property for public purposes during the preceding

716 calendar year.

717 (5) Contract requirements for certified applicant that is

718 a private entity.--

719 (a) In order for a private entity applicant that is

720 certified under subsection (2) to receive funding under s.

721 212.20(6) (d), a contract must be executed between the applicant

722 and the Office of Tourism, Trade, and Economic Development to

723 ensure the protection of the state's financial interests.

724

725

(b) At a minimum the contract shall include the following:

1. Required maintenance of a bond by the private entity

726 that will be sufficient to cover the funding received, to ensure

727 the proper use of funds, and to ensure a mechanism for the state

728 to recover funds if the private entity defaults on the

Page 26 of31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

729 completion of the fund use in any manner or in the case of

730 decertification as provided in this section. The amount of the

731 bond shall be determined by the Office of Tourism, Trade and

732 Economic Development in consultation with the Department of

733 Revenue.

734 2. Information on the private entity, including, but not

735 limited to, its status as a Florida business and length of

736 operation in the state, business or organizational structure,

737 officers, and budget, including continued efforts in the area of

738 spring training.

739 3. Compliance with applicable requirements for

740 certification pursuant to subsection (2).

741 4. Compliance with requirements related to the use of

742 funds in subsection (3).

743 5. Annual compliance review and assessment as required in

744 subsection (4).

745 6. Agreement to allow the use of the facility, appurtenant

746 property, and other property, whatever is subject to the

747 contract, for public purposes.

748

749

(6) DECERTIFICATION.-

(a) The office shall decertify a certified applicant upon

750 the request of the certified applicant.

751 (b) The office shall decertify a certified applicant if

752 the certified applicant does not:

753 1. Have a valid agreement with a spring training

754 franchise;

755 2. Satisfy its commitment to provide local matching funds

756 to the facility; or

Page 27 of31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

757 3. Satisfy the bond requirement in accordance with

758 subsection (5).

759

760 However, decertification proceedings against a local government

761 certified prior to July 1, 2010, shall be delayed until 12

762 months after the expiration of the local government's existing

763 agreement with a spring training baseball franchise and without

764 a new agreement being signed if the certified local government

765 can demonstrate to the office that it is in active negotiations

766 with a major league spring training franchise, other than the

767 franchise that was the basis for the original certification.

768 (c) A certified applicant has 60 days after it receives a

769 notice of intent to decertify from the office to petition the

770 office's executive director for review of the decertification.

771 Within 45 days after receipt of the request for review, the

772 executive director must notify a certified applicant of the

773 outcome of the review.

774 (d) The office shall notify the Department of Revenue that

775 a certified applicant is decertified within 10 days after the

776 order of decertification becomes final. The Department of

777 Revenue shall immediately stop the payment of any funds under

778 this section that were not encumbered by the certified applicant

779 under subparagraph (3) (a)2. or expended or contractually

780 encumbered as directed under paragraph (3) (c) pursuant to

781 contract requirements under subsection (5).

782 (e) The office shall order a decertified applicant to

783 repay all of the unencumbered state funds that the local

784 government or private entity received under this section and any

Page 28 of31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

785 interest that accrued on those funds. The repayment must be made

786 within 60 days after the decertification order becomes final.

787 These funds shall be deposited into the General Revenue Fund.

788 (6) ADDITIONAL CERTIFICATIONS. If the office decertifies

789 a unit of local government or a private entity, the office may

790 accept applications for an additional certification. A unit of

791 local government or a private entity may not be certified for

792 more than one spring training franchise at a time.

793

794

(7) STRATEGIC PLANNING.-

(a) The office shall request assistance from the Florida

795 Sports Foundation and the Florida Grapefruit League Association

796 to develop a comprehensive strategic plan to:

797

798

1. Finance spring training facilities.

2. Monitor and oversee the use of state funds awarded to

799 applicants.

800 3. Identify the financial impact that spring training has

801 on the state and ways in which to maintain or improve that

802 impact.

803 4. Identify opportunities to develop public-private

804 partnerships to engage in marketing activities and advertise

805 spring training baseball.

806 5. Identify efforts made by other states to maintain or

807 develop partnerships with baseball spring training teams.

808 6. Develop recommendations for the Legislature to sustain

809 or improve this state's spring training tradition.

810 (b) The office shall submit a copy of the strategic plan

811 to the Governor, the President of the Senate, and the Speaker of

812 the House of Representatives by December 31, 2010.

Page 29 of31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REPRESENTATIVES

YEAR

813 (8) RULEMAKING.-The office shall adopt rules to implement

814 the certification, decertification, and decertification review

815 processes required by this section.

816 (9) AUDITS.-The Auditor General may conduct audits as

817 provided in s. 11.45 to verify that the distributions under this

818 section are expended as required in this section. If the Auditor

819 General determines that the distributions under this section are

820 not expended as required by this section, the Auditor General

821 shall notify the Department of Revenue, which may pursue

822 recovery of the funds under the laws and rules governing the

823 assessment of taxes.

824 Section 6. Subsection (1) of section 288.1229, Florida

825 Statutes, is amended to read:

826 288.1229 Promotion and development of sports-related

827 industries and amateur athletics; direct-support organization;

828 powers and duties.-

829 (1) The Office of Tourism, Trade, and Economic Development

830 may authorize a direct-support organization to assist the office

831 in:

832 (a) The promotion and development of the sports industry

833 and related industries for the purpose of improving the economic

834 presence of these industries in Florida.

835 (b) The promotion of amateur athletic participation for

836 the citizens of Florida and the promotion of Florida as a host

837 for national and international amateur athletic competitions for

838 the purpose of encouraging and increasing the direct and

839 ancillary economic benefits of amateur athletic events and

840 competitions.

Page 30 of31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v



FLORIDA

BILL

H 0 USE o F

ORIGINAL

REP RES E N TAT I V E S

YEAR

841 (c) The retention of professional sports franchises,

842 including the spring training operations of Major League

843 Baseball.

844 Section 7. An agreement with a spring training franchise

845 relocating from one local government to another local government

846 shall be recognized as a valid agreement under this act if the

847 Office of Tourism, Trade, and Economic Development approved the

848 continuing release of funds to the local government to which the

849 franchise relocated prior to the effective date of this act. The

850 Legislature recognizes the validity of the agreement and

851 acknowledges the authority of the Office of Tourism, Trade, and

852 Economic Development to provide for the continuing release of

853 funds to the local government under the terms of section

854 288.1162, Florida Statutes, that were in effect prior to the

855 effective date of this act.

856 Section 8. This act shall take effect upon becoming a law.

Page 31 of 31
PCB GAP 10-29.docx
CODING: Words striclmA are deletions; words underlined are additions.

v


